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Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forw#wdking statements within the meaning of Sectiok @f7the Securitie
Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the&riBes Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, whictsabgect to th‘safe harbor”
created by those sections. Forwdoibking statements are based on our managemenit&sfdoand assumptions and on informa
currently available to our management. In some sageu can identify forward-looking statementsdayns such as “may,” “will,”
“should,” “could,” “goal,” “would,” “expect,” “plan ,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “project,” “predict,” “potential” anc
similar expressions intended to identify forwdodking statements. These statements involve kaadmnknown risks, uncertaint
and other factors, which may cause our actual tssyerformance, time frames or achievements tméerially different from ar
future results, performance, time frames or achiemets expressed or implied by the forw-looking statements. We discuss mai
these risks, uncertainties and other factors irs thhnual Report on Form 10-K in greater detail unttee heading “Risk Factors.”
Given these risks, uncertainties and other factgmj should not place undue reliance on these fat@oking statements. Als
these forwardeoking statements represent our estimates andngssons only as of the date of this filing. Youwdtaead thi:
Annual Report on Form -K completely and with the understanding that ouuatfuture results may be materially differentrfi
what we expect. We hereby qualify our forwkooking statements by these cautionary statemé&xisept as required by law,
assume no obligation to update these forwlamking statements publicly, or to update the remsactual results could diff
materially from those anticipated in these forwdmdking statements, even if new information beccamasgable in the future.

” oW " u ” ou ” oW

All references to “NVIDIA,” “we,” “us,” “our” or th e “Company” mean NVIDIA Corporation and its subsidiaries, ex
where it is made clear that the term means onlyptrent company.

© 2013 NVIDIA Corporation. All rights reserved. NVIRIthe NVIDIA logo, 3D Vision, CUDA, GeForce, NVADFermi
ICERA, Kepler, Maximus, Quadro, Tesla, Tegra, GRHd NVIDIA GRID are trademarks and/or registereddemarks of NVIDI
Corporation in the U.S. and other countries.




Table of Contents

PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Our Company

NVIDIA is a visual computing company, connectingpk through the powerful medium of computer graphin a world increasingly fille
with visual displays, our graphics technologiesdet customers interact with the world of digitdeas, information and entertainment witt
efficiency that no other communication medium cesvjgle. Visualization transcends cultural and laaggiboundaries and enhances the qual
life whether the setting is work or pleasure areltdsk is mission critical or for entertainment.

We have long been known to millions around the @dok creating the graphics chips used in PCstihag video games to life. With c
invention of the GPU, we introduced the world te fflower of programmable shading, which defines mrodemputer graphics. Today, we re
well beyond PC graphics and games. Our enefigient processors are at the heart of produanging from mobile devices to supercompu
PC gamers choose our GPUs by name to enjoy imneefaivtasy worlds. Our Tegra processors power simamgs, tablets and automol
infotainment systems. Professional designers useGRUs to create visual effects in movies and desigerything from audio headsets
commercial aircraft. And supercomputers take achgmbf the massively parallel processing capadslitif our GPUs to accelerate a wide ran
important applications, from simulations of virusgthe molecular level, to modern weather foréogstnd global oil exploration.

NVIDIA's research and development in visual compyithas yielded more than 5,000 patents grantecmdipg worldwide, and includii
ones covering inventions essential to modern comgut

Our businesses are based on two important techiestone GPU and the Tegra processor. GPUs, eabhbillions of transistors, are t
engine of visual computing and among the world'stmemmplex processors. We have GPU product braedigrmed for specific users ¢
applications: GeForce for gamers; Quadro for desgnTesla for researchers; and GRID VGX for clbaded server graphics modules.
recently announced the NVIDIA GRID visual computiagpliance, a fully integrated system with GRID V@xaphics modules that r
NVIDIA's proprietary system software. GRID is asl-of-its-kind device, designed to serve graphidensive applications from the clc
simultaneously to a large number of concurrentaiser

The Tegra processor is a system-on-a-chip, or SQ€yrating an entire computer on a single chigraigrocessors incorporate mudtre
GPUs and CPUs together with audio, video and ioptput capabilities. They can also be integratetti Waseband processors for phone anc
communication. Unlike power-inefficient processbtslt for PCs, our Tegra SOC conserves power witdivering state-of-theut graphics ar
multimedia processing. Tegra runs devices like gghanes, tablets and PCs; it can also be embeddedinart devices, such as televisi
monitors, setop boxes, gaming devices and cars. We recentlguaroed Project SHIELD, the first Android device idesd for gaming. Proje
SHIELD features our Tegra 4 processor, containpnEtary NVIDIA-developed software and system technologies anddges our des
partnerships with game developers all over thedvorl

Headquartered in Santa Clara, California, we weacerporated in California in April 1993 and reingorated in Delaware in April 1998.
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Our Businesses
Our two primary reporting segments are based onGR& and the Tegra processor. We sell our procedsoOEMs that build PC

workstations, servers, smartphones and tabletsawjet four market segments - Gaming, Enterprisahid and Cloud where our deep expert
in visual computing allows us to create solutiond experiences for users.

NVIDIA MARKETS

Enterprise Mobile

Tegra
Processors

NVIDIA BUSINESSES

Businesses Product Lines

GPU

* GeForcefor consumer desktop and notebook PCs. GeForce @Rhbnce the gaming experience on
by improving the visual quality of graphics througbmplex visual fidelity effects, higher frame rdite
smoother gameplay and replicating the realistiabih of light and physical objects

¢ Quadro for professional workstatio

e Teslafor supercomputing servers and workstat

¢« GRID Graphics Modules for industrystandard servers to accelerate virtual desktopsiiucture (VDI
from companies like Citrix and VMware; also forwerworkstations

< GRID Systems for applications ranging from streaming games tatihg graphicsntensive desig
applications such as Adobe, Autodesk and SolidWdBRID visual computing appliancesa-new clas
of computing systems designed to remotely servphigaintensive applications from corporate netw:
or the cloud -incorporate many GPU modules and run proprietaftyvaoe so they can serve many u
simultaneously. Interactivity, high performance dhe ability to serve many concurrent users arel3
distinguishing characteristics

Tegra Processors

* Tegra processors are architected to deliver a superisnabiand multimedia experience on tab
smartphones and gaming devices while consumingnmainpower. The latest generation is Tegra 4
world's fastest mobile processor on leading bencksnand the first quadere A15 processor, with
graphics cores (compared with Tegra 3's 12 cofesjra 4 was unveiled at the Consumer Electr
Show (CES) 2013 and we expect to begin shippirtgeérsecond quarter of fiscal year 2014
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* Icerabaseband processors and radio frequency (RF) &mmess for mobile connectivi

» Integrated chip solutionsthat combine the Tegra applications processor lamdcera baseband proces

* Project SHIELD , an Android gaming device featuring our Tegra dcpssor, optimized to help us
enjoy digital content in the cloud. There are Andmphones, Android book readers and Android nots
with pens. Project SHIELD is for gaming and des@yte let gamers play the way they wanintetherec
open and connected to the cloud

» Tegra VCM, Tegrabased vehicle computing modules that integraterdineeautomotive computer intc
single component. These drive the computing neddwaalern connected cars, enabling sophistic
navigation and infotainment systems, as well as-gereration safety and driver-assistance systems

 Embedded computing platformsfor a variety of digital consumer devices, suchTas and sma
monitors

Our Markets

For markets where visual computing is particulamyortant, we dedicate ourselves to creating diffiiated experiences that delight us
Visual computing is pervasive and customers inclgaers, enterprises, and tablet and mobile pheaesuwWe consistently build the indust
best processors and system software for the segraamwhich we focus. We work hard to connect aldbts between our hardware and soft
offerings, as well as partner applications, to mexcustomers with complete solutions.

Gaming

Consumers today can watch movies, read bookstenlite music on many kinds of devices. Their coniterither stored and enjoyed on t
devices, or stored in the cloud and streamed tio tlewices, whether PC, Mac, phone, connected TYablet. When consumers put down
device and pick up another, they expect to pickvbhpre they left off in a consistent, seamless azpee. Our goal is to deliver this same end-to-
end experience for gaming, which is the largesketan consumer entertainment.

We focus on open platformd>Cs, mobile devices and, recently, the cloud. Wi lpnocessors to deliver the best graphics foremggamin
experience, sophisticated 3D software and algosttimat are incorporated into games, and a new isunaputing appliance that allows game
be played remotely from the cloud. By developingoan platforms, developers can achieve the broadash -on PC, Mac, phone, connected
or tablet - which provides gamers with enjoymert #exibility.

Our products for the gaming market include: GeFdedeX GPUs for PC gaming; Tegra processors for neoblévices; the GRID vist
computing appliance, which streams games from kbedcto connected devices; and Project SHIELD, whie announced at CES 2013
expect to ship in the second quarter of fiscal y&Hr4. These products can be enjoyed independenity conjunction with each other to conr
the gaming experience across platforms. For exargpl@ers can use Project SHIELD to play Android ggimr stream games from a PC wi
GeForce processor; or, they can stream games fl@RIB gaming server to their PC or TV.

Enterprise

Our enterprise strategy is to serve as our cuswimest trusted graphics partner, working closdty /wmdependent software vendors to optir
their offerings for NVIDIA GPUs, and delivering eitolend visual computing solutions for targetedusiscomputingintensive applications. O
visual computing solutions enhance productivity foitical parts of the workflow of major industriesanging from automotive, to film a
television broadcast, to oil and gas.

Visual computing is vital to productivity in mangrge and important industries:

« Design and Manufacturing- including architectural design, consunpeoducts manufacturing, medical instrumentatior, scienc
& aerospace

¢ Media and Entertainment - including special effects for movies and televisiadvertising, and virtual sets for broad

« High Performance Computing - aerospace simulation, molecular dynamics andsbieace simulations of viruses, oil & |
exploration

« Virtual Desktop Infrastructure (VDI) - professional applications for design, enterpriggliegtions for power and productivity us
in the workplace, working on such devices as taldet notebook PCs
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NVIDIA products for the enterprise market include&@ro GPUs for workstations, Tesla GPUs for higtiggenance computing servers, i
GRID server graphics for enterprise VDI applicasion

NVIDIA Quadro GPUs enhance the productivity of desirs by improving performance and adding crititahctionality, such ¢
photorealistic rendering for computaided design workstations. They are used in priieabvideo editing to generate special effectamvies
and to create virtual sets for broadcast. The n@zed standard for professional graphics, Quadodymts are the reference platform for virtu
all major design and content-creation software hbgesl for professional workstations.

Tesla applies the parallel-processing capabilityG8Us to generglurpose computing problems, greatly increasingoperdnce and pow
efficiency over CPU-only solutions. Tesla-basedvees and supercomputers increase the speed ofcafiptis used in bigeience researc
mechanical and fluid simulations, energy exploraaod computational finance.

GRID, a first-of-its-kind technology introduced shyear, makes it possible to run graphiidsnsive applications remotely on a server ir
datacenter, instead of locally on a PC or workstatit enables pixels to be processed, compressgdtaeamed so quickly that it appears
work is being done by a powerful computer adjaderthe viewing screen. As the processinmgnsive application resides in the server ang
the final image is streamed, complex applicatioas now be accessed from virtually any computingiaevDesigners, sales and marke
professionals can click on an icon and run a pedesl application from a PC, Mac, iPad or Andraadlet. NVIDIA offers GRID graphic
modules and software that OEMs can include in ttaindard servers.

Mobile

Mobile computing devices in various form factore axpected to continue to drive the user experiehceording to Strategy Analytics, me
than 800 million smartphones and 180 million tabkate expected to ship in 2013, approaching thebeuwf laptop PCs sold.

The foundation of our mobile computing strategyhis Tegra processor, which harnesses our expértisemputer chip, software and sys
design, while leveraging our worldading expertise in visual computing. In just @ f&hort years, we have established a presence imdustn
and have achieved many industry firsts:

¢ Tegra 2 - the first duaere mobile process

e Tegra 3 - the first quachre mobile process

+ Tegra 4 - the first mobile processor with congpioinal photography capabilities, making possilolethe first time singleshot higl
dynamic range (HDR) photos, HDR panoramic shotscamtinuous object tracking and focus

* Icera - the first softwardefined radio modem to achieve L

« Tegra was also the first processor used in a Gdégieycomb Android tablet and in a Microsoft WindoRT P(

Our strategy is to innovate faster than the cortipatiintroducing new features and capabilitieslifferentiate the user experience. In dc
so, we leverage our PC proficiency and harnesssingltrends that we believe favor NVIDIA's core gins expertise.

The mobile market is more than smartphones to he. cdbmbination of Tegra and our significant commpmtsoftware assets enables u
address the many new markets for connected smeitede For example, 60 million cars are sold eaglryand all, we believe, will eventu
include multiple Tegrdike computers that augment our driving experiefideey will ensure our safety and the safety of ¢hasound us, seat
and navigate to destinations through heaglslisplays, and enhance our comfort and enjoyntesuts will be connected to our mobile devi
They may someday drive themselves out of parkimgggs to meet their owners, with the seat and teatyre already set to their liking.

Increasingly, devices will be smarter and connectétere will be smart TVs that respond to voice gedture commands, smart moni
powered by Android making a PC optional, watches jgmvelry that recognize voice commands and maks. caur mobile strategy is to f
Tegra into every device where visual computingaiigd.

Cloud

The computer industry has gone through severalmiajloistry shifts - from clienservers, to PCs, to mobile devices connected tintbenet
But none appear to be as sweeping as cloud congputirwhich computing devices are connected toctbad and applications are served
service.

By extending visual computing into the cloud, NVFDis expanding the application of the GPU beyorel RIC into the server and datacel
Virtualizing the GPU enables it to be shared by yneoncurrent users. And we have created technaadpiat allow the rendered image tc
quickly compressed and streamed to a distant canput
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NVIDIA's GRID visual computing appliance is a first its kind, designed to let users interact rertyotgth graphicsintensive applicatior
for entertainment and business. By making graphpggications available on a network or in the clowd aim to expand the GPU's address
market to virtually any connected display. GRIRI&signed to stream a graphics application the weatjliklstreams a movie. It will enable Adc
Photoshop to be run remotely and interacted witif #se application were on the PC. GRID is a cotmmuappliance for many users to st
graphics processing, much the same way that arrsusecomputing appliance designed for networking.

Initial target markets of the NVIDIA GRID applianare cloud gaming and software-as-a-service (SaaSi{ing of graphic#tensive
applications. For cloud gaming, we are partneritith wloud gaming middleware providers around theleyavho in turn work with large servi
and media providers. For hosting graphics-intendasign applications, including Autodesk, Adobe &atidWorks, we are partnering with value-
added resellers specialized in serving the comguiteéeds of designers and artists.

Our Strategies

Extend Technology Leadership in Visual ComputingVe believe that visual computing is fundamentaltiie continued expansion
computing and essential to new computing experiticat define the future of computing. We apply ldideading expertise in these area
enhance the user experience for consumer entegairemd professional visualization applications. fd&is our significant R&D depth and sc
to extend our visual computing leadership.

Enable and Deliver the World's Best Gaming Expermgs. By focusing on open platforms and endetod experiences, we aim to bring
highest fidelity and quality to any gaming devi@éith a broad portfolio of products and technologigsimized for gamers GPUs and softwar
mobile systems-on-a-chip, valaelded solutions such as GeForce Experience anddege, differentiated devices like Project SHIELADC
technologies and appliances for high-quality stiegnn GRID -NVIDIA is committed to ensuring that gaming on qlatforms is delightful ar
exciting.

Revolutionize Computing with the Parallel ProcesgirCapability of the GPUNVIDIA CUDA is a general purpose parallel compu
architecture that leverages the thousands of nelggdarallel processors inside an NVIDIA GPU tovgoinany complex computational proble
in a fraction of the time required by a CPU. We kvamith developers worldwide who write applicatiorograms for the CUDA architecture us
various highlevel programming languages. Developers are ablactelerate algorithms in areas ranging from mdéecdynamics to imag
processing, Xay image reconstruction and derivatives modeliog financial risk analysis. We believe the work we doing around GF
computing is an important step to the future of lbmmputing will be done.

Extend our Visual Computing Leadership into Mobikend Cloud Computing PlatformsMobile, cloud and SaaS are driving changes il
computer industry. Although a great challenge tdenpossible due to the significant computationa&énsity of graphics, we believe vis
computing will be a key component in this new cotmmuparadigm. As with books and music, we wargrtable interactive graphics applicati
like games, movie and photo editors, and designvaoé to be accessed from any computer and frowlaene.

Leverage our Processors and Visual Computing Expestto Create Differentiated Device®e recently announced Project SHIELD.
NVIDIA developed and branded Android device desigf@ gaming and featuring our latest processorddg We believe Project SHIELD w
attract modern gamers who want to play on operigostas and untethered to the living room. We beliBveject SHIELD will also enhance 1
strategic position of Tegra. We believe Project BHD will attract more games to TegraZone, whichlwil turn make every Tegnaewere(
device more enjoyable. Just as Project SHIELDds\dce built around Tegra, we leveraged our GPtreate a first-of-itdind visual computin
appliance called GRID. Leveraging our GPU and \lisoanputing expertise, the NVIDIA GRID is a visu@mputing appliance designed to st
graphics-intensive applications to many users samebusly.

Use Our Intellectual Property and Resources to Enteto License and Development Contractd/e believe our technology leadershij
graphics and mobile computing offers the opporjutttlicense our technology to strategic custontieas desire to build such capabilities dire
into their own products. We expect to enter intefise and development arrangements, some of wraghinaolve significant customization
our intellectual property components and furthdragrte the reach of our graphics and mobile teclyyolo
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Sales and Marketing

Our worldwide sales and marketing strategy is kegur objective to become the leading supplierighiperformance and efficient GPUs
mobile system-ormhip products. Our sales and marketing teams wlodety with each industry's respective OEMs, o®dgjithesign manufacture
or ODMs, system builders, motherboard manufactueetdin board manufacturers, or AlBs, and industry teatters, collectively referred to
our Channel, to define product features, perforreapdce and timing of new products. Members of sales team have a high level of techr
expertise and product and industry knowledge t@asrtghe competitive and complex design win proceés also employ a highly skilled tearr
application engineers to assist our Channel ingthrsj, testing and qualifying system designs thabiiporate our products. We believe tha
depth and quality of our design support are keysmoroving our Channel's time-tmarket, maintaining a high level of customer sattbr
within our Channel and fostering relationships #ratourage customers to use the next generatioargfroducts.

In the markets we serve that purchase our GPUsales process involves achieving key design witls iading OEMs and major syst
builders and supporting the product design intdvhiglume production with key ODMs, motherboard nfanturers and AlBs. These design v
in turn influence the retail and system builderrotel that is serviced by AIB and motherboard mactuf@rs. Our distribution strategy is to w
with a number of leading independent contract egeipt manufacturers, or CEMs, ODMs, motherboard rf@atwrers, AIBs and distributo
each of which have relationships with a broad rasfgeajor OEMs and/or strong brand name recogniticthe retail channel. Currently, we se
significant portion of our processors directly tistdbutors, CEMs, ODMs, motherboard manufactuiend AIBs, which then sell boards :
systems with our products to leading OEMSs, retaileds and a large number of system builders. énTibgra Processor segment that we serv
sales process primarily involves achieving key giesivins directly with the leading mobile OEMs anggorting the product design into high-
volume production.

As a result of our Channel strategy, a small nundiesur customers represent the majority of ouenexe. However, their end custon
consist of a large number of OEMs and system hidltf@oughout the world. Sales to our largestamsr accounted for 13%f our total revent
for fiscal year 2013 .

To encourage software title developers and pubtiste develop games optimized for platforms utiligiour products, we seek to estat
and maintain strong relationships in the softwaeeetbpment community. Engineering and marketingsqemel interact with and visit k
software developers to promote and discuss ouruptedas well as to ascertain product requirememissolve technical problems. Our devel:
program makes certain that our products are avaitabdevelopers prior to volume availability irder to encourage the development of soft
titles that are optimized for our products.

Backlog

Our sales are primarily made pursuant to standardhpse orders. The quantity of products purchésedur customers as well as
shipment schedules are subject to revisions thgctechanges in both the customers' requirements ia manufacturing availability. T
semiconductor industry is characterized by shad léme orders and quick delivery schedules. Ihtligf industry practice and experience,
believe that only a small portion of our backlognan-cancelable and that the dollar amount assatiaith the noreancelable portion is r
significant.

Seasonality

Our industry is largely focused on the consumedpets market. Historically, we have seen strongeemue in the second half of our fis
year than in the first half of our fiscal year,mpairily due to back-t@chool and holiday demand. However, there can kessorance that this tre
will continue.

Manufacturing

We do not directly manufacture semiconductor watessd for our products. Instead, we utilize whatriswn as a fabless manufactul
strategy for all of our product-line operating segns whereby we employ wortdass suppliers for all phases of the manufactuprares:
including wafer fabrication, assembly, testing aadkaging. This strategy uses the expertise ofsingHeading suppliers that are certified by
International Organization for Standardization uchs areas as fabrication, assembly, quality corgmal assurance, reliability and testing
addition, this strategy allows us to avoid manythe significant costs and risks associated withiog/and operating manufacturing operati
Our suppliers are also responsible for procureroentost of the raw materials used in the productibaur products. As a result, we can focus
resources on product design, additional quality@sge, marketing and customer support.
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We utilize industryleading suppliers, such as Taiwan Semiconductoruféeturing Company Limited, to produce our semiagridr wafers
We then utilize independent subcontractors, sucAdssnced Semiconductor Engineering, Inc., JSI &tigg Ltd., King Yuan Electronics C
Ltd., Siliconware Precision Industries Company ladd STATS ChipPAC Incorporated to perform assefntblting and packaging of most of
products. We purchase substrates from Nanya Teasgyn@orporation, IbidenCo., Ltd. and Unimicron Teclogy Corporation.

We typically receive semiconductor products from subcontractors, perform incoming quality assueaared then ship the semiconductol
CEMs, distributors, motherboard and AIB customeosnf our thirdparty warehouse in Hong Kong. Generally, these rigatwrers assemble &
test the boards based on our design kit and testfgtions, and then ship our products to retsjleystem builders or OEMs as motherboarc
add-in board solutions.

Inventory and Working Capital

We focus considerable attention on managing oueritries and other working-capitalated items. We manage inventories
communicating with our customers and then using industry experience to forecast demand on a ptduagproduct basis. We then ple
manufacturing orders for our products that are thaseforecasted demand. The quantity of produdtsallg purchased by our customers as
as shipment schedules are subject to revisionsrdfigct changes in both the customers' requiresnantl in manufacturing availability. \
generally maintain substantial inventories of orodpicts because the semiconductor industry is cteiaed by short lead time orders and q
delivery schedules.

Our existing cash and marketable securities batammeased by 19.1% at the end of fiscal year 2@i8pared with the end ditcal yea
2012. We believe that these balances and our anticdpedsh flows from operations will be sufficient reeet our operating, acquisition ¢
capital requirements for at least the next twelhomtis.

Research and Development

We believe that the continued introduction of newd @nhanced products designed to deliver leadisigalicomputing technology includi
3D graphics, HD video, audio, ulttaw power consumption and SOC architectures is ndisdeto our future success. Our research
development strategy is to focus on concurrentlyeltging multiple generations of GPUs and Tegrac€ssors, including GPUs for high-
performance computing, and Tegra SOCs for ProjétEED and other mobile products using independesgigh teams. Our research
development efforts are performed within specialigeoups consisting of software engineering, hardvesgineering, very large scale integre
design engineering, process engineering, architeetnd algorithms. These groups act as a pipelsegded to allow the efficient simultane
development of multiple generations of products.

A critical component of our product developmentodffis our partnerships with leaders in the compaided design industry. We inv
significant resources in the development of retedfops with industry leaders, often assisting tleesepanies in the product definition of their t
products. We believe that forming these relatiogpsfaind utilizing nexgeneration development tools to design, simulatevemify our product
will help us remain at the forefront of the 3D dgnags market and develop products that utilize legéidge technology on a rapid basis.
believe this approach assists us in meeting thedesign schedules of PC OEMs and other manufasturer

As of January 27, 2013 , we had 5,783 full-time kyges engaged in research and development. Dfisce) years 2013 2012 and 201
we incurred research and development expense d#4% B million , $1,002.6 million and $848.8 mitigrespectively.

Competition

The market for our products is intensely competitand is characterized by rapid technological chaegolving industry standards ¢
declining average selling prices. We believe that principal competitive factors in this market aerformance, breadth of product offerir
access to customers and distribution channelswaddt support, conformity to industry standard Agpgiion Programming Interfac
manufacturing capabilities, processor pricing aneltsystem costs. We believe that our abilityeimain competitive will depend on how well
are able to anticipate the features and functibasdustomers will demand and whether we are aldeliver consistent volumes of our produc
acceptable levels of quality and at competitivegsi We expect competition to increase from botktieg competitors and new market entr.
with products that may be less costly than oursnay provide better performance or additional festunot provided by our products. In addit
it is possible that new competitors or alliance®agicompetitors could emerge and acquire signifinzarket share
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A significant source of competition comes from ca@mies that provide or intend to provide GPUs andilad5OC products. Some of «
competitors may have greater marketing, finandiatribution and manufacturing resources than wartthmay be more able to adapt to cust
or technological changes.

Our current competitors include:

» suppliers of GPUs, including supercomputers an@sghts that incorporate 3D graphics functionalitypag of their existing solutior
such as Advanced Micro Devices, or AMD, and Intel;

» suppliers of SOC products that support tablets rgrhanes, and PCs as well as products that aredztaiento smart devices suct
televisions, monitors, sébp boxes, gaming devices and cars, such as AMDJeAmc., ARM Holdings plc, Broadcom Corporati
Fujitsu Limited, HiSilicon Technologies Co., Ltdimagination Technologies Ltd., Intel, Marvell Techogy Group Ltd., Mediatek, NE
Corporation, Qualcomm Incorporated, Renesas TeoggdCorp., Samsung Electronics Co. Ltd., and STro&lectronics;

» licensors of graphics technologies, such as ARMigls plc, Imagination Technologies Group plc. &fdante Corporation; ar

» suppliers of cellular basebands such as Broadcorpotation, Freescale Semiconductor Inc., HiSilid@thnologies Co., Ltd., Int
Marvell Technology Group Ltd., Mediatek, Qualcommcdrporated, Renesas Technology Corp., Samsungréies Co. Ltd
Spreadtrum Communications Co., Ltd, and ST-Ericsson

If and to the extent we offer products in new m&skeve may face competition from existing compesitas well as from companies v
which we currently do not compete. We expect sultisiacompetition from both Intel's and AMD's sigy of selling platform solutior
including integrating a CPU and a GPU on the saig @r same package, as evidenced by AMD's APUymioand Intel's CPUs with integra
graphics. As AMD and Intel continue to pursue matf solutions and integrated CPUs, we may not lhe @mbsuccessfully compete and
business could be negatively impacted.

Patents and Proprietary Rights

We rely primarily on a combination of patents, gatdhrks, trade secrets, employee and thindy nondisclosure agreements and licer
arrangements to protect our intellectual propenthie United States and internationally. Our cutyeissued patents have expiration dates
August 2013 to February 2032. We have numeroumisatssued, allowed and pending in the United Statal in foreign jurisdictions. C
patents and pending patent applications primaeigte to our products and the technology used imection with our products. We also rely
international treaties, organizations and foreggmd to protect our intellectual property. The laf/sertain foreign countries in which our prodt
are or may be manufactured or sold, including werioountries in Asia, may not protect our productintellectual property rights to the se
extent as the laws of the United States. This méhkepossibility of piracy of our technology andgucts more likely. We continuously as
whether and where to seek formal protection fotipalar innovations and technologies based on factors as:

» the location in which our products are manufact)

e our strategic technology or product directionsiffedent countries

» the degree to which intellectual property laws eaigl are meaningfully enforced in different juitsins; an
» the commercial significance of our operations amdammpetitors' operations in particular countaed region:

Our pending patent applications and any future iegiibns may not be approved. In addition, anyeédspatents may not provide us v
competitive advantages or may be challenged by frarties. The enforcement of patents by others lmaayn our ability to conduct our busine
Others may independently develop substantially \edeint intellectual property or otherwise gain ascéo our trade secrets or intellec
property. Our failure to effectively protect outetiectual property could harm our business. Weeh@mensed technology from third parties
incorporation in some of our products and for dsilem reasons, and expect to continue to entersimtb license agreements. These licenses
result in royalty payments to third parties, thessrlicensing of technology by us or payment oépttonsideration. If these arrangements ar
concluded on commercially reasonable terms, ounbas could suffer.

Employees

As of January 27, 2013, we had 7,974 employee835%¥whom were engaged in research and developameh2,191f whom were engag
in sales, marketing, operations and administraginstions. We believe we have good relationshifh wir employees.
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Environmental Regulatory Compliance

To date, we have not incurred significant expemekged to environmental regulatory compliance erattFor additional detail sedte¢m 1A
Risk Factors - Risks Related to Regulatory, Le@alr Common Stock and Other MattersOur failure to comply with any applicat
environmental regulations could result in a randeconsequences, including fines, suspension ofystamh, excess inventory, sales limitatic
and criminal and civil liabilities”

Financial Information by Reporting Segment and Georaphic Data

The information included in Note 1of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial StatemienPart 1V, Item 15 of this Annual Report on i
10-K, including financial information by reportirgegment and revenue and Idivggd assets by geographic region, is hereby irmated b
reference. For additional detail regarding thesiakendant to our foreign operations see “ltemRi&k Factors Risks Related to Our Busine
Industry and PartnersWe are subject to risks associated with internati@perations which may harm our businéss.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following sets forth certain information regiaigiour executive officers, their ages and thesipans as of February 25, 2013:

Name Age Position
Jen-Hsun Huang 50 President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
Karen Burns 45 Vice President and Interim Chief Financial Officer
Ajay K. Puri 58 Executive Vice President, Worldwide Sales
David M. Shannon 57 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and &egre
Debora Shoquist 58 Executive Vice President, Operations

Jen-Hsun Huango-founded NVIDIA in April 1993 and has served asRi®sident, Chief Executive Officer and a membethefBoard ¢
Directors since its inception. From 1985 to 1993, Muang was employed at LSI Logic Corporationpmputer chip manufacturer, where he |
a variety of positions, most recently as Directb€oreware, the business unit responsible for L'S{stem-on-chip’strategy. From 1983 to 19t
Mr. Huang was a microprocessor designer for Advdrdiro Devices, Inc., a semiconductor company. Mirang holds a B.S.E.E. degree fi
Oregon State University and an M.S.E.E. degree f8temford University.

Karen Burnsjoined NVIDIA in October 2000 and has served aseMizesident and Interim Chief Financial OfficemMNdfIDIA since Marct
2011. From December 2010 to March 2011, Ms. Buengesl as NVIDIA's Vice President, Corporate Comérohnd Tax and as Vice President -
Tax from November 2007. From October 2000 to Oat@®®7, Ms. Burns served as head of the tax depattin various capacities, includ
Senior Director and Director. Previous to NVIDIA sMBurns served nine years in various capacitieaxrand audit with KPMG, a global put
accounting firm, in their Atlanta, London, and &iih Valley based practices. Ms. Burns holds bd8h4a and an M.A. in Accounting from Flori
State University.

Ajay K. Purijoined NVIDIA in December 2005 as Senior Vice Pdesit, Worldwide Sales and became Executive Viceiéeat, Worldwid
Sales in January 2009. Prior to NVIDIA, he heldiposs in sales, marketing, and general managemesita 22year career at Sun Microsyste
Inc. Mr. Puri previously held marketing, managememsulting, and product development positions eividttPackard Company, Booz All
Hamilton Inc., and Texas Instruments Incorporatdd. Puri holds an M.B.A. degree from Harvard Uniigr, an M.S.E.E. degree from -
California Institute of Technology and a B.S.E.Egree from the University of Minnesota.

David M. Shannorserves as Executive Vice President, General CoamkSecretary of NVIDIA. Mr. Shannon joined NVIDIn Augus
2002 as Vice President and General Counsel. Mmi@irabecame Secretary of NVIDIA in April 2005, an8e Vice President in December 2(
and an Executive Vice President in January 2009Jahuary 2013, Mr. Shannon also became the heHdrofin Resources and currently le
both the Legal and Human Resources functions. Ft688 to 2002, Mr. Shannon held various counseltipos at Intel, most recently t
position of Vice President and Assistant GeneralrGel. Mr. Shannon also practiced for eight yeatbeé law firm of Gibson Dunn and Crutct
focusing on complex commercial and high-technolaggted litigation. Mr. Shannon holds B.A. and Jdegrees from Pepperdine University.
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Debora Shoquisjoined NVIDIA in September 2007 as Senior Vice Riest of Operations and became Executive Vice Beasio
Operations in January 2009. From 2004 to 2007, $kmquist served as Senior Vice President of Operatat JDS Uniphase Corporatiol
provider of communications test and measuremenitisas and optical products for the telecommunisetiindustry. From 2002 to 2004,
served as Senior Vice President and General Marmdidke Electro©ptics business at Coherent, Inc., a manufactdreormmercial and scienti
laser equipment. Her experience includes her rofguantum Corporation as the President of the Rafsbomputer Hard Disk Drive Divisic
Her experience also includes senior roles at H&wRatkard Corporation. She holds a B.S degree intrifl@acEngineering from Kansas St
University and a B.S. degree in Biology from Sabtara University.

Available Information

Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly report$-orm 10-Q, current reports on FornK&nd, if applicable, amendments to those re
filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) of 8eeurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended \aitable free of charge on or through our
site, http://www.nvidia.com as soon as reasonably practicable after we efectlly file such material with, or furnish it tthe Securities ai
Exchange Commission, or the SEC. Our web site laméhformation on it or connected to it are nota pf this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

In evaluating NVIDIA and our business, the follogvfiactors should be considered in addition to tteeoinformation in this Annual Rep:
on Form 10K. Before you buy our common stock, you should khatvmaking such an investment involves some mssding, but not limite
to, the risks described below. Additionally, anye @f the following risks could seriously harm owsimess, financial condition and results
operations, which could cause our stock price tolide. Additional risks and uncertainties not prethe known to us or that we currently de
immaterial may also impair our business operations.

Risks Related to Our Business, Industry and Partnesy

If we are unable to compete in the markets for qunoducts, our financial results will be adverselynpacted.

The market for our products is extremely compeditiand we expect competition to intensify as curoempetitors expand their prod
offerings, industry standards continue to evolve athers realize the market potential of mobile emasumer products and services.

We expect competition to increase from both exgstiompetitors and new market entrants with prodtias may be less costly than ours
may provide better performance or additional fezgunot provided by our products. In addition, ip@ssible that new competitors or alliar
among competitors could emerge and acquire sigmificmarket share. Furthermore, competitors witlatgrefinancial resources may be abl
offer lower prices than us, or they may offer aiddial products, services or other incentives thaimway not be able to match. In addition, mar
our competitors operate and maintain their ownicaltion facilities and have longer operating higtsy greater name recognition, larger custt
bases, and greater sales, marketing and distribtgources than we do. In order to effectively get@ we may have to invest more resourc
research and development than anticipated, whicifddocrease our operating expenses and negatingdgct our operating results. If we
required to invest significantly greater resourtes anticipated in research and development effeithout a corresponding increase in reve
our operating results could decline. In order tma& competitive, we anticipate that we will coninto devote substantial resources to res
and development, and we expect these expensesrgage in absolute dollars in the foreseeable gutue to the increased complexity anc
greater number of products under development.CGilityalo compete will depend on, among other fastarur ability to:

e continue to keep pace with technological develops;

» develop and introduce new products, services, tdofies and enhancements on a timely kb
» transition our semiconductor products to incredgisgaller line width geometrie

» obtain sufficient foundry capacity and packagingemals; an

» succeed in significant foreign markets, such an&hind Indi:
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If we are unable to compete in our current or neavkats, demand for our products could decreasehwdoald cause our revenue to dec
and our financial results to suffer. If and e extent we offer products in new markets, we faag competition from existing competitors
well as from companies with which we currently di compete. We expect substantial competition fomth Intel's and AMD's strategy of sell
platform solutions, including integrating a CPU am@PU on the same chip or same package, as eeitidtycAMD's APU product and Inte
CPUs with integrated graphics. As AMD and Intel thawme to pursue platform solutions and integrat€®UE, we may not be able to success
compete and our business could be negatively iredaddespite the use of these integrated CPUs, marsmmputer, or PC, builders ¢
consumers have continued to embrace discrete G&Psovide higher performance, or the GPU attach. rHtintegrated CPUs offer a mu
compelling value proposition in the future, our GBtthch rate could decrease, which could adveedfédgt our business and cause our final
results to decline.

Our business results could be adversely affectetthéf identification and development of new produitsdelayed or unsuccessful.

In order to maintain or improve our financial resulve will need to continue to identify and deyeltew products and enhancements tc
existing products in a timely and caftective manner. The process of developing newdycts and services and enhancing existing progun
services is highly complex, costly and uncertaimd any failure by us to anticipate customers' changeeds and emerging technology tre
could adversely affect our business. We must makegterm investments and commit significant resourcefore knowing whether o
predictions will accurately reflect customer demdmdour new products and technologies. It is fideghat our development efforts will not
successful and that our new technologies will egult in meaningful revenues. Even if we intreeluew and enhanced products to the mg¢
we may not be able to achieve market acceptantteenf in a timely manner.

Our ability to successfully develop and deliver mraeducts will depend on various factors, including ability to:

» effectively identify and capitalize upon opportugstin new market
» timely complete and introduce new products andrteldgies
» transition our semiconductor products to incredgisgaller line width geometries; ¢

» obtain sufficient foundry capacity and packagingenals

We occasionally have experienced delays in cormgetie development and introduction of new prodaats product enhancements, anc
could experience delays in the future. In additiarthe past, we have been unable to successfidhage product transitions from older to ne
products resulting in obsolete inventory. Our faglto successfully develop and introduce new prisdand technologies or identify new uses
existing or future products could result in rapidlclining average selling prices, reduced demanddr products or loss of market share, ar
which could harm our competitive position and camserevenue, gross margin and overall financisliits to suffer.

If we are unable to achieve market acceptance amdign wins for our products and technologies, owsults of operations and competit
position will be harmed

The success of our business depends to a sigriifiséent on our ability to achieve market acceptamfcour new products and enhancernr
to our existing products and identify and enter maarkets, such as smartphones, tablets and ottmdarsiconsumer electronic devices. *
markets for our products and technologies are cteriaed by unpredictable and sometimes rapidsshifthe popularity of products, often cat
by the publication of competitive industry benchknegsults, changes in pricing of dynamic randacsess memory devices and other chang
the total system cost of adll-boards, or AIBs, as well as by severe price cetitipn and by frequent new technology and proditcoductions
Broad market acceptance is difficult to achieve andh market acceptance, if achieved, is diffitolsustain due to intense competition
frequent new technology and product introductio@sir success in achieving marketing acceptancedeplend in part on our ability to cultiv
new industry relationships and improve the fundidy of our products as the number of interoetinected devices increases. If we dc
successfully achieve or maintain market acceptéorceur products and enhancements or identify aridrenew markets, our ability to comg
and maintain or increase revenues will suffer.

Additionally, there can be no assurance that tristry will continue to demand new products withpioved standards, features
performance. If our customers, original equipmeahuafacturers, or OEMs, original design manufacsjrer ODMs, addn card and motherboe
manufacturers, system builders and consumer efécsr@ompanies do not continue to design prodines require more advanced or effic
processors and/or the markets do not continuertmdd new products with increased performance, fesitéunctionality or standards, sales of
products could decline and the markets for our petgicould shrink. Decreased sales of our prodocthese markets could negatively impact
revenue and our financial results.
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We believe achieving design wins, which entailsilgwour existing and future products chosen fodivare components or subassem|
designed by OEMs, ODMSs, and AIB and motherboard ufenturers, is an integral part of our future sgscéOur OEM, ODM, and AIB ai
motherboard manufacturers' customers typicallydiice new system configurations as often as tweceygar, typically based on spring and
design cycles or in connection with trade showscokdingly, when our customers are making their gtesiecisions, our existing products n
have competitive performance levels or we must lfimatroduce new products in order to be included aur customers' new syst
configurations. This requires that we:

* anticipate the features and functionality that comrs and consumers will deme
» incorporate those features and functionalities pramucts that meet the exacting design requiresmafrur customer
e price our products competitively; &

* introduce products to the market within our custmstianited design cycle

If OEMs, ODMs, and AIB and motherboard manufactsirdo not include our products in their systemsy thvl typically not use oL
products in their systems until at least the nedigh configuration. Therefore, we endeavor to igvelose relationships with our OEMs
ODMs, in an attempt to better anticipate and addcestomer needs in new products so that we wilege design wins.

Our ability to achieve design wins also dependgant on our ability to identify and be compliantthvievolving industry standart
Unanticipated changes in industry standards cander our products incompatible with products deped by major hardware manufacturers
software developers. If our products are not imgliance with prevailing industry standards, we may be designed into our customers' pra
designs. However, to be compliant with changestlustry standards, we may have to invest sigmifitcane and resources to redesign
products which could negatively impact our grossgimaor operating results. If we are unable to eehinew design wins for existing or r
customers, we may lose market share and our opgnasults would be negatively impacted.

We depend on foundries to manufacture our produesd these third parties may not be able to obtainsoiccessfully implement hic
quality, leading-edge process technologies or othiee satisfy our manufacturing requirements, whietould harm our business

We do not manufacture the silicon wafers used far mroducts and do not own or operate a wafer ¢abdn facility. Instead, we ¢
dependent on industigading foundries, such as Taiwan Semiconductor Uféanturing Company Limited, or TSMC, to manufactuwer
semiconductor wafers using their fabrication equeptrand techniques. A substantial portion of oufevgaare supplied by TSMC. The foundr
which have limited capacity, also manufacture potsidor other semiconductor companies, includinges@f our competitors. Since we do
have longterm commitment contracts with any of these fourgjrthey do not have an obligation to provide ub any set pricing or minimu
guantity of product at any time except as may hwriged in a specific purchase order. Most of products are only manufactured by
foundry at a time. In times of high demand, thanfdries could choose to prioritize their capacity 6ther companies, reduce or elimit
deliveries to us, or increase the prices that tteyrge us. If we are unable to meet customer dérdaa to reduced or eliminated deliverie
have to increase the prices of our products, wéddose sales to customers, which would negatiirajyact our revenue and our reputation.

We use the most advanced manufacturing processdkegy appropriate for our products that is avaddbom our thirdparty foundries. As
result, we continuously evaluate the benefits afrating our products to smaller geometry proceshrelogies in order to improve performa
and reduce costs. Manufacturing process techredogre subject to rapid change and require signifiexpenditures for research
development, which could negatively impact our atiag expenses and gross margin. Our tpay foundries may not be able to develop, ol
or successfully implement high quality, leadiedge process technologies needed to manufactuggraducts profitably or on a timely basis. |
competitors (including those that own their own ofacturing facilities) may also develop high qualieadingedge process technologies ea
than our third-party foundries. If our thighrty foundries experience manufacturing inefficies, we may fail to achieve acceptable yielc
experience product delivery delays.

We have experienced difficulty in migrating to nemanufacturing processes in the past and, consdgueave suffered reduced yiel
delays in product deliveries and increased expknsds. For example, due to capacity constrainfBSMC of our 28 nanometer Kepler GPU
the first quarter of fiscal year 2013, we were uaab fulfill customer demand for our higind desktop GPU products, and as our sales miteg
to our mainstream desktop GPU products, revenuegyarst margins for the first quarter of fiscal y2@13 were negatively impacted compare
the prior quarter. We experienced continued 28 meater-supply constraints in the second quarteisoéf year 2013.
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Because the leatiine needed to establish strategic relationships méw manufacturing partners and achieve initiabpction could be ov
a year, we do not have an alternative source gblgupr our products. In addition, the time andoeffto qualify a new foundry would result
additional expense and diversion of resourcescanétl result in lost sales, any of which would rtegdy impact our financial results. We beli
that long-term market acceptance for our produdtk depend on reliable relationships with the thparty manufacturers we use to en:
adequate product supply and competitive pricingggpond to customer demand.

Failure to achieve expected manufacturing yields faur products could negatively impact our finandieesults and damage our reputation.

Manufacturing yields for our products are a functimf product design, which is developed largelyusy and process technology, wt
typically is proprietary to the manufacturer. Lovelgs may result from either product design or pesctechnology failure. We do not kno
yield problem exists until our design is manufaetur When a yield issue is identified, the prodsanalyzed and tested to determine the ¢
As a result, yield problems may not be identifiediluvell into the production process. Resolutidrnyi@ld problems requires cooperation by,
communication between, us and the manufactureraBecof our potentially limited access to wafemfiny capacity, decreases in manufactt
yields could result in an increase in our costs famde us to allocate our available product sumptyong our customers. Lower than expe
yields could potentially harm customer relationshipur reputation and our financial results.

Business disruptions could seriously harm our fuirevenue and financial condition and increase otwsts and expense

Our worldwide operations could be disrupted by Feprakes, telecommunications failures, power or wat®rtages, tsunamis, floo
hurricanes, typhoons, fires, extreme weather cmmdif medical epidemics or pandemics and otherralaty manmade disasters, catastrof
events or climate change. The occurrence of arthexfe business disruptions could result in sigaifidosses, seriously harm our revenue
financial condition, adversely affect our compeétiposition, increase our costs and expenses,eqdre substantial expenditures and recc
time in order to fully resume operations. Our cogte headquarters, and a portion of our researdhdamelopment activities, are locatec
California, and other critical business operatiangl some of our suppliers are located in Asia, negpr earthquake faults known for seis
activity. In addition, a majority of our principahformation technology, or IT, data centers areated in California, making our operatit
vulnerable to natural disasters or other businessigtions occurring in this geographical area. Wenufacture of product components, the
assembly of our products and other critical operatiare concentrated in certain geographic locatimeluding Taiwan, China and Korea. |
operations could be adversely affected if manufaagy logistics or other operations in these |lamadi are disrupted for any reason, inclu
natural disasters, high heat events or water shestainformation technology system failures, militactions or economic, business, la
environmental, public health, regulatory or poétiéssues. The ultimate impact on us, our significuppliers and our general infrastructur
being located near major earthquake faults andgbe@msolidated in certain geographical areas is\owk. However, in the event of a mz
earthquake or other natural disaster or catasttaplent, our revenue, profitability and financiahdition could suffer.

A decline in demand in certain end-user markets taecrease the demand for our products and harnt cesults of operations.

Our customer base includes companies in a wideerah@nduser markets, but we generate a significant amofintvenue from sales
customers in the communications- and computereeladustries. Within these ender markets, a large portion of our revenue i®gead fror
sales to customers in the cell phone, tablet anchBRets, including professional workstations. dexin one or several of these emskr marke:
could harm demand for our products and our resfilegperations and financial condition. These dedinould be large and sudden. Since PC
phone and tablet manufacturers often build invéesoduring periods of anticipated growth, they nbayleft with excess inventories if grov
slows or if they incorrectly forecast product triéiogs. In these cases, these manufacturers mayptprsuspend substantially all purchase
additional inventory from suppliers like us untilefr excess inventory has been absorbed, whichdMoave a negative impact on our finar
results.
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We sell our products to a small number of customargl our business could suffer if we lose any oé#e customers.

We receive a significant amount of our revenue feotimited number of customers. One customer attesufor 13% of our total revenue
fiscal year 2013 and 11% of our total revenuesndl year 2012 and another customer accountedférdf our total revenue in fiscal year 20
Approximately 40% of our accounts receivable badan@s from three customers as of January 27, 2818,20% of our accounts receive
balance was from one customer as of January 22.20% maintain an allowance for doubtful accountsestimated losses resulting from
inability of our customers to make required payrarid obtain credit insurance over the purchasieditcextended to certain customers. Ir
future, we may have to record additional reservesriie-offs and/or defer revenue on certain sales traimsectvhich could negatively impact
financial results and as a result of the tighterohghe credit markets, we may not be able to aeqeiiedit insurance on the credit we exter
these customers or in amounts that we deem sufficie

Sales to our largest customers have fluctuatedfisigntly from period to period primarily due toghiming and number of design wins v
each customer, as well as the continued diversificaof our customer base as we expand into nevketsgrand will likely continue to fluctue
dramatically in the future. Our operating resuttstie foreseeable future will continue to dependales to a relatively small number of custon
as well as the ability of these customers to gelipcts that incorporate our products. In the ittinese customers may decide not to purcha:
products at all, purchase fewer products than dligyn the past, or alter their purchasing patténrsome other way, particularly because:

» substantially all of our sales are made on a pwelader basis, which permits our customers toetaobange or delay product purct
commitments with little or no notice to us and witih penalty;

e our customers may develop their own soluti

e our customers may purchase products from our catapgtol

» our customers may discontinue sales or lose mahkgt in the markets for which they purchase ocedymts

The loss of any of our large customers or a sigaifi reduction in sales we make to them wouldyikelrm our financial condition and resi
of operations and any difficulties in collectingcaants receivable could harm our operating resuitsfinancial condition.

If we fail to appropriately scale our operations isponse to changes in demand for our existing guots or to the demand for new produ
requested by our customers, our business and pabifiity could be harmed.

To achieve our business objectives, it may be macggrom time to time for us to expand or conti@at operations. In the future, we may
be able to scale our workforce and operationssunfficiently timely manner to respond effectivety¢hanges in demand for our existing proc
or to the demand for new products requested byastomers. In that event, we may be unable to owapetitive challenges or exploit poter
market opportunities, and our current or futureitess could be materially and adversely affectathv@rsely, if we expand our operations
workforce too rapidly in anticipation of increasgeimand for our products, and such demand does aterialize at the pace at which we expet
the rate of increase in our costs and operatingresgs may exceed the rate of increase in our reyarhich would adversely affect our result
operations. In addition, if such demand does ndenize at the pace which we expect, we may heired to scale down our business thrc
expense and headcount reductions as well as yacditsolidations or closures that could resulteistnucturing charges that would materially
adversely affect our results of operations. Becawnary of our expenses are fixed in the shema or are incurred in advance of anticipatedss
we may hot be able to decrease our expensesnmetytimanner to offset any decrease in customer dénmficustomer demand does not incr
as anticipated, our profitability could be adveys#ffected due to our higher expense levels.

Our past growth has placed, and any future lemm growth is expected to continue to place, aiigant strain on our managem
personnel, systems and resources. To implementwuent business and product plans, we will needotginue to expand, train, manage
motivate our workforce. All of these endeavorsuieg) substantial management effort. If we are umabl effectively manage our expanc
operations, we may be unable to scale our businegiskly enough to meet competitive challenges @l@k potential market opportunities,
conversely, we may scale our business too quiaktithe rate of increase in our costs and expenagserteed the rate of increase in our reve
either of which would harm our results of operasion
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Our revenue may fluctuate while our operating exsas are relatively fixed, which makes our resulifidult to predict and could cause ol
results to fall short of expectations.

Our operating expenses are relatively fixed angelgrindependent of revenue. Therefore, it is diffi for us to accurately forecast profits
losses in any particular period. Our operatingesges, which are comprised of research and develdpexpenses and sales, general
administrative expenses, represented 36.9%, 35¥32.6% of our total revenue for fiscal years 2012 and 2011, respectively. Since
often recognize a substantial portion of our reeeimuthe last month of each quarter, it is alsfidift to accurately forecast revenue and we
not be able to adjust our operating expensesimelyt manner in response to any unanticipated newesmortfalls in any quarter. Further, som
our operating expenses, like stdzksed compensation expense, can only be adjusgedadonger period of time and cannot be reducenhgla
quarter. If we are unable to reduce operating es@® quickly in response to any revenue shortfalls, financial results will be negativ
impacted.

Any one or more of the risks discussed in this AairiReport on Form 18- or other factors could prevent us from achieving expecte
future revenue or net income. Accordingly, we badi¢hat period-tgeeriod comparisons of our results of operationsikhoot be relied upon
an indication of future performance. Similarly, ttesults of any quarterly or full fiscal year petiare not necessarily indicative of results t
expected for a subsequent quarter or a full figealr. As a result, it is possible that in some tgarour operating results could be below
expectations of securities analysts or investolschivcould cause the trading price of our commarlksto decline. We believe that our quart
and annual results of operations may continue t@ffected by a variety of factors that could haror cevenue, gross profit and results
operations.

Because our gross margin for any period dependsamumber of factors, our failure to forecast changen any of these factors col
adversely affect our gross margin.

We are focused on improving our gross margin. @asgmargin for any period depends on a numbeaatbfs, including:

« the mix of our products so
» average selling price

* introduction of new product

e product transition:

» sales discount

* unexpected pricing actions by our competit
» the cost of product components;

» the yield of wafers produced by the foundries thahufacture our produc

If we do not correctly forecast the impact of ariythe relevant factors on our business, there nwyba any actions we can take or we
not be able to take any possible actions in timectanteract any negative impact on our gross mardgimaddition, if we are unable to meet
gross margin target for any period or the targebgeanalysts, the trading price of our commonlstoay decline.

Our business is cyclical in nature and has experiedl severe downturns that have harmed, and mayhia future harm, our business at
financial results.

Our business is directly affected by market condgiin the highly cyclical semiconductor industifne semiconductor industry has b
adversely affected by many factors, including thebgl downturn, ongoing efforts by our customerseduce their spending, diminished prot
demand, increased inventory levels, lower averafimg prices, uncertainty regarding lotgrm growth rates and underlying financial heatd
increased competition. These factors, could, amathgr things, limit our ability to maintain or irease our sales or recognize revenue and il
adversely affect our business, operating resuliisfia@ancial condition. If our actions to reducer ayperating expenses to sufficiently offset tt
factors when they occur are unsuccessful, our tipgreesults will suffer.

Our stock price continues to be volatile and inverst may suffer losses

Our stock has at times experienced substantiak pridatility as a result of variations between actual and anticipated financial rest
announcements by us and our competitors, or umegrtabout current global economic conditions. Tieck market as a whole also
experienced extreme price and volume fluctuatibas have affected the market price of many tectgyotmmpanies in ways that may have t
unrelated to these companies' operating performance
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In the past, securities class action litigation bfisn been brought against a company followindooksr of volatility in the market price of
securities. Due to changes in the volatility of stock price, we have been in the past and ma lieei future the target of securities litigat
Such lawsuits generally result in the diversionmainagement's time and attention away from busioessations, which could harm our busin
In addition, the costs of defense and any damaggesting from litigation, a ruling against us, osettlement of the litigation could adversely al
our cash flow and financial results.

Our failure to estimate customer demand properlyutsbadversely affect our financial results.

We manufacture our products based on forecastauisibmer demand in order to have shorter shipmext tenes and quicker delive
schedules for our customers. As a result, we malg inventories for anticipated periods of growthich do not occur or may build invent
anticipating demand for a product that does noenslize. In forecasting demand, we make multigsuanptions any of which may prove tc
incorrect. Situations that may result in excesslmolete inventory include:

» changes in business and economic conditions, imgdutbwnturns in the semiconductor industry andigrall economy

« changes in consumer confidence caused by changewiket conditions, including changes in the credérket, expectations 1
inflation, and energy prices;

« if there were a sudden and significant decreaslemand for our produc

» if there were a higher incidence of inventory obsoénce because of rapidly changing technologygastdmer requiremen

» if we fail to estimate customer demand properlydor older products as our newer products aredotred; o

« if our competition were to take unexpected competipricing action:

Any inability to sell products to which we have déd resources could harm our business. In addit@ancellation or deferral of custor
purchase orders could result in our holding exéegsntory, which could adversely affect our grosargn and restrict our ability to fu
operations. Additionally, because we often sellilasgantial portion of our products in the last nioot each quarter, we may not be able to re
our inventory purchase commitments in a timely neginin response to customer cancellations or dd$ervde could be subject to exces:
obsolete inventories and be required to take cporeding inventory writedowns and/or a reduction in average selling pritgsowth slows o
does not materialize, or if we incorrectly foregasiduct demand, which could negatively impactfomancial results.

Conversely, if we underestimate our customers' denfier our products, our third-party manufacturpaytners may not have adequate lead-
time or capacity to increase production for us nirgamhat we may not be able to obtain sufficienteimtory to fill our customers' orders o
timely basis. Even if we are able to increase petdno levels to meet customer demand, we may naibte to do so in a cost effective or tirr
manner. Inability to fulfill our customers' ordess a timely basis, or at all, could damage ouramst relationships, result in lost revenue, cai
loss in market share, impact our customer relatignssor damage our reputation, any of which codhesasely impact our business.

We may not be able to realize the potential finaadadr strategic benefits of business acquisitionsstrategic investments and we may nol
able to successfully integrate acquisition targetghich could hurt our ability to grow our businesglevelop new products or sell our products.

We have acquired and invested in other busineha¢sffered products, services and technologigsihaelieve will help expand or enha
our existing products and business. Most recemtéycompleted our acquisition of Icera Inc., an wator of baseband processors for 3G an
cellular phones and tablets. Such a transactionrselve significant integration challenges andrthcan be no assurance that gequisition du
diligence will have identified all possible issw®l risks that might arise with respect to the itipn. If we are unable to timely and succesy
integrate the acquired operations, product lines tachnology of Icera, we may not be able to realiee expected benefits of the acquisi
which could adversely affect our business plansapetating results.

We may enter into future acquisitions of, or inmesits in, businesses, in order to complement carekpur current businesses or enter il
new business market. Negotiations associated withcguisition or strategic investment could diveenagement's attention and other com
resources. Any of the following risks associatethwpast or future acquisitions or investments caaigair our ability to grow our busine
develop new products or sell our products, andnaltely could have a negative impact on our growtbus financial results:
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» difficulty in combining the technology, productqeyations or workforce of the acquired businesh witr busines

« difficulty in operating in a new or multiple newdations

» disruption of our ongoing businesses or the ongbiumjness of the company we invest in or acc

« difficulty in realizing the potential financial atrategic benefits of the transacti

« difficulty in maintaining uniform standards, conspprocedures and polici

« difficulty integrating the target's accounting, rmgement information, human resources and otherrashngtive system

« diversion of capital and other resour:

» assumption of liabilitie:

* incurring acquisitiorrelated costs or amortization costs for acquiréahigible assets that could impact our operatinglts

» diversion of resources and unanticipated expensgglting from litigation arising from potential @ctual business acquisitions
investments;

» potential failure of the due diligence processeglémtify significant issues with product qualigrchitecture and development, or e
and financial contingencies, among other things;

» difficulties in entering into new markets in whigre have limited or no experience and where congrstih such markets have stror
positions;

e potential inability to obtain, or obtain in a tingainanner, approvals from governmental authoritiésich could delay or prevent st
acquisitions or investments; and

* impairment of relationships with employees, vendord customers, or the loss of any of our key eygas, vendors or customers or

target's key employees, vendors or customersresuét of our acquisition or investment.

In addition, the consideration for any future asgion could be paid in cash, shares of our comstonk, the issuance of convertible ¢
securities or a combination of cash, convertiblet@d common stock. If we make an investment ghea use cash to pay for all or a portio
an acquisition, our cash reserves would be redwdddh could negatively impact the growth of our ipess or our ability to develop n
products. However, if we pay the consideration wgitlares of common stock, or convertible debentdinesholdings of our existing stockhold
would be diluted. A significant decline in the tiragl price of our common stock would make the dilotio our stockholders more extreme
could negatively impact our ability to pay the ddesation with shares of common stock or convestibebentures. We cannot forecast
number, timing or size of future strategic investilseor acquisitions, or the effect that any sucregtiments or acquisitions might have on
operations or financial results.

System security risks, data protection breachederyattacks and systems integration issues could disropr internal operations, and ar
such disruption could reduce our expected revenimerease our expenses, damage our reputation andesdely affect our stock pric.

Experienced computer programmers and hackers magbleeto penetrate our security controls and misap@te or compromise ¢
confidential information or that of third partieseate system disruptions or cause shutdowns. Cemptogrammers and hackers also ma
able to develop and deploy viruses, worms and athgicious software programs that attack our prtslae otherwise exploit any secu
vulnerabilities of our products. The costs to ugliminate or alleviate cyber or other securitylpems, bugs, viruses, worms, malicious soft\
programs and security vulnerabilities could be ificemt, and our efforts to address these problemay not be successful and could resu
interruptions, delays, cessation of service ans tdexisting or potential customers that may ingpedr sales, manufacturing, distribution or ¢
critical functions.

We manage and store various proprietary informatind sensitive or confidential data relating to business and third party busin
Breaches of our security measures or the accidlerss| inadvertent disclosure or unapproved dissatioin of proprietary information or sensit
or confidential data about us or our partners atamers, including the potential loss or disclosafreuch information or data as a result of fr.
trickery or other forms of deception, could expase our partners and customers or the individuffiécted to a risk of loss or misuse of -
information, result in litigation and potential hidity for us, damage our brand and reputationtheovise harm our business. In addition, the
and operational consequences of implementing fudhta protection measures could be significant.example, in July 2012, unauthorized t|
parties gained access to certain user informatioous online forums. We have strengthened securin effort to minimize future attacks.
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However, hackers may continue to target our seceontrols in the future, and we cannot guararnie¢ dur security measures will be abl
prevent future breaches of our website and/or lettan our products.

Portions of our IT infrastructure also may expec&rnnterruptions, delays or cessations of servic@roduce errors in connection w
systemic failures, systems integration or migratamk that takes place from time to time. We may b successful in implementing new syst
and transitioning data, which could cause busitéssiptions and be more expensive, time consundigguptive and resourdetensive. Suc
disruptions could adversely impact our ability tdfifl orders and interrupt other processes. Dethgales, lower margins or lost custon
resulting from these disruptions could adverselgafour financial results, stock price and repatat

We may not be able to attract and retain qualifiethployees which could negatively impact our busies

Our future success and ability to compete are anbiatly dependent on our ability to identify, hirieain and retain highly qualified k
personnel. The market for key employees in thbrtelogy industry can be competitive. None of oety kemployees is bound by an employn
agreement, meaning our relationships with all af key employees are at will. The loss of the smwiof any of our key employees withou
adequate replacement or our inability to hire nenpleyees as needed could delay our product deveopefforts, harm our ability to sell
products or otherwise negatively impact our busines

We are dependent on third parties for assemblytitesand packaging of our products, which reducearacontrol over our product delivel
schedule, product quantity or product qualit

Our products are assembled, tested and packageddependent subcontractors, such as Advanced Seduictor Engineering, In
ChipPAC, JSI Logistics, Ltd., King Yuan ElectroniCe. and Siliconware Precision Industries Co. l&sl.a result, we do not directly control
product delivery schedules, product quantity, oodpict quality. All of these subcontractors assembést and package products for c
companies, including some of our competitors. &imee do not have longgrm agreements with our subcontractors, when ddnfar
subcontractors to assemble, test or package pduttigh, our subcontractors may decide to pimerithe orders of other customers over
orders. Since the time required to qualify a défe subcontractor to assemble, test or packageroducts can be lengthy, if we have to fir
replacement subcontractor we could experiencefgignt delays in shipments of our products, prodimirtages, a decrease in the quality o
products, or an increase in product cost. Any pcbdhortages or quality assurance problems coclgdse the costs of manufacture, asseml
testing of our products, which could cause our gjroargin to decline.

We rely on thirdparty vendors to supply software development tdolss for the development of our new products ane may be unable
obtain the tools necessary to develop or enhance pe existing products.

We rely on thirdparty software development tools to assist us m dlesign, simulation and verification of new praguor produc
enhancements. To bring new products or productrex@maents to market in a timely manner, or at &l nged software development tools tha
sophisticated enough or technologically advancexigin to complete our design, simulations and \eaiions. In the past, we have experiel
delays in the introduction of products as a restthe inability of then available software devetmgnt tools to fully simulate the complex feat
and functionalities of our products. In the fututiee design requirements necessary to meet constemeands for more features and gre
functionality from our products may exceed the tdlfiges of available software development tooldnavailability of software development to
may result in our missing design cycles or losimegidn wins, either of which could result in a lagsmarket share or negatively impact
operating results.

Because of the importance of software developmmis tto the development and enhancement of ourupteda critical component of ¢
product development efforts is our partnershipsiwgders in the computarded design industry, including Cadence Desigrtedys, Inc. an
Synopsys, Inc. We have invested significant resesuto develop relationships with these industrylées and have often assisted them ir
definition of their new products. We believe thatrfiing these relationships and utilizing ngetaeration development tools to design, sim
and verify our products will help us remain at fbeefront of the 3D graphics, communications antiveeking segments and develop products
utilize leadingedge technology on a rapid basis. If these relsghis are not successful, we may be unable to clevedw products or prodt
enhancements in a timely manner, which could reésw@atloss of market share, a decrease in revenaeegative impact on our operating results.
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If our products contain significant defects, ourrfancial results could be negatively impacted, oeputation could be damaged and we cc
lose market share.

Our products are complex and may contain defectsxperience failures due to any number of issuedesign, fabrication, packagil
materials and/or use within a system. If any of products or technologies contains a defect, caitnipigt issue or other error, we may have
invest additional research and development efftrtéind and correct the issue. Such efforts cadileert our engineers' attention from
development of new products and technologies anftiéncrease our operating costs and reduce ogsgr@argin. In addition, an error or defec
new products or releases or related software driefter commencement of commercial shipments coeddlt in failure to achieve marl
acceptance or loss of design wins. Also, we maseheired to reimburse customers, including ouramusts' costs to repair or replace produc
the field. A product recall or a significant numlmémproduct returns could be expensive, could damag reputation, could result in the shifting
business to our competitors and could result igaiton against us. Costs associated with corrgalifects, errors, bugs or other issues cou
significant and could materially harm our finanagiesults. During fiscal years 2011, 2010 and 20@9recorded net warranty charges of $4
million against cost of revenue to cover anticipatustomer warranty, repair, return, replacemerd ather costs arising from a we
die/packaging material set used in certain versadrmir previous generation MCP and GPU productsi iis notebook configurations and ship
after July 2008. Please see the risk entitled “WWesabject to litigation which, if determined adsely to us, could harm our businessf furthel
information regarding this product defect.

We are subject to risks associated with internatboperations which may harm our business.

We conduct our business worldwide. Our semicoraduesiafers are manufactured, assembled, tested arichged by thirgharties locate
outside of the United States and other Americag dnerated 74% 78% and 83% of our revenue for fiscal years 2@®,2 and 201
respectively, from sales to customers outside thiged States and other Americas. As of Januarp@¥3, we had offices in 16 countries out
of the United States. The manufacture, assemisy and packaging of our products outside of theedrStates, operation of offices outside o
United States, and sales to customers internalyosiabjects us to a number of risks, including:

» international economic and political conditionsglsas political tensions between countries in wivehdo busines

* unexpected changes in, or impositions of, legigatir regulatory requirement

« complying with a variety of foreign law

» differing legal standards with respect to protatid intellectual property and employment pract

» local business and cultural factors that diffemfrour normal standards and practices, includingnless practices that we are prohib
from engaging in by the Foreign Corrupt Practices @d other anticorruption laws and regulations;

* inadequate local infrastructure that could resuliusiness disruptior

» exporting or importing issues related to exporingport restrictions, tariffs, quotas and other &&arriers and restriction

» financial risks such as longer payment cyclesijaliffy in collecting accounts receivable and flittans in currency exchange ra

* imposition of additional taxes and penall

* increased costs due to imposition of climate chaegalations, such as carbon taxes, fuel or enasgs, and pollution limits; a

» other factors beyond our control such as terrorgrher attack, civil unrest, war and disee

If sales to any of our customers outside of thetééhStates and other Americas are delayed or daddetcause of any of the above fac
our revenue may be negatively impacted.

Our international operations in China, Finland, e Germany, Hong Kong, India, Italy, Japan, KprRassia, Singapore, Swed
Switzerland, United Arab Emirates, Taiwan and theitédl Kingdom are subject to many of the aboveedistisks. Difficulties with ot
international operations, including finding appliage staffing and office space, may divert managgimeattention and other resources, ar
which could negatively impact our operating results

23




Table of Contents

Legal and regulatory requirements differ amongsplidtions worldwide. Violations of these laws aedulations could result in fines; crimi
sanctions against us, our officers, or our emplsypeohibitions on the conduct of our business; dathage to our reputation. Although we t
policies, controls, and procedures designed torerampliance with foreign laws, many of these |lawd regulations are ambiguous and are
interpreted and enforced in unpredictable ways.

The economic conditions in our primary overseasketar particularly in Asia, may negatively impawet tdemand for our products abroad.
of our international sales to date have been dematen in United States dollars. Accordingly, arréase in the value of the United States d
relative to foreign currencies could make our pasldess competitive in international markets a@uiee us to assume the risk of denoming
certain sales in foreign currencies. We anticipht these factors will impact our business to eatgr degree as we further expand
international business activities.

Our investment portfolio may become impaired byetairation of the capital markets.

Our cash equivalent and marketable securities gdirths of January 27, 2013 consisted of cash asth equivalents, commercial pa
mortgage-backed securities issued by Governmgoisored enterprises, money market funds andsgelrities of corporations, municipalit
and the United States government and its agent¥esfollow an established investment policy and aeguidelines, designed to prese
principal, minimize risk, and monitor and help méte our exposure to interest rate and credit ridke policy sets forth credit quality stand:
and limits our exposure to any one issuer, as a®lbur maximum exposure to various asset classdsaavariety of financial instrumer
consisting principally of cash and cash equivaleotenmercial paper, mortgage-backed securitieeisfly Governmergponsored enterpris
money market funds and debt securities of corpmmatimunicipalities and the United States goverrirard its agencies.

Should financial market conditions worsen in théufe, investments in some financial instruments rpage risks arising from marl
liquidity and credit concerns. In addition, any et@ration of the capital markets could cause dineoincome and expense to vary fi
expectations. As of January 27, 2013, we had nenahtmpairment charges associated with our stesrt investment portfolio, and although
believe our current investment portfolio has véttjel risk of material impairment, we cannot pradigture market conditions or market liquid
or credit availability, and can provide no assueatiat our investment portfolio will remain matdgiainimpaired.

Risks Related to Regulatory, Legal, Our Common Stdcand Other Matters
We are subject to litigation which, if determinedieersely to us, could harm our business.

For example, we are engaged in litigation withtipa related to our acquisition of 3dfx in 200h. dddition, in September, October
November 2008, several putative securities clasratawsuits were filed against for alleged deseict our previous generation MCP and (
products. As of January 27, 2013, we recordeda toimulative net warranty charge of $475.9 milliohwhich $466.4 million has been char
against cost of revenue, to cover anticipated ocostowarranty, repair, return, replacement and otlests arising from a weak die/packag
material set used in certain versions of our previgeneration MCP and GPU products shipped afthr 2008 and used in notebc
configuration. The previous generation MCP and Gitducts that are impacted were included in a nunolbenotebook products that wi
shipped and sold in significant quantities. Certaitebook configurations of these MCP and GPU ptwdare failing in the field at higher tr
normal rates. Testing suggests a weak materialfs#e/package combination, system thermal managedesigns, and customer use pattern
contributing factors for these failures. We haweked with our customers to develop and have maediable for download a software drivel
cause the system fan to begin operation at the qagvap of the system and reduce the thermal streghese chips. We have also recomme
to our customers that they consider changing therthl management of the products in their notetsyskem designs. Although we believe
issue has been nearly fully remediated, we remamnaitted to fully support our customers in theipa& and replacement of these impa
products that fail, and their other efforts to gutie the consequences of these failures. We cent;mnot see any abnormal failure rates in
systems using NVIDIA products other than certaitebook configurations. However, we are continuiogest and otherwise investigate o
products. There can be no assurance that we wiltlisoover defects in other products. Please tefédote 13 of the Notes to the Consolid:
Financial Statements in Part IV, Item 15 of thisn&al Report on Form 10-K for further details onsiadawsuits.

24




Table of Contents

There can be no assurance that any litigation tichwive are a party will be resolved in our favonyAclaim that is successfully decided again:
may cause us to pay substantial damages, inclymingive damages, and other related fees or praxefriom selling or importing certain of
products. Regardless of whether lawsuits are reddlv our favor or if we are the plaintiff or thefdndant in the litigation, any lawsuits to wt
we are a party will likely be expensive and timasaming to defend or resolve. Such lawsuits coeddlt in the diversion of management's 1
and attention away from business operations, whimlld harm our business. Such lawsuits could alwnhour relationships with existi
customers and result in the diversion of manageménte and attention away from business operatiwhgch could harm our business. Cost
defense and any damages resulting from litigationyling against us, or a settlement of the litatcould adversely affect our cash flow
financial results.

Our ability to compete will be harmed if we are upla to adequately protect our intellectual property

We rely primarily on a combination of patents, rathrks, trade secrets, employee and tbéxdy nondisclosure agreements, and licer
arrangements to protect our intellectual propertthe United States and internationally. We haveenous patents issued, allowed and pendi
the United States and in foreign jurisdictions. @atents and pending patent applications primaeiigte to our products and the technology
in connection with our products. We also rely otetinational treaties, organizations and foreigrslévprotect our intellectual property. The |i
of certain foreign countries in which our produate or may be manufactured or sold, including weriocountries in Asia, may not protect
products or intellectual property rights to the samxtent as the laws of the United States. Thisesalte possibility of piracy of our technolt
and products more likely. We continuously assesstimdr and where to seek formal protection for paldir innovations and technologies base
such factors as:

» the commercial significance of our operations amdammpetitors’ operations in particular countaes regions
e the location in which our products are manufacty
» our strategic technology or product directionsiffedent countries; ar

» the degree to which intellectual property laws eaigd are meaningfully enforced in different juitstbns

Our pending patent applications and any future iegiibns may not be approved. In addition, anyeédgspatents may not provide us v
competitive advantages or may be challenged bg farties.

Changes in United States tax legislation regardiagr foreign earnings could adversely impact our bosss.

Currently, a majority of our revenue is generatemnf customers located outside the United States,aasignificant portion of our asse
including employees, are located outside the UnBedes. United States income taxes and foreigimhalding taxes have not been providet
undistributed earnings for certain noimited States subsidiaries, because such earniagatanded to be indefinitely reinvested in themion:
of those subsidiaries. Throughout the period ekRient Obama’'s administration, the White House graposed various international
measures, some of which, if enacted into law, waulbdstantially reduce our ability to defer Uniteét8s taxes on such indefinitely reinve:
non-United States earnings, eliminate certain tax déolg until foreign earnings are repatriated to theted States and/or otherwise cause
total tax cost of U.S. multinational corporationdricrease. If these or similar proposals are domsd into legislation in the current or futureaye
(s), they could have a negative impact on our firrposition and results of operations.

Our operating results may be adversely affectedd are subject to unexpected tax liabilities.

We are subject to taxation by a number of taxintp@ties both in the United States and throughbetworld. Tax rates vary among
jurisdictions in which we operate. Significant judgnt is required in determining our provision for income taxes as there are many transac
and calculations where the ultimate tax determamais uncertain. Although we believe our tax estenare reasonable, any of the below c
cause our effective tax rate to be materially défe than that which is reflected in historicalonte tax provisions and accruals:

» the jurisdictions in which profits are determinede earned and tax
» adjustments to estimated taxes upon finalizatiovaobus tax return
» changes in available tax cred

e changes in stockased compensation expel
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» changes in tax laws, the interpretation of tax laiker in the United States or abroad or the isseiaf new interpretative account
guidance related to transactions and calculatidrerevthe tax treatment was previously uncertaid; a

» the resolution of issues arising from tax audithwarious tax authoritie

Should additional taxes be assessed as a resaittyobf the above, our operating results could besely affected. In addition, our futi
effective tax rate could be adversely affected ignges in the mix of earnings in countries wittiedihg statutory tax rates, changes in tax lav
changes in the interpretation of tax laws.

Litigation to defend against alleged infringement mtellectual property rights or to enforce our tellectual property rights and the outcor
of such litigation could result in substantial casto us.

We expect that as the number of issued hardwaresaftédare patents increases and as competitiongifies, the volume of intellectt
property infringement claims and lawsuits may iase We may in the future become involved in latgsar other legal proceedings allec
patent infringement or other intellectual propeithts violations by us or that we have agreedhtiemnify our customers for certain claim:
infringement.

An unfavorable ruling in any such intellectual peoy related litigation could include significardrdages, invalidation of a patent or famil'
patents, indemnification of customers, paymenbsf profits, or, when it has been sought, injurectigief.

In addition, in the future, we may need to commditigation or other legal proceedings in order to:

» assert claims of infringement of our intellectusdjperty
» enforce our paten
e protect our trade secrets or knbaw; ol

» determine the enforceability, scope and validityhef propriety rights of othe

If we have to initiate litigation in order to prateour intellectual property, our operating expansgy increase which could negatively im|
our operating results. Our failure to effectivelptect our intellectual property could harm ouribass.

If infringement claims are made against us or @adpcts are found to infringe a third parties' pata intellectual property, we or one of
indemnified customers may have to seek a licenseetdhird parties' patent or other intellectuaparty rights. However, we may not be abl
obtain licenses at all or on terms acceptable tpanmscularly from our competitors. If we or oneafr indemnified customers is unable to obt:
license from a third party for technology that wee wr that is used in one of our products, we cbeldubject to substantial liabilities or hav
suspend or discontinue the manufacture and sab@efor more of our products. We may also have dkemoyalty or other payments, or ci
license our technology. If these arrangements ateconcluded on commercially reasonable terms,bmsiness could be negatively impac
Furthermore, the indemnification of a customer imagyease our operating expenses which could neggtimpact our operating results.

We are subject to the risks of owning real property

During fiscal year 2009, we purchased real properyanta Clara, California that includes approxehe25 acres of land and ten commel
buildings and expect to break ground on a new mglébr our corporate headquarters campus in Salatia in fiscal year 2014. We also own
property in China and India. We have limited exgece in the ownership and management of real propad are subject to the risks of owr
real property, including:

» the possibility of environmental contamination dhe costs associated with mitigating any envirortadesroblems

e adverse changes in the value of these propertigsialinterest rate changes, changes in the markehich the property is located,

other factors;

» the risk of loss if we decide to sell and are ¢ do recover all capitalized co:

* increased cash commitments for the planned cornistnuef our Santa Clara camp

» the possible need for structural improvements éepto comply with zoning, seismic and other leyalegulatory requiremen
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» increased operating expenses for the buildinge@ptoperty or bot
» possible disputes with third parties, such as r®ghg owners or others, related to the buildingthe property or both; a
» the risk of financial loss in excess of amountsered by insurance, or uninsured risks, such ab#secaused by damage to the build

as a result of earthquakes, floods and or otheraladisasters.

Expensing employee equity compensation adverseigcés our operating results and could also adveysaffect our competitive position.

Since inception, we have used equity through ouwntggncentive plans and our employee stock purehpsogram as a fundamer
component of our compensation packages. We betteatethese programs directly motivate our employaed, through the use of vesti
encourage our employees to remain with us.

We record compensation expense for stock opti@stricted stock units and our employee stock psehdan using the fair value of th
awards in accordance with generally accepted aditmumprinciples in United States of America, or UGAAP. Stockbased compensati
expense was $136.7 million, $136.4 million and $4Qdillion for fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 201Xkpectively, related to ogeing vesting ¢
equity awards, which negatively impacted our opegatesults.

To the extent that expensing employee equity cosgt@n makes it more expensive to grant stock pptend restricted stock units ol
continue to have an employee stock purchase progvarmay decide to incur increased cash compemsatists. In addition, actions that we r
take to reduce stodiased compensation expense that may be more siagreany actions our competitors may implement ag make
difficult to attract retain and motivate employe®djich could adversely affect our competitive positas well as our business and oper:
results.

We may be required to record a charge to earninfystir goodwill or amortizable intangible assets lmege impaired, which could negative
impact our operating results.

Under U.S. GAAP, we review our amortizable intatgilssets and goodwill for impairment when eventshanges in circumstances indic
the carrying value may not be recoverable. Goodwitested for impairment at least annually. Theyiag value of our goodwill or amortizat
assets from acquisitions may not be recoverablgaltectors such as a decline in stock price andketaapitalization, reduced estimates of fu
cash flows and slower growth rates in our industrin any of our business units. Estimates of iash flows are based on an updated teng-
financial outlook of our operations. However, atfperformance in the near-term or lotegim could be materially different from these fasts
which could impact future estimates. For examglene of our business units does not meet its texrar-and longeterm forecasts, the goodv
assigned to the business unit could be impaired &g be required to record a charge to earningaiirfinancial statements during a perio
which an impairment of our goodwill or amortizalodangible assets is determined to exist, which meyatively impact our results of operatic

Our failure to comply with any applicable environmaal regulations could result in a range of consegjuces, including fines, suspension
production, excess inventory, sales limitations,dacriminal and civil liabilities.

We are subject to various state, federal and iatemal laws and regulations governing the envirentnincluding restricting the presenci
certain substances in electronic products and rgagkiaducers of those products financially respdaditr the collection, treatment, recycling
disposal of those products. Although our managemgstems are designed to maintain compliance,ameat assure you that we have bee
will be at all times in complete compliance withclulaws and regulations. If we violate or fail tongply with any of them, a range
consequences could result, including fines, impgprt restrictions, sales limitations, criminalagivil liabilities or other sanctions. We co
also be held liable for any and all consequencsigrout of exposure to hazardous materials usteded, released, disposed of by us or lo
at, under or emanating from our facilities or otBevironmental or natural resource damage.

Environmental laws are complex, change frequenily laave tended to become more stringent over thoeexample, the European Un
and China are two among a growing number of jucigslis that have enacted in recent years resmigton the use of lead, among o
chemicals, in electronic products. These regulataifect semiconductor packaging. There is a higk the cost, quality and manufacturing yi
of lead-free products may be less favorable contp&oelead-based products or that the transitiofesmfree products may produce sud
changes in demand, which may result in excess towen
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There is also a movement to improve the transpsgrand accountability concerning the supply of méteicoming from the conflict zones
and around the Democratic Republic of Congo. Ne®. Uegislation includes disclosure requirementsamrging the use of “conflictmineral
mined from the Democratic Republic of Congo andijg countries. The implementation of these regyaents could affect the sourcing
availability of minerals used in the manufacturesefmiconductor devices. As a result, there may balga limited pool of suppliers who prov
conflict-free metals, and we cannot assure you that webeiible to obtain products in sufficient quantitiest competitive prices. Furthermc
we may incur additional costs associated with cgimplwith these disclosure requirements, includiogts related to determining the sourc
any “conflict” minerals in our products. Also, since our supplgichs complex, we may face reputational challerngi#s our customers and otl
stockholders if we are unable to sufficiently werifie origins for all metals used in our produ@sme customers may require that all of
products are certified to be conflict-free; if wenoot satisfy these customers, they may choosenpetaor's products.

Future environmental legal requirements may becoree stringent or costly and our compliance costs fgotential liabilities arising fro
past and future releases of, or exposure to, hagarslibstances may harm our business and our tieputa

While we believe that we have adequate internal ttohover financial reporting, if we or our indepettent registered public accountit
firm determines that we do not, our reputation mhg adversely affected and our stock price may atex!

Section 404 of the Sarban@sdey Act of 2002 requires our management to repoytand our independent registered public accogriiim tc
audit, the effectiveness of our internal contralistiure and procedures for financial reporting. Ndge an ongoing program to perform the sy:
and process evaluation and testing necessary tplgamith these requirements. However, the mannevhich companies and their indepent
public accounting firms apply these requirementd &st companies' internal controls remains subjectome judgment. To date, we h
incurred, and we expect to continue to incur, iasegl expense and to devote additional managensenirees to Section 404 compliance. De:
our efforts, if we identify a material weaknessoimr internal controls, there can be no assurargevie will be able to remediate that mate
weakness in a timely manner, or that we will beeabl maintain all of the controls necessary to meitge that our internal control over finan
reporting is effective. In the event that our cheekcutive officer, interim chief financial officer our independent registered public accoul
firm determine that our internal control over ficél reporting is not effective as defined undect®m 404, investor perceptions of us ma
adversely affected and could cause a decline imtimiet price of our stock.

Changes in financial accounting standards or integtations of existing standards could affect ourperted results of operations.

We prepare our consolidated financial statementsomformity with U.S. GAAP. These principles arenstantly subject to review a
interpretation by the SEC and various bodies forioddterpret and create appropriate accountingecfpies. A change in these principles can |
a significant effect on our reported results and/ reeen retroactively affect previously reportechsactions. Additionally, changes in exis
accounting rules or practices, including the pdesibnversion to unified international accountitenslards, could have a significant adverse ¢
on our results of operations or the manner in wiieltconduct our business.

Provisions in our certificate of incorporation, oubylaws and our agreement with Microsoft Corporati@ould delay or prevent a change
control.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws contpiovisions that could make it more difficult fortldrd party to acquire a majority of ¢
outstanding voting stock. These provisions incltiaefollowing:

» the ability of our Board of Directors to create asslie preferred stock without prior stockholdeprapal
» the prohibition of stockholder action by writtermsent

» aclassified Board of Directors, which will becofodly declassified from and after our 2014 Annuat¢éling of Stockholders; a

e advance notice requirements for director nominatimd stockholder propos:

On March 5, 2000, we entered into an agreement Mithosoft in which we agreed to develop and sediphics chips and to license cer
technology to Microsoft and its licensees for usahie Xbox. Under the agreement, if an individuakorporation makes an offer to purct
shares equal to or greater than 30% of the outistgqrsthares of our common stock, Microsoft may hiange and last rights of refusal to purch
the stock. The Microsoft provision and the othetdas listed above could also delay or preventanghk in control of NVIDIA.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our headquarters complex is located in Santa C@adifornia. Our corporate campus is comprised ggraximately 36 acres of land ¢
twelve commercial buildings and seven other ledmeldlings with five used primarily as office buitdjs, one used primarily as warehouse <
and the other remaining used primarily as lab spacaddition, we also lease a data center spaBarma Clara.

Outside of Santa Clara, we lease space in AustinRachardson, Texas; Beaverton, Oregon; BedfordjdMaand Westford, Massachuse
Bellevue, Bothell and Redmond, Washington; Madisdlabpama; Durham, North Carolina; Greenville, So@hrolina; Orlando, Florida; S
Lake City, Utah; St. Louis, Missouri; Fort Colliand Boulder, Colorado; and Charlottesville, ViiginThese facilities are used as design ce
and/or sales and administrative offices.

Outside of the United States, we lease space inGisi City, Taiwan; Tokyo, Japan; Seoul, Korea; iBgij Shanghai, Tianjin and Xi'
China; Shatin, Hong Kong; Mumbai, India; Courbe&vand Sophia Antipolis, France; Moscow, RussiajiBand Munich, Germany; Helsin
Finland; Milan, Italy; Bristol, Cambridge, ThealacaLondon, United Kingdom; Dubai, United Arab Entés; Ontario, Canada; Singapore; L
and Uppsala, Sweden; and Zurich, Switzerland. Thasciities are used primarily to support our cumséws and operations and as sales
administrative offices. We also lease spaces ienMd&len, Germany; Shenzhen, China; Taipei Citwvaiaj and Bangalore and Pune, India, w
are used primarily as design centers. Additionallg own buildings in Hyderabad, India and ShangBhina which are being used primarily
research and development centers.

In fiscal year 2014, we expect to break ground aewa building for our corporate headquarters canip@anta Clara to provide for our near-
term growth needs. This 500,000 square foot buglavill provide 2,500 seats and be built on landpuechased five years ago.

We believe that we currently have sufficient fak to conduct our operations for the next twetvenths, although we expect to le
additional facilities throughout the world as owsmess requires. For additional information regyabligations under leases, see Not®flie
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementam IV, Item 15 of this Annual Report on Form-K under the subheading “Lease Obligations,”
which information is hereby incorporated by refeen

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

3dfx

On December 15, 2000, NVIDIA and one of our indiregbsidiaries entered into an Asset Purchase Aget or APA, to purchase cert
graphics chip assets from 3dfx. The transactiosexl on April 18, 2001. That acquisition, and 3d8ctober 2002 bankruptcy filing, led to f
lawsuits against NVIDIA: two brought by 3dfx's foemlandlords, one by 3dfx's bankruptcy trustee thedfourth by a committee of 3dfx's eqt
security holders in the bankruptcy estate. Thelamadllord cases have been settled with payments fhe landlords to NVIDIA, and the eqt
security holders lawsuit was dismissed with prejadind no appeal was filed. Accordingly, only tia@kruptcy trustee suit remains outstan
as more fully explained below.

In March 2003, the Trustee appointed by the Bartksu@ourt to represent 3dfx's bankruptcy estateesea complaint on NVIDIA asserti
claims for, among other things, successor liabidityd fraudulent transfer and seeking additionalngays from us. The Trustee's fraudL
transfer theory alleged that NVIDIA had failed taypreasonably equivalent value for 3dfx's asseis,saught recovery of the difference betw
the $70.0 million paid and the alleged fair valudich the Trustee estimated to exceed $50.0 millidrhe Trustee's successor liability the
alleged NVIDIA was effectively 3dfx's legal succesand therefore was responsible for all of 3dfixipaid liabilities.

On October 13, 2005, the Bankruptcy Court heardTihestee's motion for summary adjudication, andDatember 23, 2005, denied 1
motion in all material respects and held that N\ADhay not dispute that the value of the 3dfx tratisa was less than $108.0 millionThe
Bankruptcy Court denied the Trustee's requesnhtbtfiat the value of the 3dfx assets conveyed ttDWWwas at least $108.0 million.
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In early November 2005, after several months of iatemh, NVIDIA and the Official Committee of Unsemd Creditors, or the Creditc
Committee, agreed to a Plan of Liquidation of 3dfkich included a conditional settlement of the stee's claims against us. This conditi
settlement was subject to a confirmation processuth a vote of creditors and the review and apgirof’/the Bankruptcy Court. The conditio
settlement called for a payment by NVIDIA of approately $30.6 million to the 3dfx estate. Under #ettlement, $5.6 milliorelated to variot
administrative expenses and Trustee fees, and $8Bli0n related to the satisfaction of debts and liabditmved to the general unsect
creditors of 3dfx. Accordingly, during the three mtio period ended October 30, 2005, we recorded®8li®n as a charge to settlement costs
$25.0 million as additional purchase price for 3dbhe Trustee advised that he intended to obgethe settlement. The conditional settlen
never progressed substantially through the confiongrocess.

On December 21, 2006, the Bankruptcy Court schedalgial for one portion of the Trustee's caserega\NVIDIA. On January 2, 20C
NVIDIA terminated the settlement agreement on gdsuthat the Bankruptcy Court had failed to procesdard confirmation of the Credito
Committee's plan. A nojwry trial began on March 21, 2007 on valuatioruéssin the Trustee's constructive fraudulent temsfaims again
NVIDIA. Specifically, the Bankruptcy Court tried dio questions: (1) what did 3dfx transfer to NVIDi&the APA; (2) of what was transferr
what qualifies as “property’subject to the Bankruptcy Court's avoidance powsrder the Uniform Fraudulent Transfer Act and rate
bankruptcy code provisions; (3) what is the fairkes value of the “propertyidentified in answer to question (2); and (4) was $70.0 milliol
that NVIDIA paid “reasonably equivalent” to the fanarket value of that property. The parties cotgulgost-trial briefing on May 25, 2007.

On April 30, 2008, the Bankruptcy Court issuedhtsmorandum Decision After Trial, in which it proed a detailed summary of the t
proceedings and the parties' contentions and esidand concluded that “the creditors of 3dfx westinjured by the Transaction.This decisiol
did not entirely dispose of the Trustee's actimwdwer, as the Trustee's claims for successotitiaand intentional fraudulent conveyance w
still pending. On June 19, 2008, NVIDIA filed a tiom for summary judgment to convert the MemorandDatision After Trial to a fini
judgment. That motion was granted in its entiatgd judgment was entered in NVIDIA's favor on Sepier 11, 2008. The Trustee filed a N¢
of Appeal from that judgment on September 22, 2@®8, on September 25, 2008, NVIDIA exercised ist#dn to have the appeal heard by
United States District Court.

The District Court's hearing on the Trustee's app@a held on June 10, 2009. On December 20, 20&0District Court issued an Ori
affirming the Bankruptcy Court's entry of summauggment in NVIDIA's favor. On January 19, 2011, Trrastee filed a Notice of Appeal to-
United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Citclihe appeal is currently pending.

While the conditional settlement reached in Noven#¥5 never progressed through the confirmatiocess, the Trustee's case still rerr
pending on appeal. Accordingly, we have not reagithe accrual of $30.6 million 5% million as a charge to settlement costs and$2filion
as additional purchase price for 3dfthat we recorded during the three months endedb®ct®0, 2005, pending resolution of the appeahe
Trustee's case.

Product Defect Litigation and Securities Ca
Product Defect Litigation

In September, October and November 2008, sevetatipel consumer class action lawsuits were filedirzg} us, asserting various cla
arising from a weak die/packaging material set éntain versions of our previous generation produstsd in notebook configurations.
February 26, 2009, the various lawsuits were cadesteld in the United States District Court for tHerthern District of California, San Jc
Division, under the caption “The NVIDIA GPU Litigah.” On March 2, 2009, several of the parties filed oifor appointment of lead cour
and briefs addressing certain related issues. @il A0, 2009, the District Court appointed Milbekf§P lead counsel. On May 6, 2009,
plaintiffs filed an Amended Consolidated Complaiieging claims for violations of California Busiss and Professions Code Section 11
Breach of Implied Warranty under California Civib@e Section 1792, Breach of the Implied WarrantjMefchantability under the laws of
other states, Breach of Warranty under the Magrniass Warranty Act, Unjust Enrichment, violationstbé New Jersey Consumer Fraud
Strict Liability and Negligence, and violation o&lfornia's Consumer Legal Remedies Act.

After extensive motion practice and litigation, ipté#fs on December 14, 2009 filed a Second Amen@exhsolidated Complaint seek
unspecified damages and asserting claims for veoigtof California Business and Professions Cod#i@e 17200, Breach of Implied Warra
under California Civil Code Section 1792, Breach/dirranty under the Magnusdess Warranty Act, violations of the New Jersey §lone
Fraud Act, Strict Liability and Negligence, and leition of California's Consumer Legal Remedies Act.
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On July 16, 2010, the parties filed a stipulatioithvthe District Court advising that, following miatlon they had reached a settlemer
principle in The NVIDIA GPU Litigation. The settigent in principle was subject to certain approvialsluding final approval by the court. A
result of the settlement in principle, and the ot#hstimated settlement, and offsetting insurantcelersements, NVIDIA recorded a net charg
$12.7 million to sales, general and administragixpense during the second quarter of fiscal yehat 20n addition, a portion of tH&181.2 millior
of additional charges we recorded against cost\wwnue related to the weak die/packaging set dthimgecond quarter of fiscal year 2011, re
to estimated additional repair and replacementscetated to the implementation of these settlesaédih August 12, 2010, the parties execu
Stipulation and Agreement of Settlement and Rele@seSeptember 15, 2010, the Court issued an gderting preliminary approval of t
settlement and providing for notice to the potdrtiass members. The Final Approval Hearing was loel December 20, 2010, and on that ¢
day the Court approved the settlement and enteirel Budgment over several objections. In Janu@i/12 several objectors filed Notices
Appeal of the Final Judgment to the United StatesrCof Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. The appeaturrently pending.

On July 22, 2011, a putative class action titlecr@eld v. NVIDIA Corp. was filed in federal couit Massachusetts asserting claims
breach of implied warranties arising out of the kvd@e/packaging material set, on behalf of a ctefssonsumers alleged to not be covered b
settlement approved by the California court in THéIDIA GPU Litigation. On November 3, 2011 the iact was transferred to the North
District of California, San Francisco Division, leasupon stipulation of the parties. On December2811, Plaintiff filed a First Amend
Complaint asserting claims for violation of Califita Consumers Legal Remedies Act and Unfair CortipetLaw. On March 19, 2012, Plain
filed a Second Amended Complaint asserting clamn&hlifornia Consumers Legal Remedies Act and Wi@ampetition Law violations, Brea
of Implied Warranty, and violations of the Massasgtts consumer protection statutes. NVIDIA filechation to dismiss the Second Amen
Complaint on April 12, 2012.

On July 12, 2012, the District Court dismisseddfixhe seven asserted causes of action with pegudilowing only one cause of action
violation of the Massachusetts consumer protectiatute to continue, and instructed Plaintiff te fin amended complaint consistent witl
Order. On August 15, 2012, Plaintiff indicated thatwould not be filing an amended complaint. Thar@eld case is now over.

Securities Cases

In September 2008, three putative securities elessns, or the Actions, were filed in the Unitedt8s District Court for the Northern Disti
of California arising out of our announcements oly 2, 2008, that we would take a charge against ebrevenue to cover anticipated costs
expenses arising from a weak die/packaging matseiain certain versions of our previous generalt®P and GPU products and that we v
revising financial guidance for our second quaonfefiscal year 2009. The Actions purport to be lglouon behalf of purchasers of NVIDIA stc
and assert claims for violations of Sections 1@() 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934araended, or the Securities Exchange
On October 30, 2008, the Actions were consolidateder the caption In re NVIDIA Corporation SecwstiLitigation, Civil Action No. 08-CV-
04260-JW (HRL). Lead Plaintiffs and Lead Plaintif®ounsel were appointed on December 23, 2008.ebnuiry 6, 2009, chead Plaintiff filec
a Writ of Mandamus with the Ninth Circuit Court Appeals challenging the designation of co-Leadrfiféss’ Counsel. On February 19, 2009, co-
Lead Plaintiff filed with the District Court, a nioh to stay the District Court proceedings pendiegolution of the Writ of Mandamus by
Ninth Circuit. On February 24, 2009, Judge Warentgd the stay. On November 5, 2009, the Court gieds issued an opinion reversing
District Court's appointment of one of the leadintiffs' counsel, and remanding the matter forHertproceedings. On December 8, 2009
District Court appointed Milberg LLP and Kahn SwigK-oti, LLC as co-lead counsel.

On January 22, 2010, Plaintiffs filed a Consolida#enended Class Action Complaint for Violationstloé Federal Securities Laws, assel
claims for violations of Section 10(b), Rule 1Bp-and Section 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Abe consolidated complaint sou
unspecified compensatory damages. We filed a matadismiss the consolidated complaint in March@®@nd a hearing was held on June
2010 before Judge Seeborg. On October 19, 201@eJ8deborg granted our motion to dismiss with legav@mend. On December 2, 2010, co-
Lead Plaintiffs filed a Second Consolidated Amen@edhplaint. We moved to dismiss the Second Codatdd Amended Complaint on Febrt
14, 2011. Following oral argument, on October 12,12 Judge Seeborg granted our motion to dismigsut leave to amend, and on Noven
8, 2011, Plaintiffs filed a Notice of Appeal to thénth Circuit. The appeal has been fully briefedt the Ninth Circuit has not yet set a hes
date.
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Accounting for Loss Contingenci

While there can be no assurance of favorable owtspmie believe the claims made by other parti¢hdrabove ongoing matters are witt
merit and we intend to vigorously defend the adtidNith the exception of the 3dfx and product def¢igation cases, we have not recorded
accrual for contingent liabilities associated wiitie legal proceedings described above based obedigf that liabilities, while possible, are
probable. Further, any possible range of lossasdhmatters cannot be reasonably estimated dintl@s\We are engaged in other legal action:
described above arising in the ordinary coursetobusiness and, while there can be no assuranfaafable outcomes, we believe that
ultimate outcome of these actions will not haveadamal adverse effect on our operating resulfsiidiity or financial position.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not Applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT" S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER PURCHASES
OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Globaé&eMarket under the symbol NVDA. Public tradingooir common stock began
January 22, 1999. Prior to that, there was no puhkrket for our common stock. As of March 8, 2048, had approximately 399 registe
stockholders, not including those shares heldreestor nominee name. The following table setshféot the periods indicated the high and
sales price for our common stock as quoted on th8MAQ Global Select Market:

High Low

Fiscal year ending January 26, 2014
First Quarter (through March 8, 2013) $ 13.0C $ 12.0¢
Fiscal year ended January 27, 2013

Fourth Quarter $ 13.1¢ % 11.1¢
Third Quarter $ 15.2: % 11.82
Second Quarter $ 13.9C $ 11.62
First Quarter $ 16.9C $ 12.7¢
Fiscal year ended January 29, 2012

Fourth Quarter $ 16.0t $ 13.11
Third Quarter $ 16.1C $ 11.47
Second Quarter $ 2052 $ 13.5¢
First Quarter $ 26.17 $ 16.8¢

Dividend Policy

Prior to fiscal year 2013, we had never declaregaid any dividend on shares of our common stockNOvember 8, 2012, we announ
the initiation of a quarterly cash dividend prograrhis quarterly dividend of $0.075 per share igieglent to $0.30 per share on an annual k
The initial cash dividend was paid on December2D4,2 to all common stockholders of record at tlwselof business on November 23, 201
subsequent cash dividend of $0.075 per share vedardd on February 13, 2013, payable on March @1320 all common stockholders of rec
at the close of business on February 28, 2013s¢alfyear 2013, we paid $46.9 million in divideridour common stockholders.

Our cash dividend program and the payment of futash dividends under that program are subjeadntiraied capital availability and ¢
Board of Directors' continuing determination thae tdividend program and the declaration of dividetigereunder are in the best interests o
stockholders and are in compliance with all lawd agreements of NVIDIA applicable to the declamatimd payment of cash dividends.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

In fiscal year 2007, our Board of Directors authed us, subject to certain specifications, to refpase shares of our common stock up-
aggregate maximum amount of $2.7 billion throughyN813. In October 2012, the Board extended tlognam through December 2014. -
repurchases will be made from time to time in theromarket, in privately negotiated transactionsn atructured stock repurchase programs
may be made in one or more larger repurchaseggmpliance with Rule 1088 of the Exchange Act, subject to market cond#jaapplicabl
legal requirements, and other factors. The progtaas not obligate NVIDIA to acquire any particuéemount of common stock and the prog
may be suspended at any time at our discretiomatisof our share repurchase program, we haveezhieto, and we may continue to enter i
structured share repurchase transactions with dinhmstitutions. These agreements generally reqthat we make an upent payment i
exchange for the right to receive a fixed numbesludres of our common stock upon execution of treeanent, and a potential increme
number of shares of our common stock, within ageeermined range, at the end of the term of theeagent.
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The following table presents details of our shamurchase transactions during the three monthsleladmiary 27, 2013 (in millions, exc
per share amounts):

Total Number of Shares Approximate Dollar Value

Purchased as Part of of Shares that May Yet Be
Total Number of Average Price Paid Publicly Announced Plans Purchased Under the
Period Shares Purchased per Share (1) or Programs Plans or Programs
October 29, 2012 -
November 25, 2012 - — — $1,235.7
November 26, 2012 -
December 23, 2012 73 $13.69 7.3 $1,135.7
December 24, 2012 -
January 27, 2013 11 — 1.1 $1,135.7
Total 8.4 8.4

(1) During November 2012, we entered into an acatdd share repurchase agreement, or an ASR, withvastment bank, under wh
we prepaid $100.0 million to purchase shares oftonmmon stock. The aggregate number of sharesatéilgnpurchased was determirtzased o
the volume weightedverage share price, minus a discount, of our camstack over a specified period of time. By NovemB9, 2012, tF
investment bank delivered 7.3 million minimum sksar€he contract was settled on January 24, 20iBwanreceived an additional 1.1 mill
shares at that time. The total number of sharagcbpsed under this ASR was 8.4 million sharesvetighted-average price of $11.90 per share.

Through January 27, 2013, we have repurchasedgregage of 99.3 million shares under our stock memse program for a total cos
$1.56 billion. As of January 27, 2013, we are atifed, subject to certain specifications, to repase shares of our common stock up to ¢
billion through December 2014.

In addition to our Board authorized stock repurelsasve withhold common stock shares associatedneitlshare settlements to cover
withholding obligations upon the vesting of rese stock unit, or RSU, awards under our equitgimive program. During the fiscal year 2(
we withheld approximately 1.8 million shares abtalk cost of $25.8 million through net share satdats. Please refer to Note 2 of the Note
the Consolidated Financial Statements in Parttdéml15 of this Form 10-K for further discussionastjng our equity incentive plans.

Stock Performance Graphs

The following graph compares the cumulative totedckholder return for our common stock, the S&P H0@ex and the S&
Semiconductors Index for the five years ended Jgrig 2013. The graph assumes that $100 was et/est January 27, 2008 in our comt
stock or on January 31, 2008 in each of the S&P1B88x and the S & P Semiconductors Index. Totalrnreassumes reinvestment of dividenc
each of the indices indicated. Our results areutatied on fiscal yeaend basis and each of the S&P 500 Index and the S&#Riconductors Ind:
are calculated on month-end basis. Total retubasgd on historical results and is not intendeddizate future performance.
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COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among NVIDIA Corporation, the S&P 500 Index, and the S&P Semiconductors Index
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*$100 invested on 1/27/08 in stock or 1/31/08 in index, including reinvestment of dividends.
Indexes calculated on month-end basis.

Copyright© 2013 S&P, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies Inc. All rights reserved.

1/27/200¢ 1/25/200¢ 1/31/201( 1/30/201: 1/29/201: 1/27/2013
NVIDIA Corporation $ 100.0C $ 309C $ 61.6¢ $ 95.2¢ % 59.7¢ $ 50.0¢
S&P 500 $ 100.0C $ 6131 $ 8171 $ 99.8¢ % 104.0f % 121.5:
S&P Semiconductors $ 100.0C $ 59.9. $ 94.1C $ 122.8( $ 13057 $ 117.4:
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The following graph compares the cumulative totedckholder return for our common stock, the S&P H0@ex and the S&
Semiconductors Index for the ten years ended Ja27ar2013. The graph assumes that $100 was investdlanuary 26, 2003 in our comr
stock or on January 31, 2003 in each of the S&P1BABx and the S&P Semiconductors Index. Totalrreissumes reinvestment of dividenc
each of the indices indicated. Our results areutatied on fiscal yeaend basis and each of the S&P 500 Index and the S&#Riconductors Ind:
are calculated on month-end basis. Total retubasgd on historical results and is not intendeddizate future performance.

COMPARISON OF 10 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among NVIDIA Corporation, the S&P 500 Index, and the S&P Semiconductors Index

$800 -
$700 -
$600 -
$500 -
$400 -

$300 -

$200 { B

e T

$100 TA=T

$0 ' ' ' ' ' : - : '

1/26/03  1/25/04  1/30/05  1/29/06  1/28/07  1/27/08  1/25/09  1/31/10  1/30/11 12912  1/27/13

—+&=— NVIDIA Corporation — & —S&P 500 ---0--- S&P Semiconductors

*$100 invested on 1/26/03 in stock or 1/31/03 in index, including reinvestment of dividends.
Indexes calculated on month-end basis.

Copyright© 2013 S&P, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies Inc. All rights reserved.

1/26/200: 1/25/200- 1/30/200! 1/29/200¢ 1/28/200° 1/27/200: 1/25/200¢ 1/31/201(

1/30/201: 1/29/201:

1/27/201:

NVIDIA Corporation $ 100.0C $ 227.0¢0 $ 2249¢ $ 4547° $ 6188t $ 7359¢ $ 227.4! $ 453.9¢
S&P 500 $ 100.0¢ $ 13457 $ 1429¢ $ 157.7¢ $ 180.7C( $ 1765: $ 108.3¢ $ 1442
S&P Semiconductors$ 100.0C $ 199.0¢ $ 149.6( $ 17297 $ 162.8¢ $ 151.77 $ 90.9¢ $ 142.8:
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data should bedr@aconjunction with our financial statements ahd notes thereto, and with Iterr
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operation3lie consolidated statements of operations datthé
fiscal years ended January 27, 2013 , January@®® and January 30, 2011 and the consolidated dmlstmeet data as of January 27, 2848
January 29, 2012 have been derived from and shmutdad in conjunction with our audited consoliddteancial statements and the notes thi
included in Part IV, Item 15 in this Annual Repam Form 10-K. We operate on a 52- or\B&ek year, ending on the last Sunda
January. Fiscal years 2013, 2012, 2011 and 2009 9&week years, while fiscal year 2010 was a B8kwyear.

Year Ended
January 27, January 29, January 30, January 31, January 25,
2013 (A) 2012 2011 (B,C) 2010 (B,D) 2009 (B,E)

(In thousands, except per share data)
Consolidated Statement of Operations Data:

Revenue $ 4,280,150 $ 399793 $ 3,543,300 $ 3,326,444/ $ 3,424,85
Income (loss) from operations $ 648,23¢ $ 648,29¢ $ 255,74 % (98,945 $ (70,700
Net income (loss) $ 562,53t $ 581,09( $ 253,14t $ (67,987 $ (30,04
Basic net income (loss) per share $ 091 % 0.9¢ $ 044 % (0.19) $ (0.0%)
Diluted net income (loss) per share $ 09C $ 094 $ 04: $ (0.12) $ (0.05)
Shares used in basic per share computation 619,32 603,64t 575,17 549,57: 548,12t
Shares used in diluted per share computation 624,95 616,37: 588,68 549,57- 548,12t
Year Ended
January 27, January 29, January 30, January 31, January 25,
2013 (F) 2012 (G) 2011 2010 2009
(In thousands, except per share data)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securites $ 3,727,888 $ 3,129,577 $ 2,490,56. $ 1,728,222 $ 1,255,39
Total assets $ 6,412,24° $ 555292 $ 449524 $ 358591 $ 3,350,72
Capital lease obligations, less current portion $ 18,99¢ $ 21,43¢ $ 23,38¢ $ 2445( $ 25,63
Total stockholders’ equity $ 4,827,700 $ 414572 $ 3,181,46. $ 2,66514 $ 2,394,65
Cash dividends declared and paid per common shar¢$ 0.07t $ —  $ —  $ — 3 =

(A) Fiscal year 2013 includes $20.1 million as thepresent value of a $25 million charitable contribntpledged on June 12, 2012 to Stan
Hospital and Clinic, payable over a ten year penmitich reduced income from operations.

(B) We recorded a net warranty charge of $193.9 mill&9#.0 million and $188.0 million, during fiscaégrs 2011, 2010 and 2009, respecti
which reduced income from operations to cover grdied customer warranty, repair, return, replaceraad other costs arising from a w
die/packaging material set used in certain versahsur previous generation MCP and GPU producigpshl after July 2008 and usec
notebook configurations.

(C) On January 10, 2011, we entered into aysiar cross licensing agreement with Intel and edsdually agreed to settle all outstanding I
disputes. For accounting purposes, the fair vaherefit prescribed to the settlement portion was. @ million, which was recorded witt
income from operations in fiscal year 2011.
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(D) Fiscal year 2010 includes impact of charge fomalée offer to purchase an aggregate of 28.5 milhiotstanding stock options for a total ¢
payment of $78.1 million. As a result of the tendéfer, we incurred a charge of $140.2 million, sisting of the remaining unamortiz
stock-based compensation expenses associated heitinivested portion of the options tendered indffer, stockbased compensati
expense resulting from amounts paid in excesseofdin value of the underlying options, plus asated payroll taxes and professional fees.

(E) Fiscal year 2009 includes $18.9 million fon@n+ecurring charge resulting from the terminatioraafevelopment contract related to a
campus construction project we had put on hold%@ million for restructuring charges.

(F) On November 8, 2012, we initiated a quarterly divid payment and announced our initial quarterlyddivd of 7.5 cents per share, ol
cents on an annual basis.

(G) On June 10, 2011, we completed the acquisitiorterfal, Inc. for total cash consideration of $352iion, and recorded goodwill of $271
million.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our finahcondition and results of operations should éedrin conjunction withltem 1A. Risl
Factors”, “Item 6. Selected Financial Datalir Consolidated Financial Statements and relatgdd\thereto, as well as other cautionary states
and risks described elsewhere in this Annual Reofform 10-K, before deciding to purchase, holdadrshares of our common stock.

Overview
Our Company

NVIDIA is a visual computing company, connectingpke through the powerful medium of computer graphin a world increasingly fille
with visual displays, our graphics technologiesdet customers interact with the world of digitdeas, information and entertainment witt
efficiency that no other communication medium ceovjgle. Visualization transcends cultural and laaggiboundaries and enhances the qual
life whether the setting is work or pleasure areltdsk is mission critical or for entertainment.

We have long been known to millions around the @dok creating the graphics chips used in PCstihag video games to life. With c
invention of the GPU, we introduced the world te fflower of programmable shading, which defines mrodemputer graphics. Today, we re
well beyond PC graphics and games. Our enefigient processors are at the heart of produanging from mobile devices to supercompu
PC gamers choose our GPUs by name to enjoy imneefaivtasy worlds. Our Tegra processors power simamgs, tablets and automol
infotainment systems. Professional designers useGitlUs to create visual effects in movies and desigerything from audio headsets
commercial aircraft. And supercomputers take achgmbf the massively parallel processing capadslitif our GPUs to accelerate a wide ran
important applications, from simulations of virusgshe molecular level, to modern weather foreegsind global oil exploration.

NVIDIA's research and development in visual commythas yielded more than 5,000 patents grantectmdipg worldwide, and includii
ones covering inventions essential to modern comgut

Our businesses are based on two important techiestogpe GPU and the Tegra processor. GPUs, eathbillions of transistors, are t
engine of visual computing and among the world'stmemmplex processors. We have GPU product brardigmed for specific users ¢
applications: GeForce for gamers; Quadro for desgnTesla for researchers; and GRID VGX for clbaded server graphics modules.
recently announced the NVIDIA GRID visual computiagpliance, a fully integrated system with GRID V@Xaphics modules that r
NVIDIA's proprietary system software. GRID is ast-of-its-kind device, designed to serve graphidensive applications from the clc
simultaneously to a large number of concurrentsiser
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The Tegra processor is a system-on-a-chip, or SQ€yrating an entire computer on a single chipgréigrocessors incorporate mudre
GPUs and CPUs together with audio, video and ioptput capabilities. They can also be integratetti Waseband processors for phone anc
communication. Unlike power-inefficient processbtslt for PCs, our Tegra SOC conserves power witdivering state-of-theat graphics ar
multimedia processing. Tegra runs devices like gphanes, tablets and PCs; it can also be embeddedinart devices, such as televisi
monitors, setop boxes, gaming devices and cars. We recentlguaroed Project SHIELD, the first Android device idesd for gaming. Proje
SHIELD features our Tegra 4 processor, containpnEtary NVIDIA-developed software and system technologies anddges our det
partnerships with game developers all over thedvorl

Headquartered in Santa Clara, California, we weacerporated in California in April 1993 and reingorated in Delaware in April 1998.
Our Businesses

We have two primary reporting segmentie GPU business and the Tegra Processor busihwssg the last several years, we have ope
and reported three reporting segmentse GPU business, the Professional Solutions bssjrend the Consumer Products business. Hov
during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2013, vegyén reporting two segments to reflect the way sgenaw managing our businesses interi
which is based on whether the underlying produstsriage our GPU or our Tegra processor technoloGesparative periods presented re
this change.

Our GPU business leverages our GPU technology sicnoftiple end markets. It now comprises four priyrfaroduct lines including GeFor
for desktop and notebook PCs and Macs; Quadrortdegsional workstations; Tesla for higefrformance servers and workstations; and NVI
GRID for server graphics solutions. It also inclsidgher related products, licenses and revenueostipgp the GPU business, such as mer
products. Our Tegra Processor business comprigeRigr lines primarily based on our Tegra SOC andleno processor technologies. 1
includes Tegra for smartphones and tablets for Batthroid and Windows Rbased devices; automotive computers, includingtafionent an
navigation systems; and gaming devices such as®SHIELD. It also includes other related produlitenses, and revenue supporting the T
Processor business such as Icera baseband precassbRF transceivers, embedded products, andséisesnd other revenue associated
game consoles.

In addition to the two reporting segments discusdaale, the “All Othertategory primarily includes licensing revenue froar patent cros
licensing agreement with Intel.

Recent Developments, Future Objectives and Challerg
GPU Business

During fiscal year 2013, we launched our new Kef@®@U architecture across our GPU products. Kepéer initially launched in our GeFol
desktop and notebook PC products in early fiscat ©13 and gradually powered Tesla and Quadraedgwuring the second half of fiscal y
2013. Our Kepler products are faster, smaller anckerpower efficient than products based on ouriptesvarchitecture.

In our Tesla product line, we introduced the K1d &20 family of GPU accelerators based on the Keglehitecture during fiscal year 20
making the technology behind the world's fastepestomputer, Titan, at Oak Ridge National Labosatorailable to all. We also announced
the space research organization in India was ugitheir Supercomputer for Aerospace with GPU Asatiure, or SAGA, system to improve
design and analysis of new and existing satelibmth vehicles.

Additionally, we launched the GRID VGX, a first-@i kind technology, which makes it possible toemscgraphic#atensive applications «
a remote server from virtually any computing deyaeywhere by connecting to the cloud, insteadroddocal PC or workstation. With our n
GRID VGX product line, we are leveraging GPUs beaytite PC into the server.

Tegra Processor Business

During fiscal year 2013, the first Tegra 3 phores HTC One X, was launched. Further, Fujitsu's e, a quactore LTE smartphot
powered by Tegra 3, began shipping into Japanerséitond quarter of fiscal year 2013.

During fiscal year 2013, Google launched its NeXuablet powered by our Tegra 3. Nexus was thedigsice to run Jelly Bean, the lai
version of the Android operating system. Severahdivs RT devices powered by Tegra 3 also came tanthis year including the As
VivoTab RT, IdeaPad Yoga 11 from Lenovo, and MiofoSurface RT.
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Tegra processors began shipping in the 17-incthsmreen and navigation system in Tesla Motors'Medel S during this year.

We also announced Project SHIELD at the 2013 Coesiiectronics Show. Project SHIELD is a unique #uidl gaming device. Powered by
Tegra 4 processor, it integrates a 5-inch retirggldy, a console-grade game controller and tisé rilobile tuned-port, bass reflex speakers.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Managemens discussion and analysis of financial conditiod assults of operations are based upon our corsetidfinancial statemen
which have been prepared in accordance with U.SA:AThe preparation of these financial statemeatgiires us to make estimates
judgments that affect the reported amounts of asBabilities, revenue, cost of revenue, expemsesrelated disclosure of contingencies. O
on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates, includiggée related to revenue recognition, cash equitsalemd marketable securities, acco
receivable, inventories, income taxes, goodwilbcktbased compensation, warranty liabilities, litigaticnvestigation and settlement costs
other contingencies. We base our estimates onrigsist@xperience and on various other assumptioasare believed to be reasonable unde
circumstances, the results of which form the bsisnaking judgments about the carrying valuessskss and liabilities.

We believe the following critical accounting poésiaffect our significant judgments and estimagegiun the preparation of our consolid:
financial statements. Our management has discubsedevelopment and selection of these criticabacting policies and estimates with
Audit Committee of our Board of Directors. The Au@ommittee has reviewed our disclosures relatmgur critical accounting policies &
estimates in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Revenue Recognition
Product Revenue

We recognize revenue from product sales when pgirgiavidence of an arrangement exists, the prdthgbeen delivered, the price is fi
or determinable and collection of the related neslglie is reasonably assured. For most sales, wa bs®ling purchase order and in certain ¢
we use a contractual agreement as evidence ofranga@ment. We consider delivery to occur upon shignprovided title and risk of loss h:
passed to the customer. At the point of sale, vsessswhether the arrangement fee is fixed or detelie and whether collection is reason
assured. If we determine that collection of a feaat reasonably assured, we defer the fee andnizeorevenue at the time collection becc
reasonably assured, which is generally upon recéipayment.

Our policy on sales to certain distributors, witghts of return, is to defer recognition of reverard related cost of revenue until
distributors resell the product, as the level tfimes cannot be reasonably estimated.

Our customer programs primarily involve rebatesicivlare designed to serve as sales incentivesatlees of our products in various tai
markets. We accrue for 100% of the potential rebatel do not apply a breakage factor. We recogni@bility for these rebates at the later ol
date at which we record the related revenue od#ie at which we offer the rebate. Rebates typicatbire six months from the date of
original sale, unless we reasonably believe thattistomer intends to claim the rebate. Unclairebdtes are reversed to revenue.

Our customer programs also include marketing dewvetnt funds, or MDFs. We account for MDFs as eitheeduction of revenue or
operating expense, depending on the nature of thgrgm. MDFs represent monies paid to retaileystesn builders, original equipm:
manufacturers, or OEMs, distributors and @mdard partners that are earmarked for market sagaevelopment and expansion and typicall
designed to support our partneegtivities while also promoting NVIDIA products. pending on market conditions, we may take acti@
increase amounts offered under customer programssijtgy resulting in an incremental reduction ofereue at the time such programs are offe

We also record a reduction to revenue by estahlishisales return allowance for estimated prodetarms at the time revenue is recogni

based primarily on historical return rates. Howevfeproduct returns for a particular fiscal periedceed historical return rates we may deter
that additional sales return allowances are reduogroperly reflect our estimated exposure fadpict returns.
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License and Development Revenue

For license arrangements that require significarstamization of our intellectual property compomsente generally recognize the rele
revenue over the period that services are perforfed most license and service arrangements, werrdigte progress to completion baset
actual direct labor hours incurred to date as agmtage of the estimated total direct labor hoegsiired to complete the project. We periodic
evaluate the actual status of each project to ertbat the estimates to complete each contractimegcaurate. A provision for estimated losse
contracts is made in the period in which the lossomes probable and can be reasonably estimatests @eurred in advance of reve
recognized are recorded as deferred costs on unetmdpcontracts. If the amount billed exceeds theunt of revenue recognized, the ex
amount is recorded as deferred revenue. Revenagmized in any period is dependent on our prog@sard completion of projects in progre
Significant management judgment and discretionuaesl to estimate total direct labor hours. Any geanin or deviations from these estim
could have a material effect on the amount of raeeme recognize in any period.

For license arrangements that do not require sogmif customization but where we are obligatedrtwide further deliverables over the te
of the license agreement, we record revenue owelifth of the license term, with consideration ieed in advance of the performance pe
classified as deferred revenue.

Royalty revenue is recognized related to the thigtion or sale of products that use our technokgieder license agreements with t
parties. We recognize royalty revenue upon recdig confirmation of earned royalties and wherdembility is reasonably assured from
applicable licensee.

Accounts Receivable

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts iked®e for estimated losses resulting from the ilitsttof our customers to make requil
payments. Management determines this allowancighwdonsists of an amount identified for specifistomer issues as well as an amount k
on overall estimated exposure. Our accounts rekvare highly concentrated and make us vulnerabladverse changes in our custor
businesses, and to downturns in the industry aedvibridwide economy. Our overall estimated exppsxcludes significant amounts that
covered by credit insurance and letters of créfdthe financial condition of our customers, thedincial institutions providing letters of credit
our credit insurance carrier were to deterioraeulting in an impairment of their ability to magayments, additional allowances may be req
that could adversely affect our operating resltsthermore, there can be no assurance that wéeviible to continue to obtain credit insure
in the future.

As of January 27, 2013, our allowance for doutdftdounts receivable was $1.8 million and our gazs®unts receivable balance was $4
million. Of the $473.6 million, $71.1 million wasoeered by credit insurance and $9.2 million waseced by letters of credit. If the financ
condition of our customers were to deteriorateltegy in an impairment of their ability to makeypaents, additional allowances may be reqt
and we may have to record additional reserves itewffs on certain sales transactions in the futueetérs impacting the allowance include
level of gross receivables, the financial conditafrour customers and the extent to which balaacescovered by credit insurance or lettel
credit. We have incurred cumulative bad debts o8 $illion over the last three fiscal years. Aseault of our low bad debt experience,
allowance for doubtful accounts receivable has ednigetween 0.2% and 0.4% during fiscal years 20ti32812. As of January 27, 2013,
allowance for doubtful accounts receivable repre=sk0.4% of our gross accounts receivable balance.

Inventories

Inventory cost is computed on an adjusted standasis, which approximates actual cost on an avevadiest-in, first-out basis. Invento
costs consist primarily of the cost of semicondtecfmurchased from subcontractors, including wadéeri€ation, assembly, testing and packa
manufacturing support costs, including labor ané@rbgad associated with such purchases, final iefd fallout, inventory provisions a
shipping costs. We write down our inventory to tbeer of cost or estimated market value. Obsoleteronarketable inventory is complet
written off based upon assumptions about futureateinfuture product purchase commitments, estimaigcufacturing yield levels and mar
conditions. If actual market conditions are lesgofable than those projected by management, ourifcarrent inventory or our future prod
purchase commitments to our suppliers exceed oecésted future demand for such products, additiohare inventory writedowns may b
required that could adversely affect our operate®yplts. Inventory reserves once established areemersed until the related inventory has |
sold or scrapped. If actual market conditions ramge favorable than expected and we sell prodhetswe have previously written down,
reported gross margin would be favorably impacted.
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As of January 27, 2013, our inventory reserve WEE3% million. As a percentage of our gross inventmalance, our inventory reserve
ranged between 15.0% and 30.6% during fiscal y2@t8 and 2012. As of January 27, 2013, our invgmeserve represented 22.0% of our ¢
inventory balance.

Warranty Liabilities

Cost of revenue includes the estimated cost of ymbdarranties that are calculated at the pointeskenue recognition. Under limit
circumstances, we may offer an extended limitedr-avay to customers for certain products. Our potelare complex and may contain defec
experience failures due to any number of issuetesign, fabrication, packaging, materials and/@ wihin a system. If any of our products
technologies contains a defect, compatibility issuether error, we may have to invest additioeaslearch and development efforts to find
correct the issue. Such efforts could divert oanagement’s and engineeattention from the development of new productstaetinologies ar
could increase our operating costs and reduce masgnargin. In addition, an error or defect in n@wducts or releases or related soft\
drivers after commencement of commercial shipmeotsd result in failure to achieve market accepeamicloss of design wins. Also, we may
required to reimburse customers, including ouramstrs’costs to repair or replace products in the fielcpraduct recall or a significant numi
of product returns could be expensive, damage eputation and could result in the shifting of bes to our competitors. Costs associated
correcting defects, errors, bugs or other issuakldme significant and could materially harm ounaficial results.

During the three fiscal years ended January 301,2@8& recorded a cumulative net charge of $475I8omi most of which was charged aga
cost of revenue, to cover customer warranty, repaiurn, replacement and other costs arising faoweak die/packaging material set in ce
versions of our previous generation MCP and GPUlyets used in notebook configurations. Determirtimgy amount of the warranty char
related to this issue required management to msimates and judgments based on historical experjgast data and various other assumg
including estimated field failure rates that weidet to be reasonable under the circumstancesteBudts of these judgments formed the basi
our estimate of the total charge to cover antieipatustomer warranty, repair, return and replacéraed other associated costs. If the a
repair, return, replacement and other associatset$ emd/or actual field failure rates exceed otimeges, we may be required to record additi
reserves, which would increase our cost of revemaematerially harm our financial results.

Income Taxes

We recognize federal, state and foreign currenlighilities or assets based on our estimate xddgayable or refundable in the current fi
year by tax jurisdiction. We recognize federaltestand foreign deferred tax assets or liabilittessappropriate, for our estimate of future taxatf
attributable to temporary differences and carryfmdsg; and we record a valuation allowance to redngyedeferred tax assets by the amount o
tax benefits that, based on available evidencgudgient, are not expected to be realized.

United States income tax has not been providedaomiregs of our noJ.S. subsidiaries to the extent that such earrémg<onsidered to
indefinitely reinvested.

Our calculation of current and deferred tax asseis liabilities is based on certain estimates amifyjnents and involves dealing v
uncertainties in the application of complex taxda@ur estimates of current and deferred tax assetdiabilities may change based, in pari
added certainty or finality to an anticipated omtep changes in accounting standards or tax lawkdrlJnited States, or foreign jurisdictit
where we operate, or changes in other facts oumistances. In addition, we recognize liabilitiesgotential United States and foreign income
contingencies based on our estimate of whether tladxtent to which, additional taxes may be dfieve determine that payment of th
amounts is unnecessary or if the recorded taxiligis less than our current assessment, we magdpgired to recognize an income tax bene
additional income tax expense in our financialestants, accordingly.

As of January 27, 2013, we had a valuation all@meanf $224.8 million related to state and certareign deferred tax assets |
management determined are not likely to be realizes] in part, to projections of future taxableome and potential utilization limitations of
attributes acquired as a result of stock ownershgnges. To the extent realization of the defetagdassets becomes more-likely-thraot; we
would recognize such deferred tax asset as an imt¢axbenefit during the period.

42




Table of Contents

Our deferred tax assets do not include the exeesbkeanefit related to stodkased compensation that are a component of ouralealed state n
operating loss and research tax credit carryforsvardhe amount of $459.1 million as of January2¥1,3. Consistent with prior years, the ex
tax benefit reflected in our net operating loss eggkarch tax credit carryforwards will be accodritr as a credit to stockholders' equity, if
when realized. In determining if and when excesshienefits have been realized, we have electediltoe the with-andwithout approach wit
respect to such excess tax benefits. We have ksteé to ignore the indirect tax effects of stielsed compensation deductions for financia
accounting reporting purposes, and specificallgetmgnize the full effect of the research tax dredincome from operations.

We recognize the benefit from a tax position ofily is more-likely-thannot that the position would be sustained upon chaked solely ¢
the technical merits of the tax position. Our ppli to include interest and penalties relatedrieeaognized tax benefits as a component of in
tax expense. Please refer to Note 14 of the Notéset Consolidated Financial Statements in ParttBm 15 of this Annual Report on Form KO-
for additional information.

Goodwill

Goodwill is subject to our annual impairment testinlg the fourth quarter of our fiscal year, orliearif indicators of potential impairme
exist, using either a qualitative or a quantitatiesessment. Our impairment review process cosplagefair value of the reporting unit in wh
the goodwill resides to its carrying value. Weniiliged four reporting units for the purposes ohwgaeting our goodwill analysis. Determin
the number of reporting units and the fair valuea @éporting unit requires us to make judgmentsianadlves the use of significant estimates
assumptions. We also make judgments and assumpticaikcating assets and liabilities to each of mporting units. We base our fair ve
estimates on assumptions we believe to be reasobhabthat are unpredictable and inherently uniterta

In fiscal year 2012, we early adopted an accourgbagdard update, commonly referred to as a stepagproach, which allows us to f
assess qualitative factors to determine whethisrriecessary to perform the twtep quantitative goodwill impairment test. Foragimg units ir
which the qualitative assessment concludes it isentikely than not that the fair value is more thcarrying value, the amended guide
eliminates the requirement to perform further goiidmpairment testing. For those reporting unitsexe a significant change or events occur
where potential impairment indicators exist, wetgare to utilize a twostep quantitative assessment to testing goodwilinfipairment. The fir:
step tests for possible impairment by applyingiavialue-based test. In computing the fair value of our répg units, we use estimates of fut
revenues, costs and cash flows from such units.s€eend step, if necessary, measures the amowuichfimpairment by applying fair value-
based tests to individual assets and liabilities.

Qualitative Assessment

In considering the step zero approach to testimglgdl for impairment, we perform a qualitative &ss evaluating factors including, but
limited to, macrceconomic conditions, market and industry conditiac@mpetitive environment, operational stabilitydathe overall financii
performance of the reporting units including cesttérs and budgeted-to-actual revenue results.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2013, witized a qualitative analysis for two reportingitsrwhere no significant change occurred
no potential impairment indicators arose sincepifevious annual evaluation of goodwill and conctlides more likely than not that the fair va
of those reporting units is more than their camgyialues on a reporting unit basis.

Our next annual evaluation of the goodwill by repay unit will be performed during the fourth querrtof fiscal year 2014. If we were
encounter challenging economic conditions, such dscline in our operating results, an unfavoraideistry or macroeconomic environmer
substantial decline in our stock price, or any otmdverse change in market conditions, we may geired to perform the twetep quantitativ
goodwill impairment analysis. In addition, if suchnditions have the effect of changing one of thigcal assumptions or estimates we us
calculate the value of our goodwill, we may be iegfito record goodwill impairment charges in fetyreriods, whether in connection with
next annual impairment assessment or prior to thany triggering event occurs outside of the d¢eraduring which the annual goodv
impairment assessment is performed. It is not plessit this time to determine if any such futurga@inment charge would result or, if it dc
whether such charge would be material to our residlbperations.
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Quantitative Assessment

We utilized a quantitative assessment to test gdbdapairment for two reporting units during theurth quarter of fiscal year 2013 ¢
concluded that there was no impairment as thevédire of our reporting units exceeded their cagymlues by approximately 23% and 20
We have considered both the income method andanhankthod, where applicable, when determining #ie falue of reporting units. O
goodwill impairment test uses a weighting primatiyvards the income method to estimate the regpuirit's fair value. The income metho:
based on a discounted future cash flow analysitevthe market method is based on financial mukigle comparable companies and appli
control premium.

Our estimates of cash flow were based upon, amdtmey ¢hings, certain assumptions about expectedédutperating performance, suct
revenue growth rates, operating margins, adjusted discount rates, and future economic anda@naeonditions. Our estimates of discounted
flow may differ from actual cash flow due to, amaouitper things, economic conditions, changes tobmusiness model or changes in oper:
performance. Additionally, certain estimates ofcdisnted cash flow involve businesses with limitethicial history and developing revel
models, which increases the risk of differencesvben the projected and actual performance. The-tlemg financial forecasts that we util
represent the best estimate that we have at thesdaind we believe that its underlying assumptiseseasonable. Significant differences betv
our estimates and actual cash flow could matergffigct our future financial results, which couldpact our future estimates of the fair valu
our reporting unit. The market method of deterngniine fair value of our reporting unit requirestosise judgment in the selection of approp
market comparables.

Any significant reductions in the actual amountash flows realized by our reporting unit, reduasidn the value of market comparables
reductions in our market capitalization could impature estimates of the fair value of our repagtunit. Such events could ultimately result
charge to our earnings in future periods due tgtitential for a write-down of the goodwill assde@with our reporting unit.

Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities

Cash equivalents consist of financial instrumertigctv are readily convertible into cash and havgioal maturities of three months or les
the time of acquisition. Marketable securities sishprimarily of highly liquid investments with maities of greater than three months w
purchased. We generally classify our marketabbeiritées at the date of acquisition as availab&e- $ale. These securities are reported a
value with the related unrealized gains and logselsided in accumulated other comprehensive incdlogs), a component of stockholder’
equity, net of tax. Any unrealized losses which eonsidered to be other-thtemporary impairments are recorded in the othesrime (expens
section of our consolidated statements of opersatidtealized gains (losses) on the sale of mardeetaurities are determined using the specific:
identification method and recorded in the othepine (expense) section of our consolidated staterdrdperations. Please refer to Notef $he
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementsain IN, Item 15 of this Annual Report on Form-K. We measure our cash equivalents
marketable securities at fair value. The fair valakour financial assets and liabilities are dateed using quoted market prices of identical &
or quoted market prices of similar assets fromvaatharkets. Our Level 1 assets consist of our jmomarket funds. We classify securities wit
Level 1 assets when the fair value is obtained freal time quotes for transactions in active exgleamarkets involving identical assets.
available-for-sale securities are classified as having Levelp2tsn Our Level 2 assets are valued utilizing aketaapproach where the mar
prices of similar assets are provided by a vardtindependent industry standard data providersutoinvestment custodian. Most of our ¢
equivalents and marketable securities are valueddan Level 2 inputs. We do not have any investrossified as Level 3 as danuary 2
2013 .

All of our available-forsale investments are subject to a periodic impaitmeview. We record a charge to earnings whenclirgein fail
value is significantly below cost basis and judgede other-thatemporary, or have other indicators of impairmentshe fair value of a
available-for-sale debt instrument is less thamiitertized cost basis, an other-thaamporary impairment is triggered in circumstanebsre (1
we intend to sell the instrument, (2) it is moteely than not that we will be required to sell thetrument before recovery of its amortized
basis, or (3) a credit loss exists where we dcerpect to recover the entire amortized cost bddiseoinstrument. If we intend to sell or itis ma
likely than not that we will be required to selethvailable-forsale debt instrument before recovery of its amedtizost basis, we recognize
other-than- temporary impairment in earnings edoathe entire difference between the debt instrusiemmortized cost basis and its
value. For available-for-sale debt instruments &éna considered other-th&emporarily impaired due to the existence of aitieds, if we do nc
intend to sell and it is more likely than not the¢ will be required to sell the instrument befoeeavery of its remaining amortized cost b
(amortized cost basis less any currgatiod credit loss), we separate the amount ofrttpairment into the amount that is credit related e
amount due to all other factors. The credit lagmgonent is recognized in earnings.
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Stock-based Compensation

We measure stodiased compensation expense based on the estimatedlfie of equity awards at the grant date, @edgnize the exper
using a straighline attribution method over the requisite emplogeevice period. We estimate the fair value of eygé stock options on the d
of grant using a binomial model and we use theimipsading price of our common stock on the ddtgrant, minus a dividend yield discount
the fair value of awards of restricted stock uritsRSUs. We calculate the fair value of our emptgtock purchase plan using the Bl&dkole:
model. Our stock-based compensation for emploteek purchase plan is expensed using an accelesatedization model.

We determine the fair value of stock option awandshe date of grant using an optipricing model that is affected by our stock priseasell
as assumptions regarding a humber of highly comatek subjective variables. These variables inclbdéare not limited to, weighted aver
expected term, riskeee interest rate, expected stock price volatilitiyidend yield, actual and projected employeelstption exercise behavic
vesting schedules and death and disability proitiasilWe also segregate options into groups of eygas with relatively homogeneous exet
behavior in order to calculate the best estimataiofvalue using the binomial valuation model.

The expected life of employee stock options is i@vdd output of our valuation model and is impadpgdthe underlying assumption of
company. The risk-free interest rate assumptidmaged upon observed interest rates on Treasusydpippropriate for the term ofir employe
stock options. Our management has determined lieatise of implied volatility is expected to be moeflective of market conditions ai
therefore, can reasonably be expected to be a limtieator of our expected volatility than histali volatility. Dividend yield is based on hist
and expectation of dividend payouts.

Prior to the initial declaration of a quarterly batividend on November 8, 2012, the fair value wf equity awards was based on an expt
dividend vyield of 0% reflecting our prior historg iwhich we had not paid and did not expect to pashadividends on our common stock.
awards granted on or subsequent to November 8, 208 Bow use a dividend yield at grant date basethe per share dividends declared dt
the most recent quarter. Our RSU awards are rgiblifor cash dividends prior to vesting; therefahe fair value of RSUs is discounted by
dividend yield.

Additionally, for employee stock option and RSU aslg we estimate forfeitures annually and revise d¢btimates of forfeiture in subseqt
periods if actual forfeitures differ from thoseipsites. Forfeitures are estimated based on histaiperience. If factors change and we err
different assumptions in the application of accogstandards in future periods, the compensatiperese that we record under these accou
standards may differ significantly from what we baecorded in the current period.

Using the binomial model, we estimated the faiueabf the stock options granted under our stoclongilans using the following assumpti
during fiscal year 2013:

Weighted average expected life (in years) 3.14.9
Risk-free interest rate 1.5%2.3%
Volatility 39%-49%
Dividend yield 2.4%

We used the Blackcholes model to estimate the fair value of sha@®sed under our ESPP during fiscal year 2013,guie following
assumptions:

Weighted average expected life (in years) 0.52.C
Risk-free interest rate 0.1%0.3%
Volatility 44%-47%
Dividend yield —
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Litigation, Investigation and Settlement Costs

From time to time, we are involved in legal actiargl/or investigations by regulatory bodies. We aggressively defending our curr
litigation matters. However, there are many undetitss associated with any litigation or investigas, and we cannot be certain that these ac
or other thirdparty claims against us will be resolved withoustplitigation, fines and/or substantial settlernpayments. If that occurs, ¢
business, financial condition and results of openatcould be materially and adversely affectethftirmation becomes available that causes
determine that a loss in any of our pending lif@atinvestigations or settlements is probable, @adcan reasonably estimate the loss asso
with such events, we will record the loss in aceok with U.S. GAAP. However, the actual liabilityany such litigation or investigation may
materially different from our estimates, which aboéquire us to record additional costs.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth, for the periodsigaded, certain items in our consolidated statemehbperations expressed as a percentage o
revenue.

Year Ended

January 27, 2013 January 29, 201z January 30, 2011
Revenue 100.(% 100.(% 100.C %
Cost of revenue 48.C 48.€ 60.2
Gross profit 52.C 51.4 39.¢
Operating expenses:
Research and development 26.& 25.1 24.C
Sales, general and administrative 10.1 10.1 10.2
Legal settlement — — (1.6
Total operating expenses 36.€ 35.2 32.€
Income from operations 15.1 16.2 7.2
Interest and other income, net 0.2 0.4 04
Income before income taxes 15.4 16.€ 7.€
Income tax expense 2.3 2.1 0.t
Net income 13.1% 14.5% 7.1%

Fiscal Years Ended January 27, 2013, January 2922dhd January 30, 2011
Revenue

Fiscal Year 2013 vs. Fiscal Year 2012

Revenue was $4.28 billion for fiscal year 2013 $AdO billion for fiscal year 2012 , an increas& df%. A discussion of our revenue res
for each of our reporting segments and the othteigoay is as follows:

GPU BusinessGPU business revenue increased by 2.0% to $3,2lliGn for fiscal year 2013 when compared to $&B3million forfiscal
year 2012. This growth was largely attributable to the infwotion of GPUs based on our Kepler architecturdiscal year 2013. GeFor
notebook revenues increased on the strength ofelkképlsed design wins on the Ivy Bridge platformmoi®y demand for Kepldrased GeFort
desktop GPU products also contributed to the irsréa GPU business revenues. The GPU businesdatsdited from a greater than 36.
increase in Tesla revenue in fiscal 2013. Offsgttimese increases were a decrease in Quadro rewshioh we believe was due primarily
general weakness in Western Europe, and a contiohedihe in sales of our MCP products as we coetinio phase out our chipset product line.
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Tegra Processor BusinessTegra Processor business revenue increased B%02®. $764.4 million for fiscal year 2018 compared
$591.2 million for fiscal year 2012 . This increasas primarily due to higher sales of our Tegraa3ed smartphones and tablet devices
transitioned from the previous generation Tegraageld products and introduced our Tegra-3 basedegsors in Windows Rbased tabl
devices. Additionally, revenues for our embeddeddpcts for entertainment and automotive devices alsreased during fiscal year 20
Offsetting these increases was a decrease in re¥eom license fees and other revenue relatedrieegansoles.

All Other. The increase in revenue is also due to revenue fhenpatent cross licensing arrangement we entatedvith Intel in Januai
2011. We recognized $264.0 million in related Isieg revenue during the entire twelve months afdfisrear 2013, while fiscal year 2012 ¢
included $220.0 million in related revenue - refileg only ten months of the corresponding revenue.

Fiscal Year 2012 vs. Fiscal Year 2011

Revenue was $4.00 billion for fiscal year 2012 $8cb4 billion for fiscal year 2011, an increasel@f8%. A discussion of our revenue res
for each of our reporting segments and the othteigoay is as follows:

GPU Business GPU business revenue decreased by 4.8% to $8,b@bion for fiscal year 2012 when compared to38%.7 million fo
fiscal year 2011. The decrease was primarily attable to a decline in sales of MCP products aceveinued to phase out our chipset pro
line. Memory sales also decreased due to lowarssablume as decreases in market price for memagenit attractive for aduh carc
manufacturers to buy memory directly from the mark¢her than from us. Additionally, our Tesla puotrevenues decreased from the prior
primarily due to lower sales volume. Offsettingsk decreases were increases in GeForce desktopttdok revenues from continued ma
penetration of our Fermi architectusased GPUs. Strength of our Fermi architecture rasdltant design wins on the Sandy Bridge plat
contributed to the increase in GeForce notebookmess. Quadro revenues improved slightly as theageeselling price, or ASP, for workstat
products improved due to the recovery of corposptnding following the economic recession that befjaing fiscal year 2009.

Tegra Processor BusinessTegra Processor business revenue increased b2% %9 $591.2 million for fiscal year 2012 as compate
$197.6 million for fiscal year 2011. This increaseevenue was primarily driven by sales growtinfrthe acceleration of our Tegra 2 smartpl
and tablet products in the mobile market and in edidied product revenues primarily related to theertsihment markets. Revenue fi
development arrangements and license fees relagahte consoles remained stable in fiscal year @0tEh compared to fiscal year 2011.

All Other. Revenue increased primarily due to the recognitib8220.0 million of licensing revenue in fiscalaye2012 from the patent cre
licensing arrangement with Intel that we entered in January 2011 and began recognizing in A2

Concentration of Revenue

We generated 74% , 78% and 83% of our total revémuiiscal years 20132012 and 2011, respectively, from sales to custerautside tt
United States and other Americas. Revenue by gpbgraegion is allocated to individual countrieséd on the location to which the products
initially billed even if the foreign contract equiignt manufacturers, add-in board and motherboarlifaeturers’revenue is attributable to €
customers in a different location.

Revenue from significant customers, those represgeta% or more of total revenue for the respedtiates, is summarized as follows:

Year Ended
January 27, January 29, January 30,
2013 2012 2011
Revenue:
Customer A 13% 11% —
Customer B — — 12%
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Gross Profit and Gross Margin

Gross profit consists of total revenue, net ofvadloces, less cost of revenue. Cost of revenue ster@imarily of the cost of semiconduc
purchased from subcontractors, including waferi¢alion, assembly, testing and packaging, manufagfisupport costs, including labor ¢
overhead associated with such purchases, finalytekt fallout, inventory and warranty provisionadashipping costs. Cost of revenue
includes development costs for license, servicengements and stock-based compensation relatesigormel associated with manufacturing.

Gross margin is the percentage of gross profiet@mue. Our gross margin was 52.0%, 51.4% and®308 fiscal years 20132012 an
2011, respectively. Our gross margin is signiftaimpacted by the mix of products we sell and gary in any period depending on that pro
mix.

Our strategy for improving our gross margin religson delivering competitive product offerings tredlow us to maintain our marl
leadership position and expand our addressableatsadowering our product costs by introducing preidarchitectures that take advantag
smaller process geometries and improving our prochig. However, we may experience difficulties time transition to new manufactur
processes. We expect gross margin for the firstteuaf fiscal year 2014 to stay flat relative be tfourth quarter of fiscal year 2013.

A discussion of our gross margin results for edabuo reporting segments is as follows:

Fiscal Year 2013 vs. Fiscal Year 2012

Our gross margin increased to 52.0% in fiscal &3 from 51.4% in fiscal year 2012The improvement in gross margin was dr
primarily by increased unit sales and a richer pobanix of our highend GeForce desktop products, plus Tesla and Quaddoicts. The additic
of a full year of revenue from the patent croseriging arrangement with Intel compared to ten nwafttsuch corresponding revenue in fiscal
2012 also contributed to the improvement in grossgin. Offsetting these were the unfavorable immddtigher net provisions for inventory
fiscal year 2013 when compared to fiscal year 2012.

Our gross margin is favorably impacted by salegrofiucts that were previously written down. Salesuch items improved gross margir
approximately 1.3% and 1.8% in fiscal years 2013 20112, respectively. Conversely, our gross maggumfavorably impacted by provisions
new inventory reserves. The overall net effecbongross margin from inventory reserves and safl@ems previously written down was a 0.
unfavorable impact in fiscal year 2013 and a 0.8%efable impact in fiscal year 2012.

GPU Business The gross margin of our GPU business increasedgifiscal year 2013 when compared to fiscal y2@t2. This we
primarily due to a richer product mix of our Kepleaised highrend 28 nanometer GeForce desktop products and wadr® products. Mema
margins strengthened on improved market pricinges€hfavorable contributors to gross margin werearnily offset by higher net inventc
reserves in fiscal year 2013 compared to fiscat 2642.

Tegra Processor BusinessThe gross margin of our Tegra Processor busies®ased slightly during fiscal year 2013 as aexbto fisce
year 2012. This decrease was the result of a chemgeduct mix driven by a lower mix of revenuerr areas such as license fees and
revenues related to game consoles, which typitallye higher gross margins than our Tegra prodaffsgt by a higher mix of revenue from s
of our Tegra products, which grew substantiallyimythe year.

Fiscal Year 2012 vs. Fiscal Year 2011

Our gross margin increased to 51.4% in fiscal @2 from 39.8% in fiscal year 2011. The improvami@ gross margin was driv
primarily by revenue from the patent cross licegsanrangement with Intel, entered into in Janud¥12 Additionally, the increase in unit s¢
and a richer product mix of our GeForce desktop matbbook products and Quadro workstation prodastsvell as manufacturing ¢
efficiencies and strong management of inventoryg hiped our gross margin improve in fiscal yeadt2@ther favorable impacts to gross ma
were the absence in fiscal year 2012 of a net ehargost of revenue in the amount of $181.2 nmilliecorded in fiscal year 2011 related
weak die/packing material set and lower provisifamsiet inventory reserves in fiscal year 2012 carep to fiscal year 2011.

Our gross margin was favorably impacted by saleproflucts that were previously written down ancesaif such items improved gr
margin by approximately 1.8% and 1.9% in fiscalrge2012 and 2011, respectively. Offsetting thedeases are provisions for new inven
reserves. The net effect to gross margin fromritawy reserves and sales of items previously writewn was a 0.5% favorable impact in fi
year 2012 and a 3.0% unfavorable impact in fisealry2011.
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GPU Business The gross margin of our GPU business increaseidiglfiscal year 2012 when compared to fiscal y2@t1l. This we
primarily due to lower net provisions for inventaryfiscal year 2012 compared to fiscal year 20dd additional warranty accruals arising fro
weak die/packaging material set recorded in figegr 2011. Higher unit sales and richer product ofiour GeForce desktop and noteb
products also improved gross margin for the GPUness. In addition, the gross margin for both Quaaind Tesla products remained st
during fiscal year 2012 as compared to fiscal @&drl.

Tegra Processor BusinessThe gross margin of our Tegra Processor busidesseased during fiscal year 2012 as compareiddal fyea
2011. This decrease was a result of a change guptanix driven by a lower mix of license fees atlder revenue related to game consoles
higher mix of revenue from our Tegra products, Whicew substantially during fiscal year 2012.

Operating Expenses

Year Ended Year Ended
January 27, January 29, $ % January 29, January 30, $ %
2013 2012 Change Change 2012 2011 Change Change
(In millions) (In millions)
Research and development
expenses $ 1,147 $ 1,002.¢ $ 144 14.2% $ 1,002.¢ $ 848.¢ $ 153.¢ 18.1%
Sales, general and
administrative expenses 430.¢ 405.¢ 25.2 6.2% 405.¢ 361.t 44.1 12.2%
Legal settlement — — — — — (57.0 57.C (100.0%
Total operating expense$  1,578.0 $ 1,408. $ 169. 12.1% $ 1,408 $ 1,153.1 § 254.¢ 22.1%
Research and development
a percentage of net revenus 26.8% 25.1% 25.1% 24.(%
Sales, general and
administrative as a
percentage of net revenue 10.1% 10.1% 10.1% 10.2%

Research and Developme

Fiscal Year 2013 vs. Fiscal Year 2012

Research and development expenses increased by $tidbn , or 14.4% year over year. This increase was primarily dua $99.4 millioi
increase in compensation and benefits expense aomimue to hire engineering talent to invest im business. Depreciation and amortize
increased by $9.8 million, driven primarily by aripation of intangible assets associated with aguésition of Icera in fiscal year 2012, as \
as purchases of additional hardware and licensessgdihe year. Engineering development expensesased by $6.8 million related to the re
of our next-generation GPU architecture, Keplesigieed for 28nm technology and our next generdfiegra processor architecture, Tegra 4.

Fiscal Year 2012 vs. Fiscal Year 2011

Research and development expenses increased by8$hBigon, or 18.1%, year over year. This increases primarily driven by investmel
in our efforts to build next generation energy @éfnt computing architectures. These efforts resuih a $83.7 million increase in compense
and benefits expense and a $22.5 million increass#tdckbased compensation. Development expenses incregsgd.0 million related to t
ramp of our Kepler GPU architecture, designed f8nr2 technology and our Tegra 3 mobile computinghitgcture. Depreciation a
amortization increased by $8.8 million, driven panily by amortization of licenses acquired durihg year. Also contributing to the increase \
other acquisitiomrelated costs of $12.4 million for compensationrgka related to the retention program we estaldisbeemployees from o
acquisition of Icera in June 2011 and $6.0 millidramortization expense for intangible assets aaatwith this acquisition.
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Sales, General and Administrative

Fiscal Year 2013 vs. Fiscal Year 2012

Sales, general and administrative expenses inadas8 25.2 million , or 6.2%year over year. This increase was primarily dua $21.
million increase in compensation and benefits egpesis we continue to invest in our business. Atstributing to the increase was a $.
million expense for the net present value of aitdlale contribution that we recorded in the secqodrter of fiscal year 2013. Offsetting th
increases were decreases in outside professioeslofe$10.4 million due to an overall decreaserofgssional services costs during fiscal *
2013 compared with fiscal year 2012 due to a gémmeline in litigationrelated costs and the absence of services asgbeidte acquisitiol
activity in fiscal year 2013.

Fiscal Year 2012 vs. Fiscal Year 2011

Sales, general and administrative expenses inatdns$44.1 million, or 12.2%, year over year. Comgagion and benefits expense incre
by $29.5 million, primarily attributable to emplaygersonnel growth. Stoddased compensation increased by $10.5 million pifyndue to
combination of a higher outlay of equity awardsaagesult of the increase in employee personnelb &tmntributing to the increase were §
million of transaction costs related to the acdigsiof Icera, $3.5 million for compensation chargelated to the retention program we establi
for Icera employees and $2.2 million of amortizatexpense for intangible assets associated witlicdra acquisition. Offsetting these incre:
were decreases in outside professional fees of §illion due to lower litigatiorrelated costs and a decrease in depreciation andiaation o
$9.2 million due to certain software and lease-hwiprovements of buildings that became fully defaied during fiscal year 2012.

Legal Settlemer

On January 10, 2011, we entered into aysiar cross licensing agreement with Intel and aistually agreed to settle all outstanding I
disputes. The fair valued benefit prescribed ®ldgal settlement portion was $57.0 million and wecorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal \
2011.

We expect operating expenses to increase in thtegfilarter of fiscal year 2014, relative to therfowuarter of fiscal year 2013, primarily ¢
to employee-related costs, including supportingaistfucture costs related to planned hiring.

Interest Income and Interest Expense

Interest income, net of interest expense consfsist@rest earned on cash, cash equivalents ankletaddte securities. Interest income, ne
interest expense, was $16.6 million , $16.1 milleomd $15.9 million in fiscal years 2013 , 2012 @@l 1, respectively. This increase v
primarily due to the result of higher average daalances offset by lower interest rates.

Other Income and Expense

Other income and expense primarily consists ofzedlgains and losses on the sale of marketabigises and foreign currency translatic
Other expense, net of other income was $ 2.8 milli& 1.0 million and $ 0.5 million in fiscal yea2§13 , 2012 and 201lrespectively. The:
changes were primarily driven by an increase irifpr currency translation losses.

Income Taxes

We recognized income tax expense of $ 99.5 milli$r82.3 million and $ 18.0 million during fiscadgrs 2013 , 2012 and 20lfespectively
Income tax expense as a percentage of income biefoes, or our annual effective tax rate, was 15,0%.4% , and 6.7% in fiscal years 2013
2012 and 2011 , respectively.

Our effective tax rate on income or loss beforeftaxthe fiscal years was lower than the UnitedeStdederal statutory rate of 358ae tc
income or loss earned in jurisdictions, includingtiBh Virgin Islands, Hong Kong, China, Taiwan abdited Kingdom, where the tax rate
lower than the United States federal statutoryréae of 35% favorable recognition in these fiscal years &f thS. federal research tax credit
the expiration of statutes of limitations in centaion-U.S. jurisdictions for which we had not pmsly recognized related tax benefits.

We expect our effective tax rate to be approxinyat€i% in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, lexling any discrete tax events that t
occur, which, if realized, may increase or decreageeffective tax rate in such quarter.
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Please refer to Note 14 of the Notes to the Cotstdd Financial Statements in Part IV, Item 15hi Annual Report on Form 1K-for
additional information.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

January 27, 201% January 29, 201z

(In millions)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 732.¢ % 667.¢
Marketable securities 2,995.: 2,461.°
Cash, cash equivalents, and marketable securities $ 3727¢ $ 3,129.¢

Year Ended

January 27, January 29, January 30,
2013 2012 2011

(In millions)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 824.. $ 909.: $ 675.¢
Net cash used in investing activities $ (744.0) $ (1,143.9) $ (649.7)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities $ (15.9) $ 236.7 $ 192.(

As of January 27, 2013 , we had $3.73 billion istgaash equivalents and marketable securitiescamase of $598.3 milliofrom the end ¢
fiscal year 2012 Our portfolio of cash equivalents and marketa@eurities is managed on our behalf by severahéiia institutions which a
required to follow our investment policy, which tégs the purchase of tdjr investment grade securities, the diversifmatf asset types a
includes certain limits on our portfolio duration.

Operating activities

Operating activities generated cash of $824.2 onillji $909.2 million and $675.8 million during fiscgears 2013 , 2012 and 2011
respectively.

Cash provided by operating activities decreasdb@al year 2013 compared to fiscal year 2@tigharily due to a decrease in net income
unfavorable changes in operating assets and tiabiltompared to fiscal year 201Zor example, accounts receivable increased pitindue tc
higher sales in the fourth quarter of fiscal ye@t2 compared to the fourth quarter of fiscal yedt2and inventory increased as a result @
production ramp of Kepler-based GPU products.

Cash provided by operating activities increasefisital year 2012 compared to fiscal year 2011 prilsndue to an increase in net income
favorable changes in operating assets and liasilitompared to fiscal year 2011. For example, atsqayable increased as a result of the ti
of payments to vendors and inventory decreasedrasudt of an increase in inventory turnover. Highen-cash charges in earnings incluc
stock-based compensation and depreciation and izat@rh also contributed to the increase in caslvided by operating activities.

Investing activities

Investing activities have consisted primarily ofrghases and sales of marketable securities, atigniif businesses and purchase
property and equipment, which include leaseholdrav@ments for our facilities and intangible assetsesting activities used cash of784.(
million , $1,143.4 million and $ 649.7 million dug fiscal years 2013 , 2012 and 2011 , respectively

Cash used in investing activities for fiscal ye@l2 decreased by $399.4 millitrom fiscal year 2012 primarily due to the acquisitol
Icera in fiscal year 2012. We used $183.3 milliowards capital expenditures in fiscal year 20i&inly for the purchase of new research
development equipment, testing equipment to supmarincreased production requirements, technolmgyses, software, intangible assets
leasehold improvements at our facilities in varitmeations.
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Cash used in investing activities for fiscal ye@L2 increased by $493.7 million from fiscal yeal 2@rimarily due to the acquisition of lc
in the second quarter of fiscal year 2012 and amed purchases of marketable securities duringlfiggar 2012. Additionally, we used $13
million towards capital expenditures in fiscal ye#y12. Capital expenditures included purchase of research and development equipn
testing equipment to support our increased prodncetquirements, technology licenses, softwarangible assets and leasehold improvemel
our facilities in various locations.

Financing activities

Financing activities used cash of $15.3 millionidgrfiscal year 2013 and provided cash of $ 236illlam and $ 192.0 milliorduring fisca
years 2012 and 2011 , respectively.

Cash used in financing activities in fiscal yeat2@vas primarily due to our repurchase of $100.Maniof common stock and our firgtve
cash dividend payments of $46.9 million . Thesesusfecash were offset by cash proceeds of $64 Bomirom common stock issued under
employee stock plans and a non-cash tax bene$®®f7 million related to employee stock-based carapgton.

Cash provided by financing activities in fiscal y&812 was primarily due to cash proceeds of $184&lBon from common stock issu
under our employee stock plans and a non-cashetaefib of $52.8 million related to employee sto@dséd compensation.

Liquidity

Our primary source of liquidity is cash generatgd dur operations. Our investment portfolio conslstdf cash and cash equivale
commercial paper, mortgage-backed securities isdmedyovernmensponsored enterprises, money market funds and sedrities ¢
corporations, municipalities and the United Stgtsernment and its agencies. These investmenem@minated in United States dollars. A
January 27, 2013 , we did not have any investrriargaction-rate preferred securities.

All of the cash equivalents and marketable seegritire treated as “available-for-salkivestments in both fixed and floating rate int¢
earning instruments carry a degree of interestriske Fixed rate debt securities may have theirketavalue adversely impacted due to a ris
interest rates, while floating rate securities npagduce less income than expected if interest falésDue in part to these factors, our ful
investment income may fall short of expectations thuchanges in interest rates or if the decliniinvalue of our publicly traded debt or eq
investments is judged to be other-themporary. We may suffer losses in principal if are forced to sell securities that decline in meaviatue
due to changes in interest rates. However, becauseebt securities we hold are classified as tabkd-for-sale,”no gains or losses are reali
in our statement of income due to changes in iateaes unless such securities are sold prioraiunity or unless declines in market values
determined to be other-thaemporary. These securities are reported at faluev with the related unrealized gains and loseekided i
accumulated other comprehensive income, a compafistiwckholders’ equity, net of tax.

As of January 27, 2013 and January 29, 2012 , webl&a 73 billion and $ 3.13 billionrespectively, in cash, cash equivalents and el
securities. Our investment policy requires thechase of togier investment grade securities, the diversifmanf asset types and includes cel
limits on our portfolio duration, as specified inranvestment policy guidelines. These guidelinkss dmit the amount of credit exposure to
one issue, issuer or type of instrument. As of dan@7, 2013 , we were in compliance with our inrent policy. As of January 27, 2018ul
investments in U.S. government agencies and U.8ergment sponsored enterprises represented ap@t@iynb6%of our total investme
portfolio, while the financial sector accounted &pproximately 19%of our total investment portfolio. All of our inviesents are with A/A2 (
better rated securities.

We performed an impairment review of our investmgaittfolio as of January 27, 2013Based on our quarterly impairment review,
concluded that our investments were appropriatelyad and did not record any impairment duringdfisear 2013 .

Net realized gains were $ 0.5 million , $ 0.4 roifliand $ 1.5 million for fiscal years 2013 , 20121 2011 , respectively. As danuary 2}
2013 , we had a net unrealized gain of $ 10.9 enilliwhich was comprised of gross unrealized gafr11.7 million , offset by $ 0.8 millioof
gross unrealized losses. As of January 29, 2@i2had a net unrealized gain of $ 11.5 milljamhich was comprised of gross unrealized gai
$12.0 million , offset by $ 0.5 million of grossnealized losses.
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Our accounts receivable are highly concentratednaakk us vulnerable to adverse changes in ourmesgdbusinesses, and to downturn
the industry and the worldwide economy. Thregausrs accounted for approximately 40% of our aotoueceivable balance dnuary 2°
2013. While we strive to limit our exposure to uncotible accounts receivable using a combination eflitrinsurance and letters of cre
difficulties in collecting accounts receivable cdumaterially and adversely affect our financial dition and results of operations. Th
difficulties are heightened during periods whenreguic conditions worsen. We continue to work digeetith more foreign customers and it n
be difficult to collect accounts receivable froneth. We maintain an allowance for doubtful accodntsestimated losses resulting from
inability of our customers to make required paymaeifihis allowance consists of an amount identif@@dspecific customers and an amount b
on overall estimated exposure. If the financialditban of our customers were to deteriorate, ré@sgltn an impairment in their ability to me
payments, additional allowances may be requiredmag be required to defer revenue recognition desda affected customers, and we ma
required to pay higher credit insurance premiumg, & which could adversely affect our operatinguis. In the future, we may have to rec
additional reserves or write-offs and/or defer reieon certain sales transactions which could neggimpact our financial results.

Our cash balances are held in numerous locationaghout the world, including substantial amourgkitoutside of the United States. A
January 27, 2013, we had cash, cash equivalentsnarketable securities of $1.80 billion held withive United States and $1.93 billion t
outside of the United States. Most of the amoteld outside the United States may be repatriaigtie¢ United States but, under current
would be subject to U.S. federal income taxes, dggsicable foreign tax credits. Further, repéiiaof some foreign balances may be restr
by local laws. As of January 27, 2013, we havepnovided for U.S. federal and state income taxeapproximately $1.68 billion of undistribui
earnings of notdnited States subsidiaries, as such earnings agdmyed indefinitely reinvested outside the Unigtdtes. Although we have
current need to do so, if we repatriate foreigmiegs for cash requirements in the United Statesywould incur U.S. federal and state income
less applicable foreign tax credits, and reducethbycurrent amount of our U.S. federal and stateoperating loss and tax credit carryforwa
Further, in addition to the $1.80 billion of cashsh equivalents and marketable securities heldnibe United States and available to fund
U.S. operations and any other U.S. cash needsawe dccess to external sources of financing if asleeded in the United States other the
repatriation of foreign earnings where U.S. incamemay otherwise be due. Accordingly, we do eatspnably expect any material effect or
business, as a whole, or to our financial flexifpiwith respect to our current cash balances hetside of the United States.

Patent Cross License Agreement

On January 10, 2011, we entered into aysiar patent cross licensing agreement, or the keegreement, with Intel. Under the Lice
Agreement, Intel has granted to NVIDIA and its dfied subsidiaries, and NVIDIA has granted to Indeld Intel's qualified subsidiaries, a non-
exclusive, nortransferable, worldwide license, without the rigthsublicense to all patents that are either ovwarezbntrolled by the parties at ¢
time that have a first filing date on or before BaBl, 2017, to make, have made (subject to cditaitations), use, sell, offer to sell, import ¢
otherwise dispose of certain semiconductor- anctreleic-related products anywhere in the world. BWA's rights to Intel's patents have cert:
specified limitations, including but not limited,tdlVIDIA was not granted a license to: (1) certaimicroprocessors, defined in the Lice
Agreement as “Intel Processors” or “Intel CompatiBrocessors;2) certain chipsets that connect to Intel Processwor(3) certain flash memc
products. In connection with the License AgreemBiMIDIA and Intel mutually agreed to settle all standing legal disputes. Under the Lice
Agreement, Intel will pay NVIDIA an aggregate amboh$1.5 billion, payable in annual installmerds,follows: a $300 million payment on e
of January 18, 2011, January 13, 2012 and Jan®r301.3 and a $200 million payment on each of Janif, 2014, 2015 and 2016. Please
to Note 3 of the Notes to the Consolidated Findrsiatements in Part IV, Item 15 of this Annual Bemn Form 1K for further informatiol
regarding this cross license and the settlement.

Stock Repurchase Program

In fiscal year 2007, our Board of Directors authed us, subject to certain specifications, to refpase shares of our common stock up !
aggregate maximum amount of $2.7 billion throughyN813. In October 2012, the Board extended tlognam through December 2014. -
repurchases will be made from time to time in theromarket, in privately negotiated transactions$n atructured stock repurchase programs
may be made in one or more larger repurchasegmplkance with Rule 1068 of the Exchange Act, subject to market condgjaapplicabl
legal requirements, and other factors. The progtaes not obligate NVIDIA to acquire any particuéemount of common stock and the prog
may be suspended at any time at our discretiomatisof our share repurchase program, we haveeghieto, and we may continue to enter i
structured share repurchase transactions with dinhimstitutions. These agreements generally regthat we make an upent payment i
exchange for the right to receive a fixed numbeslures of our common stock upon execution of greeament, and a potential increme
number of shares of our common stock, within ageeermined range, at the end of the term of theeagent.
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Through January 27, 2013, we have repurchased gregage of 99.3 million shares under our stock melpase program for a total cos
$1.56 billion. As of January 27, 2013, we are atifed, subject to certain specifications, to repase shares of our common stock up to ¢
billion through December 2014. Please refer toeNbf the Notes to the Consolidated Financialegtants in Part IV, Item 15 of this Ann
Report Form 10-K for further discussion regarding equity incentive plans.

In addition to our Board authorized stock repurelsasve withhold common stock shares associated nettshare settlements to cover
withholding obligations upon the vesting of RSU as& under our equity incentive program. During fiezal year 2013, we withhe
approximately 1.8 million shares at a total cos$25.8 million through net share settlements. Rleaser to Note 2 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in Part IV, lf@mof this Annual Report on Form 10-K for furtherfdrmation regarding stodiase:
compensation related to equity awards granted umateequity incentive programs..

Cash Dividend Program

Prior to fiscal year 2013, we had never declaregaid any dividend on shares of our common stockNOvember 8, 2012, we announ
the initiation of a quarterly cash dividend prograrhis quarterly dividend of $0.075 per share igieglent to $0.30 per share on an annual k
The initial cash dividend was paid on December2D4,2 to all common stockholders of record at tlwselof business on November 23, 201
subsequent cash dividend of $0.075 per share vedardd on February 13, 2013, payable on March @1320 all common stockholders of rec
at the close of business on February 28, 2013s¢alfyear 2013, we paid $46.9 million in divideridour common stockholders.

Our cash dividend program and the payment of futash dividends under that program are subjeadntiraied capital availability and ¢
Board of Directors' continuing determination thae tdividend program and the declaration of dividetigereunder are in the best interests o
stockholders and are in compliance with all lawd agreements of NVIDIA applicable to the declamatmd payment of cash dividends.

Operating Capital and Capital Expenditure Requireitse

We believe that our existing cash balances andipated cash flows from operations will be suffiti¢o meet our operating, acquisiti
stock repurchase, cash dividend and capital rempeinés for at least the next twelve months. Howethere is no assurance that we will not r
to raise additional equity or debt financing witlhiis time frame. Additional financing may not beadable on favorable terms or at all and ma
dilutive to our thercurrent stockholders. We also may require additioapital for other purposes not presently contexteal. If we are unable
obtain sufficient capital, we could be requirecttotail capital equipment purchases or researchdamdlopment expenditures, which could h
our business. Factors that could affect our castl os generated from operations and, as a resulherd to seek additional borrowings or ca
include:

» decreased demand and market acceptance foraduqts and/or our customepoducts

* inability to successfully develop and producedatume production our nexgeneration product
» competitive pressures resulting in lower than etgobaverage selling prices;

* new product announcements or product introductignsur competitor

We expect to spend approximately $ 240.0 millior$ t280.0 millionfor capital expenditures during fiscal year 201dmprily for propert
development, leasehold improvements, software siegenemulation equipment, computers and enginearamgstations. In fiscal year 2014,
expect to break ground on a new building for ousdugiarters campus in Santa Clara to provide fomearterm growth needs. This 500,(
square foot building will provide 2,500 seats aedobilt on land we purchased five years ago. Wiena capital funding of $32.0 million for t
campus development project in fiscal year 2014ddition, we may continue to use cash in conneagtiitim the acquisition of new businesse
assets.

For additional factors see “Item 1A. Risk FactoRisks Related to Our Business, Industry and Partifeur revenue may fluctuate while
operating expenses are relatively fixed, which make results difficult to predict and could cawse results to fall short of expectatioris.
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Product Defect

Our products are complex and may contain defectsxperience failures due to any number of issuedesign, fabrication, packagil
materials and/or use within a system. If any of praducts or technologies contains a defect, coiifigt issue or other error, we may have
invest additional research and development efftatéind and correct the issue. Such efforts cadiert our management's and engineers’
attention from the development of new products t@etinologies and could increase our operating @siseduce our gross margin. In addit
an error or defect in new products or release®latad software drivers after commencement of comiadeshipments could result in failure
achieve market acceptance or loss of design wits, Ave may be required to reimburse customerd,diteg for customerstosts to repair
replace the products in the field, which could eaasr revenue to decline. A product recall or aificant number of product returns could
expensive, damage our reputation and could resuhe shifting of business to our competitors. €@stsociated with correcting defects, er
bugs or other issues could be significant and cmadterially harm our financial results.

During the three year period ended January 30, ,2@&lrecorded a cumulative net charge of $475.%amjlmost of which was charg
against cost of revenue, to cover customer warraapair, return, replacement and other costsngriBom a weak die/packaging material s¢
certain versions of our previous generation MCP @®RU products used in notebook configurations.tefeining the amount of the warra
charges related to this issue required managernemiake estimates and judgments based on histanigarience, test data and various ¢
assumptions including estimated field failure rates we believe to be reasonable under the cirtamoss. The results of these judgments fo
the basis for our estimate of the total chargeotec anticipated customer warranty, repair, reaurd replacement and other associated costs.
actual repair, return, replacement and other agtuticosts and/or actual field failure rates exaa@destimates, we may be required to re
additional reserves, which would increase our obstvenue and materially harm our financial result

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contractual gddgiions as of January 27, 2013 :

Payment Due By Period

Less than 1 More than 5

Contractual Obligations Total Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years Years All Other
(In thousands)

Operating leases $ 180,82: $ 34,29 $ 55,08 $ 47,90 $ 43,54 $ —
Capital lease 30,72( 4,92¢ 9,88t 10,44¢ 5,461 —
Purchase obligations (1) 470,30¢ 470,30¢ — — — —
Uncertain tax positions, interest &
penalties (2) 212,24! — — — — 212,24!
Capital purchase obligations 44,78¢ 44,78¢ — — — —
Retention program (3) 39,45! 14,77¢ 24,67°¢
Total contractual obligations $ 978,33t $ 569,09! $ 89,64. $ 58,35 $ 49,00¢ $ 212,24t
() Represents our inventory purchase commitmesntsf January 27, 2013
2) Represents unrecognized tax benefits of $2d4#llibn which consists of $ 104.0 million recordednon<current income taxes paya

and $ 96.9 million reflected as a reduction to thlated deferred tax assets, and the related sttarel penalties on the noofren
income tax payable of $ 11.3 million as of Januity2013. We are unable to reasonably estimate the timfremy potential tax liabilit
or interest/penalty payments in individual years tlu uncertainties in the underlying income taxitimss and the timing of the effecti
settlement of such tax positions.

3) Represents a retention program in the aggregatersmbapproximately $68.0 million in connectiortlvour acquisition of Icera on Ju
10, 2011. As of January 27, 201®e have made payments of $28.5 million in coripaawith this program. Remaining payments wil
paid out within the next three years.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

During fiscal years 2013 , 2012 and 2011 , we tmdhaterial off-balance sheet arrangements as dkimRegulation S-K 303(a)(4)(ii).
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Adoption of New and Recently Issued Accounting Poamcements

Please see Note 1 of the Notes to the Consolidaiteahcial Statements in Part IV, Item 15 of thisndal Report on Form 1R- for a
discussion of adoption of new and recently issu@b@anting pronouncements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK
Investment and Interest Rate Risk

As of January 27, 2013 and January 29, 2012 , wiebBar3 billion and $3.13 billionrespectively, in cash, cash equivalents and el
securities. We invest in a variety of financialtmsnents, consisting principally of cash and caghivalents, assdiacked securities, commer¢
paper, mortgage-backed securities issued by Gowartsponsored enterprises, money market funds and skshirities of corporatior
municipalities and the United States government iémdgencies. As of January 27, 2013 , we did haate any investments in auctioste
preferred securities. Our investments are denoethiat United States dollars.

All of the cash equivalents and marketable seegritire treated as “available-for-sallavestments in both fixed and floating rate int¢
earning instruments carry a degree of interestrisite Fixed rate securities may have their maviedie adversely impacted due to a rise in int
rates, while floating rate securities may prodwess lincome than expected if interest rates fale Dupart to these factors, our future investr
income may fall short of expectations due to charngénterest rates or if the decline in fair vabfeour publicly traded debt or equity investm:
is judged to be other-thaemporary. We may suffer losses in principal if ave forced to sell securities that decline in sééesrmarket value dt
to changes in interest rates. However, becausédeltysecurities we hold are classified as “avadldbi-sale,”no gains or losses are realized in
Consolidated Statements of Income due to changisgerest rates unless such securities are sadd frimaturity or unless declines in value
determined to be other-thaemporary. These securities are reported at fdwevavith the related unrealized gains and lossetuded ir
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)rpooent of stockholders’ equity, net of tax.

As of January 27, 2013we performed a sensitivity analysis on our flegtand fixed rate financial investments. Accordiagour analysi
parallel shifts in the yield curve of both plusmmmus 0.5% would result in changes in fair valuesthese investments of approximat8B0.<
million .

The financial turmoil that affected the bankingteys and financial markets and increased the pdisgithat financial institutions mig|
consolidate or go out of business resulted in lteiging in the credit markets, a low level of lidjity in many financial markets, and extre
volatility in fixed income, credit, currency andwty markets. There could be a number of followeffects from the credit crisis on our busin
including insolvency of key suppliers resultingproduct delays; inability of customers, includinigaonel partners, to obtain credit to finag
purchases of our products and/or customer, inciudimannel partner, insolvencies; and failure oéficial institutions, which may negativ
impact our treasury operations. Other income ampeese could also vary materially from expectatidegending on gains or losses realized o
sale or exchange of financial instruments; impaith@harges related to debt securities as well agyegnd other investments; interest rates;
cash, cash equivalent and marketable securities\&ad. Volatility in the financial markets and emmic uncertainty increases the risk that
actual amounts realized in the future on our fimgnastruments could differ significantly from tHair values currently assigned to them. A
January 27, 2013 , our investments in governmeah@gs and government sponsored enterprises repedsapproximately 56%f our tota
investment portfolio, while the financial sectorcaunted for approximately 19%f our total investment portfolio. Substantiayl of oul
investments are with A/A2 or better rated secugitif the fair value of our investments in thesetsrs was to decline by 2%84, the fair values
these investments would decline by approximatey/-$#123 million .

Exchange Rate Risk

We consider our direct exposure to foreign exchaagefluctuations to be minimal. Gains or lossem foreign currency remeasurement
included in “Other expense, ndti our Consolidated Financial Statements and te Have not been significant. The impact of foraigrrenc
transaction gain (loss) included in determining imebme for fiscal years 2013 , 2012 and 2011 w@s5$ million , $1.6 million ands(2.4.
million, respectively. Currently, sales and armmgnts with thirdsarty manufacturers provide for pricing and paymiantnited States dollai
and, therefore, are not subject to exchange rattuthtions. Increases in the value of the UniteteStdollar relative to other currencies wo
make our products more expensive, which could meggtimpact our ability to compete. Converselycamses in the value of the United States’
dollar relative to other currencies could resultour suppliers raising their prices in order to towre doing business with us. Fluctuation
currency exchange rates could harm our busineb®ifuture.
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We may enter into certain transactions such asdatveontracts which are designed to reduce theefytotential impact resulting frc
changes in foreign currency exchange rates. There no forward exchange contracts outstandingrataig 27, 2013 .
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The information required by this Item is set farfour Consolidated Financial Statements and Nibie®to included in this Annual Report
Form 10-K.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not applicable.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Based on their evaluation as of January 27, 2@l8 management, including our Chief Executivei@@ffand Interim Chief Financial Offici

has concluded that our disclosure controls andgolaes (as defined in Rule 1B&¢e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934nasnded, «
the Exchange Act) were effective to provide reabtmassurance.
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Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control OWerancial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingraaithtaining adequate internal control over finahmgorting, as such term is definec
Exchange Act Rule 1385(f). Under the supervision and with the partitipa of our management, including our Chief ExegaitOfficer an
Interim Chief Financial Officer, we conducted aralestion of the effectiveness of our internal cohover financial reporting as danuary 2°
2013 based on the criteria set forthlimernal Control - Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatimhthe
Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation utigercriteria set forth innternal Control — Integrated Frameworkour manageme
concluded that our internal control over financgporting was effective as of January 27, 2013 .

The effectiveness of our internal control over ficial reporting as of January 27, 2018 been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers L1
independent registered public accounting firm,tated in its report which is included herein.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Repogtin

There were no changes in our internal control direancial reporting during our last fiscal quarteat have materially affected, or
reasonably likely to materially affect, our interoantrol over financial reporting.

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls

Our management, including our Chief Executive @ifiand Interim Chief Financial Officer, does nopest that our disclosure controls .
procedures or our internal controls, will preveltearor and all fraud. A control system, no mattew well conceived and operated, can pra
only reasonable, not absolute, assurance thattjeetives of the control system are met. Furthes, design of a control system must reflec
fact that there are resource constraints, andeheftts of controls must be considered relativéh&r costs. Because of the inherent limitatior
all control systems, no evaluation of controls paovide absolute assurance that all control issnesinstances of fraud, if any, within NVID
have been detected.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART llI
Certain information required by Part Il is omittédm this report because we will file with the SBQefinitive proxy statement pursuan
Regulation 14A, or the 2013 Proxy Statement, net lthan 120 days after the fiscal year ended Jgriyg 2013, and certain information inclu
therein is incorporated herein by reference.
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

Identification of Directors

Reference is made to the information regardingcttrs appearing under the heading “Proposal 1 ctile of Directors” in our 201®roxy
Statement, which information is hereby incorpordigdeference.

Identification of Executive Officers

Reference is made to the information regarding @kee officers appearing under the heading “Exemu@fficers of the Registrantt Part
of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, which infornmatiis hereby incorporated by reference.

Identification of Audit Committee and Financial Expert
Reference is made to the information regardingctiirs appearing under the headirigeport of the Audit Committee of the Boarc
Directors” and “Information about the Board of Qiters and Corporate Governance” in our 2@t8xy Statement, which information is her
incorporated by reference.

Material Changes to Procedures for Recommending Déctors

Reference is made to the information regardingcttirs appearing under the headimgférmation about the Board of Directors and Cogpe
Governance” in our 2013 Proxy Statement, whichrimfation is hereby incorporated by reference.

Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act

Reference is made to the information appearing wtideheading “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownershgp&ting Compliance” in ou201:
Proxy Statement, which information is hereby incogted by reference.

Code of Conduct

Reference is made to the information appearing utite heading “Information about the Board of Dioes and Corporate Governance -
Code of Conduct” in our 2013 Proxy Statement, whiidbrmation is hereby incorporated by referendee Tull text of our “Code” andFinancia
Team Code” are published on the Investor Relatmmson of our web site, under Corporate Governaateww.nvidia.com The contents of 0
website are not a part of this Annual Report omia0-K.
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is hereby arporated by reference from the sections entitle@xetutive
Compensation”, “Compensation Committee Interlockal dnsider Participation”, “Director Compensatiarid ‘Compensation Committ

Report” in our 2013 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Ownership of NVIDIA Securities

The information required by this item is herebyarpgorated by reference from the section entitl®dcurity Ownership of Certain Benefic
Owners and Management” in our 2013 Proxy Statement.

Equity Compensation Plan Information
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Information regarding our equity compensation plamsluding both stockholder approved plans and-stockholder approved plans, will
contained in our 2013 Proxy Statement under théarapEquity Compensation Plan Information,” anchisreby incorporated by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is herebydmporated by reference from the sections entitiédfisactions with Related Persons”
“Review of Transactions with Related Persons” almddrmation about the Board of Directors and CogperGovernancelndependence of tl
Members of the Board of Directors” in our 2013 Br&tatement.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is herebydrporated by reference from the section entitledes Billed by the Independent Regist
Public Accounting Firm” in our 2013 Proxy Statement
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PART IV

ITEM 15.

EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

Page

(@) 1.= Consolidated Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfiiino, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years@dddnuary 27, 2013, January 29, 2012 and Ja
30, 2011

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incoméh®iyears ended January 27, 2013, Januar
2012 and January 30, 2011

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of January 27, &td 3anuary 29, 2012

Consolidated Statements of Stockholt&mguity for the years ended January 27, 2013, Jgrar2012
and January 30, 2011

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yaraated January 27, 2013, January 29, 2012 and
January 30, 2011

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Statement Schedule

Schedule |l Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Exhibits

The exhibits listed in the accompanying index thikits are filed or incorporated by reference am#
of this Annual Report on Form K.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of NVIDIA Coration:

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetsdisted in the index appearing under Item 15(apfesent fairly, in all material respects,
financial position of NVIDIA Corporation and itslssidiaries at January 27, 2048d January 29, 2012, and the results of theiratipais and the
cash flows for each of the three years in the peeinded January 27, 2018 conformity with accounting principles generalgcepted in tt
United States of America. In addition, in our dpm the financial statement schedule listed initftiex appearing under Item 15(a)(2) pres
fairly, in all material respects, the informaticet $orth therein when read in conjunction with tetated consolidated financial statements. Al
our opinion, the Company maintained, in all matenéapects, effective internal control over finahgeporting as of January 27, 201Based o
criteria established imternal Control - Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifribe Treadway Commissi
(COSO). The Company's management is responsibléhése financial statements and financial statéraehedule, for maintaining effect
internal control over financial reporting and fds iassessment of the effectiveness of internalr@looter financial reporting, included
Management's Report on Internal Control over Fir@riReporting appearing under Item 9A. Our respulity is to express opinions on the
financial statements, on the financial statemehedule, and on the Company's internal control dwancial reporting based on our integr:
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accountingr€lgbt Board (United States). Th
standards require that we plan and perform thetatadliobtain reasonable assurance about whethdmtnecial statements are free of mate
misstatement and whether effective internal cormtrar financial reporting was maintained in all eral respects. Our audits of the finan
statements included examining, on a test basisleage supporting the amounts and disclosures infitlaacial statements, assessing
accounting principles used and significant estimatade by management, and evaluating the oveamatdial statement presentation. Our auc
internal control over financial reporting includetitaining an understanding of internal control ofreancial reporting, assessing the risk th
material weakness exists, and testing and evauatie design and operating effectiveness of intezoatrol based on the assessed risk.
audits also included performing such other procesias we considered necessary in the circumstaedelieve that our audits provid
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is a@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranagirggthe reliability of financiz
reporting and the preparation of financial statetsdior external purposes in accordance with gelyemdcepted accounting principles.
companys internal control over financial reporting inclgdthose policies and procedures that (i) pertaithéomaintenance of records that
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet tfansactions and dispositions of the assetseo€dmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
transactions are recorded as necessary to peregtuation of financial statements in accordancé génerally accepted accounting princig
and that receipts and expenditures of the compamypa@ing made only in accordance with authorizatioh management and directors of
company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurancardagg prevention or timely detection of unauthedzacquisition, use, or disposition of
company'’s assets that could have a material effethe financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtwver financial reporting may not prevent or d@étmisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, CA

March 12, 2013
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NVIDIA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended
January 27, January 29, January 30,
2013 2012 2011

Revenue $ 4,280,155 $ 3,997,993 % 3,543,30
Cost of revenue 2,053,811 1,941,411 2,134,21!
Gross profit 2,226,34. 2,056,51 1,409,09
Operating expenses:

Research and development 1,147,28: 1,002,60! 848,83l

Sales, general and administrative 430,82: 405,61: 361,51

Legal settlement — — (57,000
Total operating expenses 1,578,10. 1,408,21! 1,153,34
Income from operations 648,23! 648,29¢ 255,74

Interest income 19,90¢ 19,14¢ 19,05°

Interest expense (3,299 (3,089 (3,129

Other expense, net (2,819 (969) (508¢)
Income before income tax 662,03 663,39t 271,16¢

Income tax expense 99,50: 82,30¢ 18,02
Net income $ 562,53t $ 581,09 $ 253,14t
Basic net income per share $ 091 % 0.9¢ $ 0.44
Weighted average shares used in basic per shagucation 619,32 603,64t 575,17
Diluted net income per share $ 09C $ 092 % 0.4:2
Weighted average shares used in diluted per sanputation 624,95 616,37. 588,68
Cash dividends declared and paid per common share $ 0.07t $ — & —

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteigements.
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NVIDIA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In thousands)

January 27, 201% January 29, 201z January 30, 2011

Net income $ 562,53t $ 581,09 $ 253,14t
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Net change in unrealized gains (losses) on aveifdstsale securities, net of tax
effect of $126, $937 and $306 in 2013, 2012 and. 2f8spectively (309) 75¢ (91¢)

Reclassification adjustments for net realized gamavailable-forsale securitie
included in net income, net of tax effect of $1$822 and $528 in 2013, 2012

and 2011, respectively (330 (419 (982)
Other comprehensive income (loss) $ (633 $ 34z % (1,900
Total comprehensive income $ 561,900 $ 581,43 $ 251,24¢

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbesteiements.
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NVIDIA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

January 27,
2013 January 29, 2012

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 732,78t $ 667,87t

Marketable securities 2,995,09 2,461,70!

Accounts receivable, less allowances of $14,791$44d854 in 2013 and 2012, respectively 454,25 336,14

Inventories 419,68t 340,29°

Prepaid expenses and other 69,70: 49,41

Deferred income taxes 103,73t 49,93
Total current assets 4,775,25 3,905,35!
Property and equipment, net 576,14 560,07:
Goodwill 641,03( 641,03(
Intangible assets, net 312,33. 326,13t
Other assets 107,48: 120,33:
Total assets $ 6,412,24. $ 5,552,92i
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 356,42¢  $ 335,07:

Accrued liabilities and other 619,79! 594,88
Total current liabilities 976,22. 929,95¢
Other long-term liabilities 589,32: 455,80
Capital lease obligations, long term 18,99¢ 21,43¢

Commitments and contingencies - see Note 13 — —
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $.001 par value; 2,000,000 star#®rized; none issued — —
Common stock, $.001 par value; 2,000,000,000 steargmrized; 720,153,197 shares issued and

616,756,134 outstanding in 2013; 705,352,099 shissesd and 612,191,412 outstanding in 2012 72C 70C
Additional paid-in capital 3,193,62. 2,900,891
Treasury stock, at cost (103,397,063 shares in 26t33,160,687 shares in 2012) (1,622,70) (1,496,90)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 9,981 10,61+
Retained earnings 3,246,08: 2,730,41
Total stockholders' equity 4,827,70. 4,145,72.
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 641224 $ 5,552,92i

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteigements.

65




Table of Contents

NVIDIA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(In thousands, except share data)

Accumulated

Common Stock Other Total
Outstanding Additional ~ Treasury Comprehensive Retained Stockholders'
Shares Paid-in
Amount  Capital Stock Income Earnings Equity

Balances, January 31, 2010 561,465,85 $ 655 $2,219,40. $(1,463,26) $ 12,17: $1,896,18 $ 2,665,14
Comprehensive income:
Other comprehensive income
(loss) — — — — (1,900 — (1,900
Net income — — — — — 253,14t 253,14¢
Total comprehensive income 251,24t
Issuance of common stock frc
stock plans 28,207,02 24 193,38: — — — 193,40!
Tax withholding related to vestit
of restricted stock units (1,117,17) — — (16,129 — — (16,129
Tax benefit from  stockasec
compensation — — (14,20) — — — (14,20)
Stock-based compensation — — 101,99t — — — 101,99t
Balances, January 30, 2011 588,555,70 677 2,500,57 (1,479,39) 10,27:  2,149,32 3,181,46:
Comprehensive income:
Other comprehensive income
(loss) — — — — 34z — 34z
Net income — — — — 581,09( 581,09(
Total comprehensive income — — — — — — 581,43.
Issuance of common stock frc
stock plans 24,753,36 23 213,34t — — — 213,36¢
Tax withholding related to vestit
of restricted stock units (1,117,65) — — (17,512 — — (17,517
Tax benefit from  stockasec
compensation — — 50,47¢ — — — 50,47¢
Stock-based compensation — — 136,49t — — — 136,49¢
Balances, January 29, 2012 612,191,41 70C 2,900,891  (1,496,90) 10,61«  2,730,41 4,145,72.
Comprehensive income:
Other comprehensive income
(loss) — — — — (639) — (63%)
Net income — — — — 562,53t 562,53t
Total comprehensive income — — — — — — 561,90
Issuance of common stock frc
stock plans 14,800,95 2C 90,72: — — — 90,74:
Tax withholding related to vestit
of restricted stock units (1,836,09) — — (25,809 — — (25,809
Stock repurchase (8,400,141 — — (200,000) — — (100,000
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Cash dividends declared and paid ($0.

per common share) — — — — — (46,86¢) (46,86¢)
Tax benefit from stoclasec

compensation — — 64,90¢ — — — 64,90¢
Stock-based compensation — — 137,10: — — — 137,10:
Balances, January 27, 2013 616,756,13 $ 72C $ 3,193,62. $(1,622,70) $ 9,981 $3,246,08 $ 4,827,70:

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finesteigements.
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NVIDIA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Year Ended

January 27, 201% January 29, 201z

January 30, 2011

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income $ 562,53t $ 581,09 % 253,14¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activities:
Stock-based compensation expense 136,66: 136,35 100,35:
Depreciation and amortization 226,23! 204,20! 186,98
Deferred income taxes 31,86( 19,05¢ (2,646
Tax benefit from stock-based compensation (68,710 (52,79) (15,319
Other 47,91 19,09: 1,572
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, neffetts of acquisitions:
Accounts receivable (118,941) 26,23¢ 26,34:
Inventories (78,949 18,88 (14,129
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (20,290 (14,809 8,52¢
Deposits and other assets 8,567 (70,699 4,331
Accounts payable 10,88t 35,70¢ (69,786
Accrued liabilities and other long-term liabilities 86,40: 6,81¢ 196,41:
Net cash provided by operating activities 824,17. 909,15t 675,79
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of marketable securities (2,378,44) (1,964,89) (1,719,701
Proceeds from sales and maturities of marketallerisies 1,817,411 1,310,74 1,170,07
Purchases of property and equipment and intanggsets (183,309 (138,73) (97,890
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash and caslvaigmts — (348,88 —
Other 352 (2,590 (2,169)
Net cash used in investing activities (743,99)) (1,143,36) (649,671)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under emelsipck plans 64,93 195,85 177,27t
Payments related to repurchases of common stock (100,000 — —
Dividend paid (46,86¢) — —
Tax benefit from stock-based compensation 68,71( 52,79 15,31¢
Payment of notes payable assumed from acquisition — (10,319 —
Payments under capital lease obligations (2,049 (1,609 (579
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (15,27() 236,72 192,02:
Change in cash and cash equivalents 64,91( 2,51t 218,14(
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 667,87t 665,36: 447,22:
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 732,78t $ 667,87¢ $ 665,36:
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash (received) paid for income taxes, net $ (38,60¢) $ 58,32¢ % (2,077
Cash paid for interest on capital lease obligations $ 2,77: % 300t $ 3,12
Year Ended
January 27, January 29, January 30,
2013 2012 2011
Non-cash activities:
Change in unrealized gains (losses) from marketdatarities $ (633 $ 34z $ (1,900
Assets acquired by assuming related liabilities $ 4519t  § 15911 § 252,79t

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsteigements.
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NVIDIA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Acounting Policies
Our Company

NVIDIA is a visual computing company, connectingpke through computer graphics. In a world increglyi filled with visual displays, o
graphics technologies let our customers interath wie world of digital ideas, information and etdaénment with an efficiency that no otl
communication medium can provide.

We have long been known to millions around the Wdok creating the graphics chips used in PCs lihiag video games to life. With ¢
invention of the GPU, we introduced the world te fflower of programmable shading, which defines mmodemputer graphics. Today, we re
well beyond PC graphics and games. Our eneffigient processors are at the heart of produanging from mobile devices to supercompu
PC gamers choose our GPUs by name and professiesighers use our GPUs to create visual effegtsovies and design everything from at
headsets to commercial aircraft. Supercomputeis dakantage of the massively parallel processipghilities of our GPUs to accelerate a v
range of important applications, from simulatiorfissiouses at the molecular level, to modern weafbezcasting and global oil exploration. (
Tegra processors power smartphones, tablets aathahile infotainment systems.

NVIDIA's research and development in visual compgitihas yielded more than 5,000 patents grante@mdipg worldwide, including on
covering inventions essential to modern computing.

Our businesses are based on two important techiestogpe GPU and the Tegra processor. GPUs, eathbillions of transistors, are t
engine of visual computing and among the world'stmemmplex processors. We have GPU product brardigmed for specific users ¢
applications: GeForce for gamers; Quadro for designTesla for researchers; and GRID for cloud-thasaphics solutions.

The Tegra processor is a system-on-a-chip, or SQ€yrating an entire computer on a single chimgraigrocessors incorporate mudtre
GPUs and CPUs together with audio, video and ioptput capabilities. They can also be integratetti Waseband processors for phone anc
communication. Unlike power-inefficient processbtslt for PCs, our Tegra SOC conserves power witdivering state-of-theut graphics ar
multimedia processing. Tegra runs devices like gghanes, tablets and PCs; it can also be embeddedinart devices, such as televisi
monitors, setop boxes, gaming devices and cars. We recentlguaroed Project SHIELD, the first Android device igesd for gaming. Proje
SHIELD features our Tegra 4 processor and leverBiy8BIA's deep partnerships with game developersar the world.

Headquartered in Santa Clara, California, we weacerporated in California in April 1993 and reingorated in Delaware in April 1998.

All references to “NVIDIA,” “we,” “us,” “our” or the “Company”’mean NVIDIA Corporation and its subsidiaries, excepere it is mac
clear that the term means only the parent company.

Fiscal Year
We operate on a 52- or a 53-week year, ending®tai Sunday in January. Fiscal years 2013, 20d2611 were 52-week years.
Reclassifications
Certain prior fiscal year balances have been rsifiad to conform to the current fiscal year preagan.

Principles of Consolidation

Our consolidated financial statements include tleeoants of NVIDIA Corporation and its whollywned subsidiaries. All mater
intercompany balances and transactions have bieeim&ied in consolidation.
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NVIDIA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymivith accounting principles generally acceptedthie United States of America,
U.S.GAAP, requires management to make estimatesassuimptions that affect the reported amounts stasand liabilities and disclosure:
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effithancial statements and the reported amoumsvehue and expenses during the reporting pr
Actual results could differ from those estimates. & ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates, includiogé related to revenue recognit
cash equivalents and marketable securities, acgorgtdeivable, inventories, income taxes, goodvathckbased compensation, warrs
liabilities, litigation, investigation and settlemtecosts and other contingencies. These estimatebased on historical facts and various ¢
assumptions that we believe are reasonable.

Revenue Recognition
Product Revenue

We recognize revenue from product sales when psirsuavidence of an arrangement exists, the prdthgbeen delivered, the price is fi
or determinable and collection of the related neslglie is reasonably assured. For most sales, wa bs®ling purchase order and in certain ¢
we use a contractual agreement as evidence afrangement. We consider delivery to occur upoprsant provided title and risk of loss h.
passed to the customer. At the point of sale, sessswhether the arrangement fee is fixed or detaebide and whether collection is reason
assured. If we determine that collection of a feadt reasonably assured, we defer the fee angnizeorevenue at the time collection beca
reasonably assured, which is generally upon recgipayment.

Our policy on sales to certain distributors, witghts of return, is to defer recognition of reveramd related cost of revenue until
distributors resell the product, as the level ¢fimes cannot be reasonably estimated.

Our customer programs primarily involve rebatesicilare designed to serve as sales incentiveselees of our products in various tal
markets. We accrue for 100% of the potential rebatel do not apply a breakage factor. We recogniisbility for these rebates at the later ol
date at which we record the related revenue odtte at which we offer the rebate. Rebates typietbire six months from the date of
original sale, unless we reasonably believe thattistomer intends to claim the rebate. Unclairebdtes are reversed to revenue.

Our customer programs also include marketing deweént funds, or MDFs. We account for MDFs as eitheeduction of revenue or
operating expense, depending on the nature of tbgrgm. MDFs represent monies paid to retaileystesn builders, original equipme
manufacturers, or OEMs, distributors and @&wdard partners that are earmarked for market sagaevelopment and expansion and typicall
designed to support our partners' activities whlg promoting NVIDIA products. Depending on markenditions, we may take actions
increase amounts offered under customer programssilgy resulting in an incremental reduction ofereue at the time such programs are offe

We also record a reduction to revenue by estahlishisales return allowance for estimated prodetarms at the time revenue is recogni
based primarily on historical return rates. Howevfeproduct returns for a particular fiscal periedceed historical return rates we may deter
that additional sales return allowances are reduogroperly reflect our estimated exposure fadpict returns.

License and Development Revenue

For license arrangements that require significarstamization of our intellectual property comporgsente generally recognize the rele
revenue over the period that services are perforfied most license and service arrangements, werrdete progress to completion baset
actual direct labor hours incurred to date as agrgage of the estimated total direct labor hoegsiired to complete the project. We periodic
evaluate the actual status of each project to ertbat the estimates to complete each contractimegcaurate. A provision for estimated losse
contracts is made in the period in which the lossdmes probable and can be reasonably estimatests @aurred in advance of reve
recognized are recorded as deferred costs on unedontracts. If the amount billed exceeds thewnt of revenue recognized, the ex
amount is recorded as deferred revenue. Revenagmized in any period is dependent on our prog@sard completion of projects in progre
Significant management judgment and discretionuaesl to estimate total direct labor hours. Any ¢geanin or deviations from these estim
could have a material effect on the amount of raeeme recognize in any period.
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NVIDIA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

For license arrangements that do not require sogmif customization but where we are obligatedrtwide further deliverables over the te
of the license agreement, we record revenue oeeottife of the license term, with considerati@teived in advance of the performance pe
classified as deferred revenue.

Royalty revenue is recognized related to the thistion or sale of products that use our technobgieder license agreements with t
parties. We recognize royalty revenue upon recdig confirmation of earned royalties and wherdemébility is reasonably assured from
applicable licensee.

Advertising Expenses

We expense advertising costs in the period in wthiey are incurred. Advertising expenses for figears 2013 , 2012 and 2011 wer8.%
million , $8.4 million and $9.5 million , respeactily.

Rent Expense
We recognize rent expense on a straight-line lmag&sthe lease period and accrue for rent expewsered, but not paid.
Product Warranties

We generally offer limited warranty to emders that ranges from one to three years for ptedn order to repair or replace products for
manufacturing defects or hardware component faluBost of revenue includes the estimated costarfyet warranties that are calculated a
point of revenue recognition. Under limited circuarees, we may offer an extended limited warrantgustomers for certain products. We
accrue for known warranty and indemnification issifie loss is probable and can be reasonably atin

Stock-based Compensation

We measure stodiased compensation expense based on the estinaaite@lfie of equity awards at the grant date, awbgnize the exper
using a straighline attribution method over the requisite emplogeevice period. We estimate the fair value of exygé stock options on the d
of grant using a binomial model and we use theimipsading price of our common stock on the ddtgrant, minus a dividend yield discount
the fair value of awards of restricted stock unilée calculate the fair value of our employee stpckchase plan using the BlaSichole
model. Our stock-based compensation for emplotek purchase plan is expensed using an accelaxatedization model.

Litigation, Investigation and Settlement Costs

From time to time, we are involved in legal acti@red/or investigations by regulatory bodies. We aggressively defending our curr
litigation matters . However, there are many urasties associated with any litigation or investigia, and we cannot be certain that these ac
or other thirdparty claims against us will be resolved withousttolitigation, fines and/or substantial settlemeayments. If that occurs, ¢
business, financial condition and results of openatcould be materially and adversely affecteéhflirmation becomes available that causes
determine that a loss in any of our pending lifatinvestigations or settlements is probable, wedcan reasonably estimate the loss asso
with such events, we will record the loss in aceok with U.S. GAAP. However, the actual liabilityany such litigation or investigation may
materially different from our estimates, which abuoéquire us to record additional costs.

Foreign Currency Remeasurement

We use the United States dollar as our functionatenicy for all of our subsidiaries. Foreign cuogmmonetary assets and liabilities
remeasured into United States dollars at end-abgezxchange rates. Nanenetary assets and liabilities such as property emuipment, ar
equity are remeasured at historical exchange rRegenue and expenses are remeasured at averdgam@eaates in effect during each pel
except for those expenses related to the previoathd balance sheet amounts, which are remeaatirgéstorical exchange rates. Gains or Ic
from foreign currency re-measurement are inclugetDither expense, neth our Consolidated Statements of Income and te Hate not be¢
significant.

The impact of net foreign currency transaction déies) included in determining net income for dilsgears 2013 , 2012 and 2011 wad )
million , $ 1.6 million and $ (2.4) million , resgévely.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Income Taxes

We recognize federal, state and foreign currenlighilities or assets based on our estimate xddgayable or refundable in the current fi
year by tax jurisdiction. We recognize federaltestand foreign deferred tax assets or liabilittessappropriate, for our estimate of future taxatf
attributable to temporary differences and carryfmdsg; and we record a valuation allowance to redngyedeferred tax assets by the amount o
tax benefits that, based on available evidencgudgient, are not expected to be realized.

United States income tax has not been provided portion of earnings of our ndd:-S. subsidiaries to the extent that such earnare
considered to be indefinitely reinvested.

Our calculation of current and deferred tax asseis liabilities is based on certain estimates amiyjnents and involves dealing v
uncertainties in the application of complex taxda®@ur estimates of current and deferred tax assetdiabilities may change based, in pari
added certainty or finality to an anticipated omtey changes in accounting standards or tax lawkenUnited States, or foreign jurisdictit
where we operate, or changes in other facts oarmistances. In addition, we recognize liabilitiesgotential United States and foreign income
contingencies based on our estimate of whether,tlamdextent to which, additional taxes may be diigve determine that payment of th
amounts is unnecessary or if the recorded taxitiais less than our current assessment, we magdpgired to recognize an income tax bene
additional income tax expense in our financialestagnts, accordingly.

As of January 27, 2013, we had a valuation allowarfc$224.8 milliorrelated to state and certain foreign deferred taets that managem
determined are not likely to be realized due, irt,pga projections of future taxable income andepdial utilization limitations of tax attribut
acquired as a result of stock ownership changesth& extent realization of the deferred tax asbetsomes more-likely-thamet, we wouli
recognize such deferred tax assets as an inconteteefit during the period.

Our deferred tax assets do not include the exessienefit related to stodiased compensation that are a component of ouraflegied stal
net operating loss and research tax credit camgmis in the amount of $459.1 milli@s of January 27, 2013. Consistent with prior yetue
excess tax benefit reflected in our net operaiisg bnd research tax credit carryforwards will d@anted for as a credit to stockholders' equfi
and when realized. In determining if and when egdax benefits have been realized, we have eleatatllize the with-andwithout approac
with respect to such excess tax benefits. We hiseeetected to ignore the indirect tax effectstotk-based compensation deductions for finai
and accounting reporting purposes, and specifitalhgcognize the full effect of the research teedi in income from operations.

We recognize the benefit from a tax position ofilg is more-likely-thannot that the position would be sustained upon chaked solely ¢
the technical merits of the tax position. Our ppli to include interest and penalties relatedrieeaognized tax benefits as a component of in
tax expense. Please refer to Note 14 of these Notbe Consolidated Financial Statements for &udit information.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income consists of net income andratbhmprehensive income (loss). Other compreherisiseme (loss) componel
include unrealized gains (losses) on availablestde securities, net of tax.

Net Income Per Share

Basic net income per share is computed using thghtesl average number of common shares outstardlirigg the period. Diluted n
income per share is computed using the weightethgeenumber of common and potentially dilutive skasutstanding during the period, u:
the treasury stock method. Under the treasury stoetkod, the effect of stock options outstandingaisincluded in the computation of diluted
income per share for periods when their effechisdilutive.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
We consider all highly liquid investments that egadily convertible into cash and have an origimaturity of three months or less at the 1
of purchase to be cash equivalents. As of Januarg@13 and January 29, 2012 , our cash and castagents were $732.8 million arb67.¢

million , respectively, which include $ 195.8 nolfi and $290.7 million invested in money market fufat fiscal year 2013 and fiscal year 2012
respectively.
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Marketable Securities

Marketable securities consist primarily of highiguid investments with maturities of greater th&meé months when purchased.
generally classify our marketable securities atdde of acquisition as available-fesle. These securities are reported at fair valtrethe relate
unrealized gains and losses included in accumulatteet comprehensive income, a component of stddkhs equity, net of tax. Any unrealiz
losses which are considered to be other-teamporary impairments are recorded in the otheorime and expense section of our consolic
statements of income. Realized gains and lossékeorale of marketable securities are determisgugithe specifigedentification method ar
recorded in the other income and expense sectionrofonsolidated statements of income.

All of our available-forsale investments are subject to a periodic impaitmeview. We record a charge to earnings whenctirgein faii
value is significantly below cost basis and judgede other-thamemporary, or have other indicators of impairmetftthe fair value of a
available-for-sale debt instrument is less thamait®rtized cost basis, an other-thamporary impairment is triggered in circumstanadeere
(1) we intend to sell the instrument, (2) it is mdikely than not that we will be required to sk instrument before recovery of its amortized
basis, or (3) a credit loss exists where we dcerpect to recover the entire amortized cost bddiseoinstrument. If we intend to sell or it is i
likely than not that we will be required to selkthvailable-forsale debt instrument before recovery of its amedtizost basis, we recognize
other-than-temporary impairment in earnings equhé entire difference between the debt instrusi@mortized cost basis and its fair value.
available-for-sale debt instruments that are caresid other-thatemporarily impaired due to the existence of aitfeds, if we do not intend
sell and it is not more likely than not that welvi required to sell the instrument before recpwdiits remaining amortized cost basis (amort
cost basis less any currgueriod credit loss), we separate the amount ofntipairment into the amount that is credit relatad the amount due
all other factors. The credit loss component iogeized in earnings while loss related to all otfaators is recorded as other compreher
income.

We performed an impairment review of our investmpattfolio as of January 27, 2013Based on our impairment review and ha
considered the guidance of the relevant accourtieigiture, we did not record any other than terappimpairment charges duririggcal yea
2013. We concluded that our investments were apprtglyizalued and that no other than temporary inmpeitt charges were necessary or
portfolio of available for sale investments asafiJary 27, 2013 .

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of cash, cash equivalents, atsaceivable, accounts payable and accrueditiabibpproximate their fair values due
their relatively short maturities as of January 2013 and January 29, 2012 . Marketable secuatiecomprised of available-feale securitie
that are reported at fair value with the relatedeatized gains and losses included in accumulatieer @omprehensive income, a compone
stockholders’ equity, net of tax. Fair value of tharketable securities is determined based on quoteket prices.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subjectaisancentrations of credit risk consist primarifycash equivalents, marketable securities
accounts receivable. Our investment policy requihes purchase of toper investment grade securities, the diversifmatdf asset type a
includes certain limits on our portfolio durationll marketable securities are held in our name, aged by several investment managers anc
by one major financial institution under a custbdiaangement. Accounts receivable from significeugtomers, those representing 10% or |
of total accounts receivable aggregated approxisna@% of our accounts receivable balance fromehrastomers at January 27, 20d4r&
approximately 20% of our accounts receivable badnom one customer at January 29, 201¥e perform ongoing credit evaluations of
customersfinancial condition and maintain an allowance fotemtial credit losses. This allowance consistaroimount identified for speci
customers and an amount based on overall estineafsasure. Our overall estimated exposure excluoesiats covered by credit insurance
letters of credit.

Accounts Receivable
We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts ikedse for estimated losses resulting from the ilitsdof our customers to make requi
payments. We determine this allowance, which ctsmsisan amount identified for specific customesuiss as well as an amount based on o

estimated exposure. Factors impacting the allowardade the level of gross receivables, the fim@nmondition of our customers and the ex
to which balances are covered by credit insurandetiers of credit.

73




Table of Contents
NVIDIA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventory cost is computed on an adjusted standasis, which approximates actual cost on an avevadiest-in, first-out basis. Invento
costs consist primarily of the cost of semicondiecfmurchased from subcontractors, including weadéri€ation, assembly, testing and packag
manufacturing support costs, including labor ané@rbgad associated with such purchases, final iefd fallout, inventory provisions a
shipping costs. We write down our inventory to tbever of cost or estimated market value. Excessoldbe or unmarketable inventory
completely written off based upon assumptions alaure demand, future product purchase commitmerstimated manufacturing yield lev
and market conditions. If actual market conditiamse less favorable than those projected by managemeif our current inventory or futt
product purchase commitments to our suppliers ekoee forecasted future demand for such produdditianal future inventory writelowns
may be required that could adversely affect ouratpegg results. Inventory reserves once establisinedhot reversed until the related inventory
been sold or scrapped. If actual market conditamesmore favorable than expected and we sell ptedhat we have previously written down,
reported gross margin would be favorably impacted.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depictiaf property and equipment is computed usirg dtraightine method based on 1
estimated useful lives of the assets, generallgethto five years. The estimated useful lives of buildings are up to twentfive years
Depreciation expense includes the amortizationseéts recorded under capital leases. Leaseholdweyments and assets recorded under c
leases are amortized over the shorter of the keaseor the estimated useful life of the asset.

Goodwill

Goodwill is subject to our annual impairment testing the fourth quarter of our fiscal year, orliearif indicators of potential impairme
exist. For the purposes of completing our impairhiest, we perform either a qualitative or a gitatite analysis on a reporting unit basis.

In fiscal year 2012, we early adopted an accourgtagdard update, commonly referred to as a stepapproach, that allows us to first as
qualitative factors to determine whether it is resesy to perform the twstep quantitative goodwill impairment test. Foragmg units in whicl
the qualitative assessment concludes it is mosdylithan not that the fair value is more than #sying value, the amended guidance elimir
the requirement to perform further goodwill impaémb testing. For those reporting units where sigaift change or events occur, and w
potential impairment indicators exist, we continaeutilize a twostep quantitative assessment to testing goodwillnfipairment. The first st
tests for possible impairment by applying a failuesbased test. In computing fair value of our repgrtimits, we considered both the incc
method and market method, where applicable. Thenecmethod is based on a discounted future cashdimlysis while the market methot
based on financial multiples of comparable comgaaied applies a control premium. Our goodwill innpegint test uses a weighting prima
towards the income method to estimate the repotimgs fair value. The second step, if necessaasures the amount of such impairmer
applying fair value-based tests to individual essetd liabilities.

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets primarily represent rights a@glimnder technology licenses, patents, acquiretigotual property, trademarks and custc
relationships. We currently amortize our intangilblssets with definitive lives over periods rangiram one to ten years using a method

reflects the pattern in which the economic bengfitthe intangible asset are consumed or otherussel up or, if that pattern cannot be reli
determined, using a straight-line amortization rodth
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Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

LongHived assets, such as property and equipment dadgitle assets subject to amortization are reuefiweimpairment whenever eve
or changes in circumstances indicate that the iceyigmount of an asset, or asset group may nadmverable. Recoverability of assets to be
and used is measured by a comparison of the cgrayimount of an asset, or asset group to estima@idaounted future cash flows expected t
generated by the asset, or asset group. If thgiegramount of an asset or asset group exceedstithated future cash flows, an impairn
charge is recognized for the amount by which theyoay amount of the asset or asset group excdededtimated fair value of the asset or i
group. Fair value is determined based on the agtdndiscounted future cash flows expected to bergéed by the asset or asset group. A
and liabilities to be disposed of would be sepdygiresented in the consolidated balance sheethendssets would be reported at the lower ¢
carrying amount or fair value less costs to seldl ewould no longer be depreciated.

Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations

We account for asset retirement obligations astetiaith the retirement of tangible lotiged assets and the associated asset retir
costs. The accounting guidance applies to legagatbns associated with the retirement of Idingd assets that result from the acquisit
construction, development and/or normal use ofabsets and requires that the fair value of a Itgbibr an asset retirement obligation
recognized in the period in which it is incurrecaireasonable estimate of fair value can be malde.fdir value of the liability is added to
carrying amount of the associated asset and thigi@uhl carrying amount is depreciated over tlie &if the asset. As of January 27, 2@I@
January 29, 2012our asset retirement obligations to return tlzasédold improvements at our headquarters facilitganta Clara, California a
certain laboratories at our Austin facility andeimtational locations to their original conditionauplease termination were $10.6 million &idD.z
million , respectively.

Adoption of New and Recently Issued Accounting ®rocements

In the third quarter of fiscal year 2013 we adopg@damended standard that simplifies how enties indefinitelived intangible assets 1
impairment, which improves consistency in impairt&sting requirements among loliged asset categories. This amended standard {zear
assessment of qualitative factors to determine lnenat is more likely than not that the fair valofean indefinitelived intangible asset is less tt
its carrying value. For assets for which this assent concludes it is more likely than not thatfie value is more than its carrying value, tf
amended standards eliminate the requirement t@mperfuantitative impairment testing as outlinedhie previously issued standard. This
standard did not have an impact on our consolid@edcial statements.

In the first quarter of fiscal year 2013, we addpt@ amended standard that increases the prominéiieens reported in other comprehen
income. This amended standard eliminates the optigmesent components of other comprehensive incasgpart of the statement of chang:
stockholders' equity and requires that all chamgesockholders' equity - except investments by distributions to, ownersbe presented eitr
in a single continuous statement of comprehengigeme or in two separate but consecutive statemé&htsadoption of this amended stan
impacted the presentation of other comprehensivenie, as we have elected to present two separat®bsecutive statements, but did not |
an impact on our financial position or results pémations.

Note 2 - Stock-Based Compensation

We measure stodiased compensation expense based on the estimatedlfie of equity awards at the grant date, @edgnize the exper
using a straighline attribution method over the requisite emplogeevice period. We estimate the fair value of exygé stock options on the d
of grant using a binomial model and we use theimipsading price of our common stock on the ddtgrant, minus a dividend yield discount
the fair value of awards of RSUs. We estimatefairevalue of shares to be issued our employeekgiacchase plan using the BlaSicholes at tr
commencement of an offering period in March andt&aper each year. Our stobksed compensation for employee stock purchaseis
expensed using an accelerated amortization model.
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Our consolidated statements of income include shaded compensation expense, net of amounts ¢agitals inventory, as follows:

Year Ended
January 27, January 29, January 30,
2013 2012 2011

(In thousands)
Cost of revenue $ 10,49C $ 11,32 $ 8,30¢
Research and development 82,15’ 80,50: 57,97
Sales, general and administrative 44,01t 44,53( 34,07:
Total $ 136,66: $ 136,35 $ 100,35:

As of January 27, 2013 and January 29, 2012 , ggeegate amount of unearned sthased compensation expense related to our «
awards was $208.7 million and $185.8 million , exdjvely, adjusted for estimated forfeitures. dfslanuary 27, 2013 and January 29, 2042
expect to recognize the unearned stbaked compensation expense related to stock optiersan estimated weighted average amortiz
period of 2.7 years and 2.5 years, respectively.oAJanuary 27, 2013 and January 29, 2012 , wecéxp recognize the unearned stbelse
compensation expense related to RSUs over an éstimaighted average amortization period of 2.7yaad 2.5 years.

Stock-based compensation capitalized in inventagssalted in a net charge of $0.4 million , $0.1liom and $0.7 millionin cost of revent
during the fiscal years ended January 27, 2018ualg 29, 2012 and January 30, 2011 , respectively.

During fiscal years 2013 , 2012 and 2011 , we g@uaipproximately 7.1 million , 6.4 million and Sr8llion stock options, respectively, w
estimated total grant-date fair values of $38.3ionil, $52.4 million and $34.4 million , respectiyeand weighted average gratfate fair value
of $5.38 , $8.16 and $5.89 per option, respectivBlyring fiscal years 2013 , 2012 and 2011 , waenigh approximately 8.1 million7.3 million
and 7.1 million RSUs, respectively, with estimatethl grant-date fair values of $112.8 million , 1917 million and $96.7 million respectively
and weighted average grant-date fair values of8813$16.31 and $13.61 per RSU, respectively.

Of the estimated total grant-date fair value, witnested that the stockased compensation expense related to the equasdavhat are n
expected to vest for fiscal years 2013 , 2012 did Zvas $27.1 million , $30.8 million and $23.5lmil , respectively.

Valuation Assumptions

We determine the fair value of stock option awamdshe date of grant using an optipricing model that is affected by our stock priseasell
as assumptions regarding a number of highly comatek subjective variables. These variables inclbdeare not limited to, weighted aver
expected term, riskee interest rate, expected stock price volatiliyidend yield, actual and projected employeelstaption exercise behavic
vesting schedules and death and disability proitiasil We segregate options into groups of empleyeith relatively homogeneous exert
behavior in order to calculate the best estimafaiofralue using the binomial valuation model.

The expected life of employee stock options is i@vdd output of our valuation model and is impadbgdthe underlying assumptions of
company. The riskree interest rate assumption is based upon olénterest rates on Treasury bills appropriatettier term of our employ:
stock options. Our management has determined lieatise of implied volatility is expected to be moeflective of market conditions ai
therefore, can reasonably be expected to be a limtieator of our expected volatility than histali volatility. Dividend yield is based on hist
and expectation of dividend payouts. Our RSU awardsnot eligible for cash dividends prior to vegtitherefore, the fair value of RSU:
discounted by the dividend yield.

Prior to the initial declaration of a quarterly batividend on November 8, 2012, the fair value wf equity awards was based on an expt
dividend vyield of 0% reflecting our prior historg iwhich we had not paid and did not expect to pgshadividends on our common stock.
awards granted on or subsequent to November 8, 208 Bow use a dividend yield at grant date basethe per share dividends declared dt
the most recent quarter.

76




Table of Contents
NVIDIA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Additionally, for employee stock option and RSU asi& we estimate forfeitures annually and reviged$timates of forfeiture in subseqt
periods if actual forfeitures differ from thoseipsites. Forfeitures are estimated based on histcaeiperience. If factors change and we ernr
different assumptions in the application of accomstandards in future periods, the compensatiperese that we record under these accou
standards may differ significantly from what we baecorded in the current period.

The fair value of stock options granted under daocls option plans and shares issued under our gm@@letock purchase plan have t
estimated with the following assumptions:

Year Ended
January 27, January 29, January 30,
2013 2012 2011
Stock Options (Using a binomial model)
Weighted average expected life (in years) 3.14.9 3.05.4 3.16.7
Risk-free interest rate 1.5%2.3% 1.9%-3.8% 1.5%-3.3%
Volatility 39%-49% 46%-65% 42%-53%
Dividend yield 2.4% — —
Year Ended
January 27, January 29, January 30,
2013 2012 2011
Employee Stock Purchase Plan (Using the Black-Scholes model)
Weighted average expected life (in years) 0.52.C 0.52.C 0.52.C
Risk-free interest rate 0.1%0.3% 0.1%0.7% 0.2%0.8%
Volatility 44%-47% 57%-61% 45%-47%
Dividend yield — — —

Equity Incentive Program

We consider equity compensation to be léegn compensation and an integral component ofefforts to attract and retain exceptic
executives, senior management and woliss employees. Currently, we grant stock optenmd RSUs under our equity incentive plans.
believe that properly structured equity compensatiligns the londerm interests of stockholders and employees batioge a strong, direct lir
between employee compensation and stock appretiastock options are only valuable to our engaayif the value of our common st
increases after the date of grant.

Amended and Restated 2007 Equity Incentive Plan

At the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on JRae 2007, our stockholders approved the NVIDIA Quogtion 2007 Equity Incenti
Plan, or the 2007 Plan. At the Annual Meeting afcBholders held on May 17, 2012, our stockholde@/ed an amendment and restateme
the 2007 Plan, or the Restated 2007 Plan.

The Restated 2007 Plan authorizes the issuanaecentive stock options, nonstatutory stock optioastricted stock, restricted stock u
stock appreciation rights, performance stock awapdsformance cash awards, and other stmded awards to employees, directors
consultants. Only our employees may receive ingergiock options. The Restated 2007 Plan succeedk988 Equity Incentive Plan, our 1¢
Non-Employee DirectorsStock Option Plan, our 2000 Nonstatutory Equityelmtéve Plan, and the PortalPlayer, Inc. 2004 Stockntive Plan, ¢
collectively, the Prior Plans. All options and faowards granted under the Prior Plans shall remaliject to the terms of the Prior Plans
respect to which they were originally granted. Unithe 2007 Plan or the Prior Plans, we could isguéo 101,845,178hares, which due to t
subsequent stock split became 152,767 st&fes, of our common stock. With the amendmentrestdtement of the 2007 Plan, which incre
the number of shares of common stock authorize@sfarance under the 2007 Plan by 25,000,000 shgyes,177,767,766hares of our comm:
stock may be issued pursuant to stock awards gramger the Restated 2007 Plan or the Prior Pl@ustently, we grant stock options and R:
under our equity incentive plans. As of January2,3 , there were 36,889,121 shares availablifore issuance under the Restated 2007 Plan.
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In September 2010, wehanged the vesting schedule for stock optionsR®ids granted to employees from a three year p#viadfour yee
period . Stock options granted to employees, stitjecertain exceptions, vest over a four yearquersubject to continued service, wRb%
vesting on the anniversary of the hire date inciee of new hires or the anniversary of the datganit in the case of grants to existing empla
and 6.25% vesting at the end of each quarterlygehiereafter We do have unvested stock options that contioues$t pursuant to a three y
vesting period, subject to continued service. @ysigranted under the 2007 Plan generally expirerdien years from the date of grant.

With respect to RSUs, subject to certain exceptiB®Js granted to employees vest over a four yedogh subject to continued service, v
25% vesting on a pre-determined date that is dogbe anniversary of the date of grant and 12.8%ting semannually thereafter until ful
vested. We do have unvested RSUs that continuestopursuant to a three vesting period, subjecomtinued service.

Unless terminated sooner, the Restated 2007 Planhisduled to terminate on March 21, 2022. Our @aaay suspend or terminate
Restated 2007 Plan at any time. No awards may drgegt under the Restated 2007 Plan while the ResEfi07 Plan is suspended or after
terminated. The Board may also amend the Rest@@d Rlan at any time. However, if legal, regulatoryisting requirements require stockho
approval, the amendment will not go into effectiluhie stockholders have approved the amendment.

PortalPlayer, Inc. 1999 Stock Option Plan

We assumed options issued under the PortalPlayer,1B99 Stock Option Plan, or the 1999 Plan, wivencompleted our acquisition
PortalPlayer on January 5, 2007. The 1999 Plantevasinated upon completion of PortalPlagariitial public offering of common stock in 20
No shares of common stock are available for issmamder the 1999 Plan other than to satisfy exesaié$ stock options granted under the :
Plan prior to its termination and any shares tle@ibme available for issuance as a result of expirair cancellation of an option that was iss
pursuant to the 1999 Plan. Previously authorizedigessued shares under the 1999 Plan were cashagiten completion of PortalPlaysrinitial
public offering.

Each option we assumed in connection with our aiipm of PortalPlayer was converted into the righpurchase that number of share
NVIDIA common stock determineby multiplying the number of shares of PortalPlagemmon stock underlying such option by 0.360d the:
rounding down to the nearest whole number of shdree exercise price per share for each assumed opéisrsimilarly adjusted by dividing t
exercise price by 0.3601 and then rounding upemtarest whole cent. Vesting schedules and expirdates did not change.

Under the 1999 Plan, incentive stock options weentgd at a price that was not less than 100% eofal market value of PortalPlayer’
common stock, as determined by its board of dirscton the date of grant. Natatutory stock options were granted at a pricewas not les
than 85% of the fair market value of PortalPlayedsnmon stock, as determined by its board of dirscon the date of grant.

Generally, options granted under the 1999 Plareseecisable for a period of ten years from the dagrant, and shares vest at a rat@5%
on the first anniversary of the grant date of tpéam, and an additional 1/48th of the shares upmmpletion of each succeeding full montt
continuous employment thereafter.

1998 and 2012 Employee Stock Purchase Plans

In February 1998, our Board approved the 1998 Bygd Stock Purchase Plan, or the 1998 Plan. Ahdtimeial Meeting of Stockholders h
on May 17, 2012, our stockholders approved the ZBd®loyee Stock Purchase Plan, or the 2012 Plansdiccessor to the 1998 Plan,
collectively with the 1998 Plan, the ESPP Plans.

Prior to the effective date of the 2012 Plan, we &athorized a total of 78,000,000 shares for imseiander the 1998 Plan, 54,567,66@re
of which had been issued, 15,000,000 shares ofhwhigre reserved for issuance pursuant to outstgrlinchase rights and 8,432,3@%ares ¢
which were available for future issuance. Uponajproval by our stockholders, the maximum aggregataber of shares that could be st
under the 2012 Plan would not exceed 55,432,33fsheepresenting the sum of (i) 32,000,0@Wly requested shares, (ii) the 8,432,333 s
which had been available for issuance under th& F38n and (iii) the number of shares subject tistanding purchase rights granted unde
1998 Plan that would otherwise have returned tol®88 Plan (such as upon the cancellation or etpiraf an outstanding purchase right)
such shares would become available from time te {which could not exceed 15,000,000 shares).
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Effective upon the August 31, 2012 purchase dateyaunt to the 1998 Plan, of the 15,000,000 shahéshvhad been reserved for issue
pursuant to outstanding purchase rights, 2,687s6@8es were issued pursuant to outstanding purcliggs, 183,00Ghares were available |
reserved for future issuance, and the remaining2B2302 shares were moved into the share resethe @012 Plan.

No additional purchase rights will be granted unither 1998 Plan (although all outstanding purchag#s granted under the 1998 Plan
continue to be subject to the terms of the 1998 Blad any offering document describing the ternts@nditions of offerings made pursuar
the 1998 Plan). At January 27, 2013, we had is&Ie@55,365shares under the 1998 Plan and 183,000 sharesawaitable but reserved 1
future issuance.

At January 27, 2013, no shares had been issued th&d2012 Plan and 52,561,635 shares were alabhal reserved for future issuance.

Each of the ESPP Plans is intended to qualify a&mployee stock purchase planiider Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code et
the ESPP Plans, the Board has authorized pariwiphy eligible employees, including officers, ierdic offerings following the adoption
each of the ESPP Plans. Under the ESPP Plansatepdiering periods shall be no longer thann®¥ths. Under the current offerings ado
pursuant to the ESPP Plans, each offering peri@d irmonths, which is divided into four purchasaqmis of six months.

Employees are eligible to participate if they amgptoyed by us or an affiliate of us as designatgthle Board. Employees who participat
an offering may have up to 10®8 their earnings withheld pursuant to the ESPm$lap to certain limitations and applied on spedifdate
determined by the Board to the purchase of shdresnomon stock. The Board may increase this peagenat its discretion, up to 15% he pric
of common stock purchased under the ESPP Plansbwilkqual to 85% of the lower of the fair markelueaof the common stock on !
commencement date of each offering period and tinehpse date of each offering period. During fisesrs 2013 , 2012 and 201&mployee
purchased approximately 5.5 million , 5.8 milliomnd 6.7 million shares, respectively, under th8818lan with weightedwverage prices
$10.83, $8.18 , and $6.59 per share, respectiaely,weighted average grant-date fair values dfé55$5.47 and $4.0@er share, respective
Employees may end their participation in the ESRIRgPat any time during the offering period, andipigation ends automatically on terminai
of employment with us and in each case their coutions are refunded.
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The following is a summary of our equity award gactions under our equity incentive plans:

Restricted Stock Units

Options Outstanding Outstanding
Weighted

Total Stock Average Weighted
Awards Exercise Weighted Average Aggregate Average
Available for Number of Price Per Remaining Contractual Intrinsic Value Number of Grant-Date
Grant Shares Share Life Q) Shares Fair Value
Balances, January 31, 2010 44,016,04 58,348,42 $ 11.3( 7,488,51 $ 12.2¢
Authorized — — % — — —
Granted (12,923,65) 5,818,961 $ 13.7¢ 7,104,69. $ 13.61
Exercised — (18,287,48) $ 8.1¢ — —
Vested Restricted Stock — — — (3,215,63) $ 11.7¢
Canceled and forfeited 2,644,10! (1,878,44) $ 12.5¢ (765,65) $ 13.7¢
Balances, January 30, 2011 33,736,48 44,00145 $ 12.8¢ 10,611,91 $ 13.2¢
Authorized — — % — — —
Granted (13,767,55) 6,430,770 $ 16.1¢ 7,336,77 $ 16.31
Exercised —  (15,5615,05) $ 10.7C — —
Vested Restricted Stock — — — (3,442,07) $ 12.0Z
Canceled and forfeited 2,457,01 (1,588,20) $ 14.7¢ (868,81) $ 14.7:-
Balances, January 29, 2012 22,425,95 3332897 $ 14.4« 13,637,80 ¢ 15.1(
Authorized (2) 25,000,00 — % — — —
Granted (15,254,97) 7,119,31' $ 13.8¢ 8,135,65: $ 13.8¢
Exercised — (3,646,68) $ 8.6¢ — —
Vested Restricted Stock — — — (5,691,62) $ 15.0Z
Canceled and forfeited 4,728,90 (3,806,29) $ 17.0¢ (922,61) $ 15.1¢
Balances, January 27, 2013 36,899,87 3299532 § 14.6¢ 5.0¢ $ 26,006,02 15,159,22 ¢ 14.4¢

Exercisable at January 27, 2013 20,156,21 $ 14.8¢ 3.0 $ 22,850,19

Vested and Expected to Vest a

January 27, 2013 30,971,522 $ 14.6¢ 4.8¢ $ 25,520,51 12,245,08 $ 14.4¢

(1) The aggregate intrinsic value in the tablevab@presents the total pre-tax intrinsic valueifiethe-money options at January 27, 20base
on the $12.4Xklosing stock price of our common stock on the NASDGIlobal Select Market on January 25, 2013, tisé tieading day ¢
fiscal year 2013, which would have been receivedhigyoption holders had all in-tmeney option holders exercised their options ahal
date. The total number of in-the-money options taatding and exercisable as of January 27, 201326ak million shares anfl.6 million
shares, respectively.

(2) Represents the shares that were approved 204@rAnnual Meeting of Stockholders.
The total intrinsic value of options exercised W24.1 million , $105.3 million and $139.1 millioorffiscal years 2013 , 2012 and 2011

respectively. Upon exercise of an option, we igsem shares of stock. The total fair value of otigested was $40.3 million , $49.5 millianc
$60.7 million for fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2Qtdspectively.
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Note 3 - Patent Cross License Agreement

On January 10, 2011, we entered into a gear patent cross licensing agreement, or the kEdégreement, with Intel. Under the Lice
Agreement, Intel has granted to NVIDIA and its dfied subsidiaries, and NVIDIA has granted to Indeld Intel's qualified subsidiaries, a non-
exclusive, nortransferable, worldwide license, without the righsublicense to all patents that are either ovwarezbntrolled by the parties at ¢
time that have a first filing date on or before BaBl, 2017, to make, have made (subject to cditaitations), use, sell, offer to sell, import ¢
otherwise dispose of certain semiconductor- anctreleic-related products anywhere in the world. BWA's rights to Intel's patents have cert:
specified limitations, including but not limited, tdlVIDIA was not granted a license to: (1) certamcroprocessors, defined in the Lice
Agreement as “Intel Processors” or “Intel CompatiBrocessors;2) certain chipsets that connect to Intel Procasswor(3) certain flash memc
products. In connection with the License AgreemBiMIDIA and Intel mutually agreed to settle all standing legal disputes. Under the Lice
Agreement, Intel will pay NVIDIA an aggregate ambwh $1.5 billion , payable in annual installmends, follows: a $300 milliopayment o
each of January 18, 2011, January 13, 2012 anddahg, 2013 and a $200 million payment on eackaafiary 15, 2014, 2015 and 2016.

Accounting for the Agreement

The License Agreement between NVIDIA and Intel uieds multiple elements. As a result, we determieach element of the Licer
Agreement, their fair value and when they shoulddmegnized. We allocated the total considerattomprising of the cash payments from |
and the estimated fair value of the license weivedefrom Intel, to the legal settlement and tleerise to Intel based on the estimated relativ
value of these elements as follows:

(In thousands)

Legal settlement $ 57,00(
License to Intel 1,583,00!
License from Intel (140,000
Total cash consideration $ 1,500,00!

The elements of the License Agreement are accodiotexs follows:

1. Legal settlementin connection with the License Agreement, bothipes agreed to settle all outstanding legal dispufThe fair valt
allocated to the settlement of $57.0 million wasorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 201 adenefit to operating expense.

2. License to Intel We will recognize $1,583.0 million in total, 06&0 million per quarter, as revenue over the term of the agreeo
six years, the period over which Intel will havecess to newly filed NVIDIA patents. Consideratioeceived in advance of t
performance period will be classified as deferredenue. We recognized $264.0 million and $220.0ianilof revenue in fiscal yee
2013 and 2012, respectively, as our performandgatin under the agreement commenced on April 2011

3. License from Intel We recognized $140.0 million as an intangibleeaspon execution of the agreement. Amortizatio8%0 millior
per quarter will be charged to cost of sales oher geveryear estimated useful life of the technology begignn April 2011. Wi
recognized amortization expense of $20.0 milliod &h6.7 million in fiscal years 2013 and 2012, exsjely.

Fair Value Determination

In determining the estimated fair value of the a@dats of the License Agreement, we assumed the stigimel best use of each element frc
market participant perspective. The inputs andrapsions used in our valuation included projecteceneie, royalty rates, discount rates, us
lives and income tax rates, among others. The dpwent of a number of these inputs and assumpiictie model required a significant amc
of management judgment and is based upon a nurhlfertors, including the selection of industry caamgbles, royalty rates, market growth r
and other relevant factors. Changes in any numbénese assumptions may have had a substantiaktngpathe estimated fair value of e
element. These inputs and assumptions represergaarent’s best estimate at the time of the traisact
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Note 4 — Net Income Per Share

The following is a reconciliation of the numerat@sd denominators of the basic and diluted netnmec@er share computations for
periods presented:

Year Ended
January 27, January 29, January 30,
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands, except per share data)

Numerator:
Net income $ 562,53t $ 581,09 $ 253,14t
Denominator:
Denominator for basic net income per share, wetjhteerage shares 619,32 603,64t 575,17
Effect of dilutive securities:
Equity awards outstanding 5,63 12,72¢ 13,50°
Denominator for diluted net income per share, weidaverage shares 624,95 616,37 588,68
Net income per share:
Basic net income per share $ 091 $ 0.9¢ $ 0.4
Diluted net income per share $ 09C $ 09¢ $ 0.4:

Potentially dilutive securities excluded from ina®rmer diluted share because tl
effect would have been anti-dilutive

26,78 22,617 24,64¢
Note 5 - 3dfx

During fiscal year 2002, we completed the purchafseertain assets from 3dfx Interactive, Inc., dfX3 for an aggregate purchase pric
approximately $74.2 million On December 15, 2000, NVIDIA Corporation and afi@ur indirect subsidiaries entered into an A$3etchas
Agreement, or the APA, which closed on April 18020to purchase certain graphics chip assets fidftan 3

In October 2002, 3dfx filed for Chapter 11 bankoypprotection in the United States Bankruptcy Cdarrtthe Northern District of Californi
In March 2003, the Trustee appointed by the Bartksuourt to represent 3d&’bankruptcy estate served his complaint on NVIDTAe
Trustees complaint asserted claims for, among other thisgscessor liability and fraudulent transfer aodght additional payments from us.
early November 2005, NVIDIA and the Official Comte# of Unsecured Creditors, or the Credit@smmittee, agreed to a Plan of Liquidatio
3dfx, which included a conditional settlement of firustees claims against us. This conditional settlemerg swbject to a confirmation proc
through a vote of creditors and the review and eygdrof the Bankruptcy Court. The conditional sattent called for a payment by NVIDIA
approximately $30.6 million to the 3dfx estate. Enthe settlement, $5.6 milliaelated to various administrative expenses andt@eufees, ar
$25.0 millionrelated to the satisfaction of debts and liab#iteved to the general unsecured creditors of Jdfgordingly, during the three mor
period ended October 30, 2005, we recorded $5.Bomias a charge to settlement costs and $25.Gomils additional purchase price
3dfx. The Trustee advised that he intended tooblbgethe settlement.

The conditional settlement reached in November 2@8kr progressed through the confirmation proeesisthe Trustes’case still remail
pending appeal. As such, we have not reverseddbeial of $30.6 million - $5.6 million as a chargesettlement costs and $25.0 millian
additional purchase price for 3dfxtkat we recorded during the three months endedb®ct80, 2005, pending resolution of the appeahe
Trustee’s case.

The 3dfx asset purchase price of $95.0 million $4@ millionof direct transaction costs were allocated basefdiowalues presented belc
The final allocation of the purchase price of thix3assets is contingent upon the outcome of athef3dfx litigation. Please refer to Note df3
these Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statesfenfurther discussion regarding this litigation.
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Straight-Line
Fair Market Value Amortization Period
(In thousands) (Years)
Property and equipment $ 2,43: 1-2
Trademarks 11,31¢( 5
Goodwiill 85,41¢ —
Total $ 99,16

Note 6 -Business Combinations

On June 10, 2011, we completed the acquisitioncefal, Inc. by acquiring all issued and outstandgingferred and common share:
exchange for cash. Icera develops baseband prosdes@G and 4G cellular phones and tablets. daiteon to leveraging on the existing Ic
business, the objective of the acquisition is toederate and enhance the combination of our apjglic@rocessor with Icera’baseband proces
for use in mobile devices such as smartphonesadiets.

Total consideration to acquire Icera was $352.2ianilin cash. All existing Icera equity based incentplans were terminated upon
completion of the acquisition. In connection withetacquisition of Icera, we established a retenpoogram in the aggregate amoun
approximately $68.0 million to be paid out to Iceraployees over a period of four years.

The fair values of the assets acquired and ligsliassumed by major class in the acquisition efalovere recognized as follows
thousands):

Cash $ 3,31¢
Accounts receivable 13,74(
Inventory 13,51(
Prepaid and other current assets 1,972
Deferred tax assets 13,03¢
Property, plant and equipment 3,64¢
Goodwill 271,18t
Intangible assets 97,51¢
Other assets 591

Total assets acquired 418,51
Accounts payable (6,02¢)
Accrued liabilities (38,73H
Notes payable (10,319
Income taxes payable (4,559
Deferred income tax liabilities (6,677)

Net assets acquired $ 352,19¢

The goodwill amount of $271.2 milliorarising from the acquisition is primarily attrilegt to the assembled workforce of Icera anc
premium paid over the fair value of the net asaetpiired from Icera. Goodwill recognized is nopested to be deductible for tax purposes.
have determined that goodwill from the acquisitioinlcera should be allocated to our Tegra Processgment. In addition, the revel
contribution from Icera was not significant for thigcal years ended January 27, 2013 and Januar3042. Please refer to Noteo¥these Note
to Consolidated Financial Statements for furthésrimation regarding the activity related to thergeng value of goodwill.
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The acquisitiorrelated intangible assets assumed from the adguisif Icera were recognized as follows based upeir fair values as
June 10, 2011:

Weighted-average

Intangible assets Fair value estimated useful lives
(In thousands) (In years)
Technology $ 58,30( 7.4
In-process technology $ 20,20( 5.C
Customer relationships $ 18,20( 6.8

Technology

Technology consists of core technology and existaahnology. Core technology represents a seriggaafesses and trade secrets the
used in Icera products and form a major part of the architectfrboth the current products and planned futeleases of current products.
used a profit allocation method to value the ce@hhology of Icera, based on market royalties iimilar fundamental technologies. The pr
allocation method estimates the cost savings tbatua to the owner of an intangible asset that datiherwise be payable on revenues e
through the use of the asset. The royalty rate &g was based on an analysis of empirical, mak&eted royalty rates for guideline intangi
assets. Revenue was projected over the expectadniaguseful life of the core technology and thie marketderived royalty rate was appli
to estimate the royalty savings.

Existing technology is specific to certain produatsjuired that have also passed technologicalbiéigsi We used an income approact
value Iceras existing technology. Using this approach, we wated the estimated fair value using expectedréuttash flows from speci
products discounted to their net present values appropriate risk-adjusted rate of return.

In-Process Technology

In-process technology, or IPR&D, represents the falues of incomplete Icera research and developmesjécts that had not react
technological feasibility as of the date of acdiosi. In the third quarter of fiscal 2013 we deentiggse projects to be complete and have estir
a definite life of five years, over which the teckogy will be amortized.

The fair value of the IPR&D was determined using iticome approach. Under the income approach xiheceed future cash flows from ei
project under development was estimated and disedua their net present values at an appropriskeadjusted rate of return. Significant fac
considered in the calculation of the rate of retware the weighted average cost of capital, themetn assets, as well as the risks inherent |
development process, including the likelihood dfiaging technological success and market acceptd&azh project was analyzed to deterr
the unique technological innovations, the existeand reliance on core technology, the existencaryf alternative future use or curr
technological feasibility, and the complexity, c@std time to complete the remaining developmenturéucash flows for each project w
estimated based on forecasted revenue and cdsigy tato account the expected product life cyctearket penetration and growth rates.

Customer Relationships

Customer relationships represent the fair valugrofected cash flows that will be derived from thade of products to Icem’existing
customers based on existing, in-process, and futnsons of the underlying technology.
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Note 7 - Goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill is as follows:

January 27, January 29,
2013 2012
(In thousands)

Icera $ 271,18t $ 271,18t
PortalPlayer 104,89t 104,89t
3dfx 75,32¢ 75,32¢
Mental Images 59,25: 59,25:
MediaQ 35,16° 35,16°
ULi 31,11t 31,11t
Hybrid Graphics 27,90¢ 27,90¢
Ageia 19,19¢ 19,19¢
Other 16,98« 16,98«

Total goodwill $ 641,03( $ 641,03(

The amount of goodwill allocated to our GPU andradgrocessor segments as of both January 27, 2@fl3amuary 29, 2012 w&228..
million and $412.8 million , respectively. Pleasger to Note 1f these Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stamgsnfor further discussi
regarding segments.

We allocate goodwill to our reporting units andfpen our annual impairment test during the fourttader of our fiscal year, or earlie
indicators of potential impairment exist. For therposes of completing our most recent impairmest, twe perform either a qualitative ¢
guantitative analysis on a reporting unit basis. 8dmpleted our most recent annual impairment teghd the fourth quarter of fiscal yea01:
and concluded that there was no impairment.

In a qualitative analysis, we evaluate factorsudiig, but not limited to, macro economic condiipmarket and industry conditio
competitive environment, operational stability ahd overall financial performance of the reporturgts including cost factors and budgeted-to-
actual revenue results. In a quantitative analysisconsider both the income method and marketodethihere applicable, when determining
fair value of reporting units. Our goodwill impaiemt test uses a weighting primarily towards theine method to estimate the reporting u
fair value. The income method is based on a digeoufuture cash flow analysis while the market rodtls based on financial multiples
comparable companies and applies a control premium.

The estimate of cash flow is based upon, amongr dttiegs, certain assumptions about expected fubperating performance such
revenue growth rates and operating margins usedltolate projected future cash flows, raffusted discount rates, future economic and m
conditions. The market method of determining thievfalue of our reporting unit requires us to usggment in the selection of appropriate me
comparables.
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Note 8 - Amortizable Intangible Assets

The components of our amortizable intangible assetss follows:

January 27, 2013 January 29, 2012
Gross Net Weighted Gross Net Weighted
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Average Carrying Accumulated Carrying Average
Amount Amortization Amount Useful Life Amount Amortization Amount Useful Life
(In thousands) (In years) (In thousands) (In years)
Acquisition-
related
intangible asset$ 172,03¢ $ (96,389 $ 75,65( 6.9 $ 172,03¢ $ (79,26) $ 92,77¢ 6.0
Patents and
licensed
technology 407,00: (170,320 236,68: 7.0 352,38t (119,029 233,35¢ 7.3
Total intangible
assets $ 579,04: $ (266,709 $ 312,33: $ 524,42' % (198,289 $ 326,13t

Amortization expense associated with intangibleetss$or fiscal years 2013 , 2012 and 2011 was $68libn , $59.0 million and$30.(
million , respectively. Amortization expense incged compared to the prior year primarily due todtldition of a patent portfolio and from in-
process technology from the acquisition of Icera that we deemed to be complete in the third quant fiscal year 2013, at which point
began to amortize it over its estimated useful difdive years. Future amortization expense for tile¢ carrying amount of intangible asset
January 27, 2013 is estimated to be $68.4 milliofisical year 2014 , $68.3 million in fiscal yed15 , $59.7 million in fiscal year 2016544.1
million in fiscal year 2017 , $40.5 million in fiatyear 2018 and $31.3 million in fiscal years shent to fiscal year 2018 until fully amortized.

Note 9 - Marketable Securities

All of the cash equivalents and marketable se@sritire classified as “available-for-sadeturities. Investments in both fixed and floatiaty
interest earning instruments carry a degree ofdastaate risk. Fixed rate debt securities may hbhes market value adversely impacted due
rise in interest rates, while floating rate sedesiimay produce less income than expected if isteates fall. Due in part to these factors, oturk
investment income may fall short of expectations thuchanges in interest rates or if the declininvalue of our publicly traded debt or eq
investments is judged to be other-thamporary. We may suffer losses in principal if are forced to sell securities that decline in meviatue
due to changes in interest rates. However, becauseebt securities we hold are classified as tabkd-for-sale,”no gains or losses are reali
in our statement of income due to changes in istegaes unless such securities are sold prioratrnity or unless declines in market values
determined to be other-thaemporary. These securities are reported at faluev with the related unrealized gains and loseekided it
accumulated other comprehensive income, a companfatackholders’ equity, net of tax.
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The following is a summary of cash equivalents avagketable securities at January 27, 2013 and 3p80a2012 :

January 27, 2013

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gain Loss Fair Value
(In thousands)
Debt securities of United States government agencie $ 867,08 $ 1,19¢ $ (139 $ 868,14
Corporate debt securities 1,255,29 3,17¢ (542) 1,257,93
Mortgage backed securities issued by United Stat@sernment
sponsored enterprises 183,03: 6,19/ (57) 189,17:
Money market funds 195,791 — — 195,79(
Debt securities issued by United States Treasury 785,221 1,10z (205) 786,22!
Total $ 3,286,433 $ 11,67 $ (843 $ 3,297,26:
Classified as:
Cash equivalents $ 302,16t
Marketable securities 2,995,09
Total $ 3,297,26
January 29, 2012
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gain Loss Fair Value
(In thousands)

Debt securities of United States government agencie $ 769,300 $ 1,60t $ (151) $ 770,75¢
Corporate debt securities 1,114,43 3,26¢ (260) 1,117,44
Mortgage backed securities issued by United Stat@sernment
sponsored enterprises 156,66! 4,96¢ (79) 161,55¢
Money market funds 290,73. — — 290,73.
Debt securities issued by United States Treasury 533,61t 2,161 3 535,77
Total $ 2,864,75 $ 11,99¢ $ 487 $ 2,876,26
Classified as:
Cash equivalents $ 414,56t
Marketable securities 2,461,70
Total $ 2,876,26
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The following table provides the breakdown of thegstments with unrealized losses at January 23 20

Less than 12 months 12 months or greater Total
Gross Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
(In thousands)
Corporate debt securities $ 563,84: $ (35 % 694,08¢ $ (507) $ 1,257,993 $ (542)
Mortgage backed securities issued
United States governmesponsore
enterprises 5,91 — 183,25¢ (57 189,17: (57
Debt securities of United States Treast 278,38. (15) 507,84. (90) 786,22! (105)
Debt securities issued by United St
government agencies 355,371 (23 512,76! (11¢) 868,14 (139)
Total $ 1,203,551 $ (73) $ 1,897,995 $ (77Q) $ 3,101,47 $ (843)

We performed an impairment review of our investmpattfolio as of January 27, 2013actors considered included general mi
conditions, the duration and extent to which failue is below cost, and our intent and ability addhan investment for a sufficient period of ti
to allow for recovery in value. We also consideedfic adverse conditions related to the finanhizdlth of and business outlook for an inve:
including industry and sector performance, chamgéschnology, operational and financing cash ffaators, and changes in an investeeredi
rating. Investments that we identify as having raidator of impairment are subject to further asalyto determine if the investment was o
than temporarily impaired. Based on our quarteripairment review and having considered the guidamtiee relevant accounting literature,
did not record any other-than-temporary impairmemrges during fiscal year 2013We concluded that our investments were apprigly
valued and that no other than temporary impairncbarges were necessary on our portfolio of avaldbt sale investments as &dinuary 2’
2013 .

As of January 27, 2013 , we had 9 investmentswieat in an unrealized loss position with totalaatized losses amounting $6.1 millior
and with a duration of less than one year. Theggusealized losses related to fixed income seesntere due to changes in interest rates
have determined that the gross unrealized loss@svestment securities at January 27, 288temporary in nature. Currently, we have theni
and ability to hold our investments with impairmendicators until maturity.

Net realized gains were $0.5 million , $0.4 milliand $1.5 million for fiscal years 2013, 2012, &@d1, respectively. As afanuary 2’
2013, we had a net unrealized gain of $10.9 millievhich was comprised of gross unrealized gafrf&ld.7 million , offset by $0.8 milliowf
gross unrealized losses. As of January 29, 20&2had a net unrealized gain of $11.5 milljamhich was comprised of gross unrealized gail
$12.0 million , offset by $0.5 million of gross @alized losses.

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of esglivalents and marketable securities which dareguily debt instruments are classifiec
available-for-sale at January 27, 2013 and Jar2@rg2012 and are shown below by contractual maturit

January 27, 2013 January 29, 2012
Amortized Estimated Amortized Estimated
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
(In thousands)
Less than one year $ 1,397,350 $ 1,399,30. $ 1,705,910 $ 1,708,15.
Duein 1 -5 years 1,777,78 1,783,10: 1,047,95 1,053,26!
Mortgage-backed securities issued by governrspafisore
enterprises not due at a single maturity date 111,30: 114,85t 110,88: 114,84
Total $ 3,286,43 % 3,297,26. $ 2,864,75 $ 2,876,26
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Note 10 — Fair Value of Cash Equivalents and Marketble Securities

We measure our cash equivalents and marketableitsecat fair value. The fair values of our findalcassets and liabilities are determi
using quoted market prices of identical assetsumtegl market prices of similar assets from activakets. Our Level 1 assets consist of
money market funds. We classify securities withevél 1 assets when the fair value is obtained freah time quotes for transactions in ac
exchange markets involving identical assets. Quailable-for- sale securities are classified as having Levelgutsn Our Level 2 assets
valued utilizing a market approach where the magkates of similar assets are provided by a var@tyndependent industry standard ¢
providers to our investment custodian. There weoesignificant transfers between Levels 1 and Ztasfor the year endedanuary 2
2013. Level 3 assets are based on unobservable inputset valuation methodology and include our ownadalbout assumptions mar
participants would use in pricing the asset oriliigthbased on the best information available unttiercircumstances.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at famer are summarized below:

Fair Value Measurement at Reporting
Date Using

Quoted Prices in  Significant Other

Active Markets for Observable
Identical Assets Inputs
January 27, 2013 (Level 1) (Level 2)
(In thousands)

Debt securities of United States government ager(tie $ 868,14 $ — % 868,14
Corporate debt securities (2) 1,257,93 — 1,257,93
Mortgage backed securities issued by United Stajegernmenisponsore:
enterprises (3) 189,17: — 189,17:
Money market funds (4) 195,791 195,79( —
Debt securities issued by United States Treasyry (5 786,22! — 786,22!

Total assets $ 3,297,26. $ 195,79 $ 3,101,47.

(1) Included in Marketable Securities on the Consodiddalance She

(2) Includes $ 98.6 million in Cash Equivalentsi&1,159.3 milliorin Marketable Securities on the Consolidated Badsicee
(3) Included in Marketable Securities on the Consodiddalance She

(4) Included in Cash Equivalents on the Consolidatddrizee Shee

(5) Includes $ 7.7 million in Cash Equivalents &nd78.5 millionin Marketable Securities on the Consolidated BaeBicee

Note 11 - Balance Sheet Components

Certain balance sheet components are as follows:

January 27, January 29,
2013 2012
Inventories: (In thousands)
Raw materials $ 164,32: $ 84,927
Work in-process 67,62¢ 62,93
Finished goods 187,73 192,43t
Total inventories $ 419,68t $ 340,29
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January 27, January 29, Estimated
2013 2012 Useful Life
(In thousands) (Years)
Property and Equipment:
Land $ 218,49t $ 218,49¢ (A)
Building 30,86¢ 30,86¢ 3-25
Test equipment 349,53( 299,50t 3-5
Software and licenses 245,73¢ 211,33¢ 3-5
Leasehold improvements 159,411 143,98t (B)
Computer equipment 174,71. 168,45! 3
Office furniture and equipment 58,71: 45,52: 5
Capital leases 27,23: 27,26« (B)
Construction in process 24,08t 11,09: ©
Total property and equipment, gross 1,288,78. 1,156,52
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (712,639 (596,45()
Total property and equipment, net $ 576,14 § 560,07

(A) Land is a non-depreciable asset.

(B) Leasehold improvements and capital leases m@tezed based on the lesser of either the assstimated useful life or the remaining e
term.

(C) Construction in process represents assetsitbatot in service as of the balance sheet date.

Depreciation expense for fiscal years 2013 , 20122011 was $157.6 million , $145.2 million and $Ibmillion , respectively.

January 27, January 29,
2013 2012
Prepaid Expenses and Other: (In thousands)
Prepaid maintenance $ 18,01 $ 12,96¢
Prepaid insurance 3,72¢ 3,50z
Prepaid taxes 9,78t 10,06¢
Prepaid rent 2,90¢ 3,41(
Other 35,26 19,46
Total prepaid expenses and other $ 69,70. $ 49,41
January 27, January 29,
2013 2012
Other Assets: (In thousands)
Prepaid taxes, long term (1) $ 64,96¢ $ 68,80¢
Prepaid maintenance, long term 10,24: 15,17t
Lease deposits 10,67« 8,02
Investment in non-affiliates 10,03( 10,38:
Deferred Income Taxes, long term 3,52 7,45¢
Other 8,04: 10,48
Total other assets $ 107,48: § 120,33:

(1) Represents long-term prepaid taxes relatedtey-¢ompany transactions that are deferred for accogiurposes and amortized over €
years.
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January 27, January 29,
2013 2012

Accrued Liabilities: (In thousands)
Deferred revenue $ 273,60¢ $ 270,64¢
Accrued customer programs (1) 163,40t 143,97:
Warranty accrual (2) 14,87 18,40¢
Accrued payroll and related expenses 98,97" 88,87¢
Accrued legal settlement (3) 30,60( 30,60(
Taxes payable, short- term 3,17: 6,941
Other 35,16( 35,43¢

Total accrued liabilities and other $ 619,79! $ 594,88(

(1) Please refer to Note df these Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statgsnfor discussion regarding the nature of accresiome
programs and their accounting treatment relatenitaevenue recognition policies and estimates.

(2) Please refer to Note 12 of these Notes t€thesolidated Financial Statements for discussigarding the warranty accrual.

(3) Please refer to Note 13 of these Notes t@ihresolidated Financial Statements for discussganding the 3dfx litigation.

January 27, January 2¢
2013 2012

Other Long Term Liabilities: (In thousands)
Deferred income tax liability $ 192,95( $ 133,
Income tax payable 115,26 63,
Asset retirement obligations 10,16¢ 10,
Deferred revenue from Intel cross license agreeifignt 236,15:. 200,
Other 34,78’ 48,
Total other long-term liabilities $ 589,32] $ 455,

(1) Please refer to Note (& these Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statdsnfor discussion regarding our revenue recagnitinder thi
agreement.

Note 12 - Guarantees

U.S. GAAP requires that upon issuance of a guagatie guarantor must recognize a liability for thie value of the obligation it assun
under that guarantee. In addition, U.S. GAAP respittisclosures about the guarantees that an déastyssued, including a tabular reconcilia
of the changes of the entity’s product warranthiliies.

Product Defect

Our products are complex and may contain defectsxperience failures due to any number of issnedeisign, fabrication, packagil
materials and/or use within a system. If any of products or technologies contains a defect, caitnipigt issue or other error, we may have
invest additional research and development efftwtéind and correct the issue. Such efforts cadilert our management’s and engineers’
attention from the development of new products t@etinologies and could increase our operating @siseduce our gross margin. In addit
an error or defect in new products or release®latad software drivers after commencement of comiadeshipments could result in failure
achieve market acceptance or loss of design witsn, Ave may be required to reimburse customerdydimy for customerstosts to repair
replace the products in the field, which could eaasr revenue to decline. A product recall or ai§icant number of product returns could
expensive, damage our reputation and could resuhea shifting of business to our competitors. €@stsociated with correcting defects, er
bugs or other issues could be significant and cmadterially harm our financial results.

During the three year period ended January 30, 2@&1recorded a cumulative net charge of $475.8amil most of which was charg
against cost of revenue, to cover customer waryaapair, return, replacement and other costsngriBom a weak die/packaging material s¢
certain versions of our previous generation MCP @Rl products used in notebook configurations.
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The previous generation MCP and GPU products tieaingpacted were included in a number of notebaoklgcts that were shipped and ¢
in significant quantities. Certain notebook confafions of these products are failing in the fiatchigher than normal rates. Testing sugge
weak material set of die/package combination, systeermal management designs, and customer usamstre contributing factors for th
failures. We have worked with our customers to tlgvand have made available for download a softwlarer to cause the system fan to b
operation at the powering up of the system andaedhe thermal stress dinese chips. We have also recommended to our cassotimat the
consider changing the thermal management of thdugte in their notebook system designs. We intenfililty support our customers in th
repair and replacement of these impacted prodbets fail, and their other efforts to mitigate thensequences of these failures. The v
die/packaging material combination is not usedniy @f our products that are currently in production

Accrual for estimated product returns and produernanty liabilities

We record a reduction to revenue for estimatedyrbceturns at the time revenue is recognized piiynidased on historical return rates. C
of revenue includes the estimated cost of prodactamties that are calculated at the point of raeeecognition. Under limited circumstances
may offer an extended limited warranty to custonferscertain products. Additionally, we accrue ksrown warranty and indemnification iss
if a loss is probable and can be reasonably esttndhe estimated product returns and estimatetliptavarranty liabilities for fiscal years 2013
2012 and 2011 are as follows:

January 27, January 29, January 30,
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
Balance at beginning of period $ 18,40t $ 107,89t $ 92,65¢
Additions (1) 5,73¢ 7,32¢ 194,10¢
Deductions (2) (9,270) (96,819 (178,86)
Balance at end of period $ 14,87:  $ 18,40¢ $ 107,89t

(1) Includes $ 186.2 million for fiscal year 20fbt incremental repair and replacement costs frameak die/packaging material set.

(2) Includes $ 3.0 million , $ 73.3 million and €98 million for fiscal years 2013 , 2012 and 2Qlrkspectively, in payments related to
warranty accrual associated with incremental regradt replacement costs from a weak die/packagingriabset.

In connection with certain agreements that we lexezuted in the past, we have at times provideenimities to cover the indemnified pe
for matters such as tax, product and employeditiabi We have also on occasion included intellatproperty indemnification provisions in «
technology related agreements with third partieaximhum potential future payments cannot be estichberause many of these agreemen
not have a maximum stated liability. As such, wevehaot recorded any liability in our Consolidatethdhcial Statements for st
indemnifications.

Note 13 - Financial Arrangements, Commitments an€ontingencies

Inventory Purchase Obligations

At January 27, 2013 and January 29, 2012 , we bigstamding inventory purchase obligations totaf4d@0.3 million and $561.3 million
respectively.

Capital Purchase Obligations

At January 27, 2013 and January 29, 2012 , we hastamding capital purchase obligations totalingt.84million and $40.5 million,
respectively.

Lease Obligations

Our headquarters complex is located in Santa C@a#ifornia and includes seven buildings that aeséd properties. The lease agreer
for four of the seven leased properties expirasical year 2020 and include two five-year renevaflsur option;
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one leased property expires in fiscal year 2014 wit option to renew; one lease property expirdsaal year 2017 with one five year renew:
our option and the remaining leased building expire fiscal year 2015 with one seven year renewalua option. Future minimum lee
payments related to headquarter operating leagak $85.1 million over the remaining terms of the leases, includingdetermined re
escalations, and are included in the future mininhemse payment schedule below.

In addition to the commitment of our headquarters,have other domestic and international officelifaes under operating leases expit
through fiscal year 2025. Future minimum lease &y under our non-cancelable operating leasekJaoary 27, 2013 , are as follows:

Future Minimum Lease
Obligations

(In thousands)

Fiscal Year:
2014 $ 34,29
2015 29,46t
2016 25,61¢
2017 25,26¢
2018 22,63¢
2019 and thereafter 43,54¢
Total $ 180,82:

Rent expense for the years ended January 27, 204aBuary 29, 2012 and January 30, 2011 was $38liérmj $37.9 million and$40.7
million , respectively.

Capital lease obligations include building and adfequipment lease obligations. The building leatses to our data center in Santa C
California. Future minimum lease payments under libédding capital lease total $30.5 millioover the remaining lease term, incluc
predetermined rent escalations, and are includéekifuture minimum lease payment schedule below:

Future Capital Lease
Obligations

(In thousands)

Fiscal Year:
2014 $ 4,92¢
2015 4,88¢
2016 4,997
2017 5,141
2018 5,301
2019 and thereafter 5,461
Total $ 30,72(
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 21,40¢
Current portion $ 2,40¢
Long term portion $ 18,99¢
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Litigation
3dfx

On December 15, 2000, NVIDIA and one of our indireabsidiaries entered into an Asset Purchase Awet or APA, to purchase cert
graphics chip assets from 3dfx. The transactiosez on April 18, 2001. That acquisition, and 3dfctober 2002 bankruptcy filing, led to f
lawsuits against NVIDIA: two brought by 3dfx's foemlandlords, one by 3dfx's bankruptcy trustee thedfourth by a committee of 3dfx's eqt
security holders in the bankruptcy estate. The lamallord cases have been settled with payments fhe landlords to NVIDIA, and the equ
security holders' lawsuit was dismissed with prejegnd no appeal was filed. Accordingly, only Bankruptcy trustee suit remains outstan
as more fully explained below.

In March 2003, the Trustee appointed by the Bartksu@ourt to represent 3dfx's bankruptcy estateesea complaint on NVIDIA asserti
claims for, among other things, successor liabidityd fraudulent transfer and seeking additionalngayts from us. The Trustee's fraudL
transfer theory alleged that NVIDIA had failed taypreasonably equivalent value for 3dfx's asseis,saught recovery of the difference betw
the $70.0 million paid and the alleged fair valudich the Trustee estimated to exceed $50.0 millidrhe Trustee's successor liability the
alleged NVIDIA was effectively 3dfx's legal succesand therefore was responsible for all of 3dfixipaid liabilities.

On October 13, 2005, the Bankruptcy Court heardTihestee's motion for summary adjudication, andDatember 23, 2005, denied 1
motion in all material respects and held that N\ADhay not dispute that the value of the 3dfx tratisa was less than $108.0 millionThe
Bankruptcy Court denied the Trustee's requesntbtfiat the value of the 3dfx assets conveyed ttNWwas at least $108.0 million.

In early November 2005, after several months of iatemh, NVIDIA and the Official Committee of Unsemd Creditors, or the Creditc
Committee, agreed to a Plan of Liquidation of 3dfkich included a conditional settlement of the stee's claims against us. This conditi
settlement was subject to a confirmation processuth a vote of creditors and the review and apgirof’/the Bankruptcy Court. The conditio
settlement called for a payment by NVIDIA of approately $30.6 million to the 3dfx estate. Under #iettlement, $5.6 milliorelated to variot
administrative expenses and Trustee fees, and $8Bli0n related to the satisfaction of debts and liabditmved to the general unsect
creditors of 3dfx. Accordingly, during the three mtio period ended October 30, 2005, we recorded®8li®n as a charge to settlement costs
$25.0 million as additional purchase price for 3dbhe Trustee advised that he intended to obgethe settlement. The conditional settlen
never progressed substantially through the confiongrocess.

On December 21, 2006, the Bankruptcy Court schedalg&ial for one portion of the Trustee's caserega\NVIDIA. On January 2, 20C
NVIDIA terminated the settlement agreement on gdsuthat the Bankruptcy Court had failed to proceedard confirmation of the Credito
Committee's plan. A nojwry trial began on March 21, 2007 on valuatioruessin the Trustee's constructive fraudulent temeskaims again
NVIDIA. Specifically, the Bankruptcy Court tried do questions: (1) what did 3dfx transfer to NVIDidthe APA; (2) of what was transferr
what qualifies as “property’subject to the Bankruptcy Court's avoidance powsrder the Uniform Fraudulent Transfer Act and rafe
bankruptcy code provisions; (3) what is the fairkea value of the “propertyidentified in answer to question (2); and (4) waes $70.0 milliol
that NVIDIA paid “reasonably equivalent” to the fanarket value of that property. The parties cotgulgost-trial briefing on May 25, 2007.

On April 30, 2008, the Bankruptcy Court issuedNtsmorandum Decision After Trial, in which it proed a detailed summary of the t
proceedings and the parties' contentions and esidand concluded that “the creditors of 3dfx weskinjured by the Transaction.This decisiol
did not entirely dispose of the Trustee's actimwdwer, as the Trustee's claims for successotitiaand intentional fraudulent conveyance w
still pending. On June 19, 2008, NVIDIA filed a tiom for summary judgment to convert the MemorandDatision After Trial to a fini
judgment. That motion was granted in its entiatgd judgment was entered in NVIDIA's favor on Sepier 11, 2008. The Trustee filed a Na
of Appeal from that judgment on September 22, 2@®8, on September 25, 2008, NVIDIA exercised ist#dn to have the appeal heard by
United States District Court.

The District Court's hearing on the Trustee's app@a held on June 10, 2009. On December 20, 20#0District Court issued an Ori
affirming the Bankruptcy Court's entry of summauggment in NVIDIA's favor. On January 19, 2011, Trrastee filed a Notice of Appeal to-
United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Citclihe appeal is currently pending.

While the conditional settlement reached in Noven#®95 never progressed through the confirmatiocgss, the Trustee's case still ren
pending on appeal. Accordingly, we have not rexethe accrual of $30.6 million 5% million as a charge to settlement costs and$2filion
as additional purchase price for 3dfthat we recorded during the three months endedb@ct®0, 2005, pending resolution of the appeahe
Trustee's case.

94




Table of Contents

NVIDIA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Product Defect Litigation and Securities Ca
Product Defect Litigation

In September, October and November 2008, sevetatipel consumer class action lawsuits were filedirzg} us, asserting various cla
arising from a weak die/packaging material set entain versions of our previous generation prodwstsd in notebook configurations.
February 26, 2009, the various lawsuits were cadesteld in the United States District Court for tHerthern District of California, San Jc
Division, under the caption “The NVIDIA GPU Litigah.” On March 2, 2009, several of the parties filed mm@ifor appointment of lead cour
and briefs addressing certain related issues. @il A0, 2009, the District Court appointed Milbek§iP lead counsel. On May 6, 2009,
plaintiffs filed an Amended Consolidated Complaaileging claims for violations of California Busiss and Professions Code Section 11
Breach of Implied Warranty under California Civib@ Section 1792, Breach of the Implied Warrantylefchantability under the laws of
other states, Breach of Warranty under the Magnioss Warranty Act, Unjust Enrichment, violationstb& New Jersey Consumer Fraud
Strict Liability and Negligence, and violation oalfornia's Consumer Legal Remedies Act.

After extensive motion practice and litigation, iptéfs on December 14, 2009 filed a Second Amen@aahsolidated Complaint seek
unspecified damages and asserting claims for wolgtof California Business and Professions Cod#i@e 17200, Breach of Implied Warra
under California Civil Code Section 1792, Breach\gdrranty under the Magnusdtess Warranty Act, violations of the New Jersey §lane
Fraud Act, Strict Liability and Negligence, and haitbon of California's Consumer Legal Remedies Act.

On July 16, 2010, the parties filed a stipulatioithvthe District Court advising that, following miation they had reached a settlemer
principle in The NVIDIA GPU Litigation. The settigent in principle was subject to certain approvialsluding final approval by the court. A
result of the settlement in principle, and the ot#stimated settlement, and offsetting insurantcelersements, NVIDIA recorded a net charg
$12.7 million to sales, general and administragixpense during the second quarter of fiscal yeat 20n addition, a portion of tH&181.2 millior
of additional charges we recorded against cost\wwnue related to the weak die/packaging set dthimgecond quarter of fiscal year 2011, re
to estimated additional repair and replacementscetated to the implementation of these settlemaédih August 12, 2010, the parties execu
Stipulation and Agreement of Settlement and Rele@seSeptember 15, 2010, the Court issued an agderting preliminary approval of t
settlement and providing for notice to the potdrtiass members. The Final Approval Hearing was loel December 20, 2010, and on that ¢
day the Court approved the settlement and enteireal Budgment over several objections. In Janu@i/12 several objectors filed Notices
Appeal of the Final Judgment to the United StatesrCof Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. The appesaturrently pending.

On July 22, 2011, a putative class action titlecr@eld v. NVIDIA Corp. was filed in federal couirt Massachusetts asserting claims
breach of implied warranties arising out of the kvd&/packaging material set, on behalf of a ctefssonsumers alleged to not be covered b
settlement approved by the California court in THéIDIA GPU Litigation. On November 3, 2011 the iact was transferred to the North
District of California, San Francisco Division, leasupon stipulation of the parties. On December2811, Plaintiff fled a First Amend
Complaint asserting claims for violation of Califita Consumers Legal Remedies Act and Unfair CoripetLaw. On March 19, 2012, Plain
filed a Second Amended Complaint asserting claon€hlifornia Consumers Legal Remedies Act and lgf@fampetition Law violations, Brea
of Implied Warranty, and violations of the Massasgtis consumer protection statutes. NVIDIA filechation to dismiss the Second Amen
Complaint on April 12, 2012.

On July 12, 2012, the District Court dismisseddithe seven asserted causes of action with pagudilowing only one cause of action

violation of the Massachusetts consumer protectiatute to continue, and instructed Plaintiff te fin amended complaint consistent witl
Order. On August 15, 2012, Plaintiff indicated thatwould not be filing an amended complaint. Thar@eld case is now over.
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Securities Cases

In September 2008, three putative securities elegsns, or the Actions, were filed in the Unitedt8s District Court for the Northern Disti
of California arising out of our announcements oly 2, 2008, that we would take a charge against gbrevenue to cover anticipated costs
expenses arising from a weak die/packaging matseiain certain versions of our previous generalt®P and GPU products and that we v
revising financial guidance for our second quasfefiscal year 2009. The Actions purport to be lgioion behalf of purchasers of NVIDIA stc
and assert claims for violations of Sections 1@fj 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934armaended, or the Securities Exchange
On October 30, 2008, the Actions were consolidatedker the caption In re NVIDIA Corporation SecedtiLitigation, Civil Action No. 08-CV-
04260-JW (HRL). Lead Plaintiffs and Lead Plaintif®ounsel were appointed on December 23, 2008.e¢bnuiry 6, 2009, chead Plaintiff filec
a Writ of Mandamus with the Ninth Circuit Court Appeals challenging the designation of co-Leadrifés' Counsel. On February 19, 2009, co-
Lead Plaintiff filed with the District Court, a moh to stay the District Court proceedings pendiegolution of the Writ of Mandamus by
Ninth Circuit. On February 24, 2009, Judge Warentgd the stay. On November 5, 2009, the Court giedfs issued an opinion reversing
District Court's appointment of one of the leadimtl#fs' counsel, and remanding the matter forHertproceedings. On December 8, 2009
District Court appointed Milberg LLP and Kahn SwigK-oti, LLC as co-lead counsel.

On January 22, 2010, Plaintiffs filed a Consolida#enended Class Action Complaint for Violationstleé Federal Securities Laws, assel
claims for violations of Section 10(b), Rule 1Bp-and Section 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Abe consolidated complaint sou
unspecified compensatory damages. We filed a matadismiss the consolidated complaint in March@®@nd a hearing was held on June
2010 before Judge Seeborg. On October 19, 201@eJ8deborg granted our motion to dismiss with legav@mend. On December 2, 2010, co-
Lead Plaintiffs filed a Second Consolidated Amen@edhplaint. We moved to dismiss the Second Codatdd Amended Complaint on Febrt
14, 2011. Following oral argument, on October 12,12 Judge Seeborg granted our motion to dismigsut leave to amend, and on Noven
8, 2011, Plaintiffs filed a Notice of Appeal to thénth Circuit. The appeal has been fully briefedt the Ninth Circuit has not yet set a hes
date.

Accounting for Loss Contingenci

While there can be no assurance of favorable owtspmie believe the claims made by other parti¢bdrabove ongoing matters are witt
merit and we intend to vigorously defend the actidNith the exception of the 3dfx and product def¢igation cases, we have not recorded
accrual for contingent liabilities associated witle legal proceedings described above based obedigf that liabilities, while possible, are
probable. Further, any possible range of lossésdhmatters cannot be reasonably estimated dintleisWe are engaged in other legal action:
described above arising in the ordinary coursetobusiness and, while there can be no assuranfa/afable outcomes, we believe that
ultimate outcome of these actions will not haveadanal adverse effect on our operating resulysiidiity or financial position.
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Note 14 - Income Taxes

The income tax expense applicable to income béfma@me taxes consists of the following:

Year Ended
January 27, January 29, January 30,
2013 2012 2011

(In thousands)
Current income taxes:

Federal $ 7,50¢ $ 7,09¢ % 141
State 1,01¢ 78¢ (51))
Foreign 16,76¢ 7,63( 6,827
Total current 25,28¢ 15,51¢ 6,45
Deferred taxes:
Federal 28,14 25,11 (3,067)
State — — —
Foreign 3,717 (6,055 417
Total deferred 31,86( 19,05¢ (2,646
Charge in lieu of taxes attributable to employecktoption plans 42,35¢ 47,73: 14,21
Income tax expense $ 99,50: $ 82,30( $ 18,02:

Income before income taxes consists of the follgwin

Year Ended
January 27, January 29, January 30,
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
Domestic $ 99,42: $ 120,76¢ $ 82,53:
Foreign 562,61 542,62¢ 188,63
Income before income tax $ 662,03¢ $ 663,39¢ $ 271,16¢

The income tax expense (benefit) differs from theant computed by applying the federal statutogpime tax rate of 35% income (los¢
before income taxes as follows:

Year Ended
January 27, January 29, January 30,
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
Tax expense computed at federal statutory rate $ 231,71: % 232,18¢ $ 94,90¢
State income taxes, net of federal tax effect 1,04¢ 2,30z (397
Foreign tax rate differential (123,62) (142,07) (49,58%)
Research tax credit (29,29 (24,270 (28,729
Stock-based compensation 11,87¢ 10,98: 1,66¢
Other 7,78¢ 3,17: 151
Income tax expense $ 99,50! $ 82,30t $ 18,02:
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The tax effect of temporary differences that gisies to significant portions of the deferred tageds and liabilities are presented below:

January 27, January 29,
2013 2012

(In thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carryforwards $ 84,15¢ $ 99,51¢
Accruals and reserves, not currently deductiblgdampurposes 121,64 109,24!
Property, equipment and intangible assets 54,63¢ 40,24¢
Research and other tax credit carryforwards 271,93 232,00:
Stock-based compensation 34,18 38,17"
Gross deferred tax assets 566,55t 519,18t
Less: valuation allowance (224,77:) (212,28))
Total deferred tax assets 341,78. 306,90:
Deferred tax liabilities:
Acquired intangibles (43,879 (63,120
Unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries (383,59) (329,679
Gross deferred tax liabilities $ (427,469 $ (382,799
Net deferred tax liability $ (85,68) $ (75,899

We recognized income tax expense of $99.5 milli#82.3 million , and $18.0 millioduring fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011, respdgt
Income tax expense as a percentage of income biboes, or our annual effective tax rate, was 15i9%scal year 2013, 12.4% fiscal yea
2012 and 6.7% in fiscal year 2011.

Our effective tax rate on income or loss beforeftaxthe fiscal years was lower than the Unitedeitdederal statutory rate of 35% du
income or loss earned in jurisdictions, includingtiBh Virgin Islands, Hong Kong, China, Taiwan abdited Kingdom, where the tax rate
lower than the United States federal statutoryréae of 35%, favorable recognition in these figars of the U.S. federal research tax credi
the expiration of statutes of limitations in cemtaon-U.S. jurisdictions for which we had not pmsly recognized related tax benefits.

As of January 27, 2013 and January 29, 2012 weaheaduation allowance of $224.8 million and $21&llion , respectively, related to st
and certain foreign deferred tax assets that manegedetermined not likely to be realized due,art,po projections of future taxable income
the extent realization of the deferred tax asset®imes more-likely-thanet, we would recognize such deferred tax assahascome tax bene
during the period.

Our deferred tax assets do not include the exeasienefit related to stodiased compensation that are a component of ouraflegied stal
net operating loss and research tax credit camgmils in the amount of $459.1 milli@s of January 27, 2013. Consistent with prior yeiue
excess tax benefit reflected in our net operaiisg bnd research tax credit carryforwards will d@anted for as a credit to stockholders' equfi
and when realized. In determining if and when egdax benefits have been realized, we have eleatatllize the with-andwithout approac
with respect to such excess tax benefits. We hiseeetected to ignore the indirect tax effectstotk-based compensation deductions for finai
and accounting reporting purposes, and specifitalhgcognize the full effect of the research teedi in income from operations.
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As of January 27, 2013, we had a federal net operaiss carryforward of $710.4 milligrcombined state net operating loss carryforwaf
$762.9 million , and combined foreign net operalimgs carryforwards of $370.4 milliariThe federal net operating loss carryforwards eslpire
beginning in fiscal year 2022 and the state netaipg loss carryforwards will begin to expire isdal year 2014n accordance with the rules
each particular state. Of the total foreign negrafing loss carryforwards of $370.4 million, inddu$80.0 million attributable to Germar$262.¢
million attributable to UK both of which may be oed forward indefinitely, $22.7 milliorattributable to Canada and the remainder to
foreign jurisdictions that begin to expire in fisg@ar 2014 . As of January 27, 2013, we had fédesearch tax credit carryforwards $351.(
million that will begin to expire in fiscal year 28 . We have other federal tax credit carryforwanfl $1.5 millionthat will begin to expire i
fiscal year 2014 . The research tax credit carvyéwds attributable to states is in the amount &1$3 million , of which $321.5 millions
attributable to the State of California and maycheied over indefinitely, and $10.4 millias attributable to various other states and wipies
beginning in fiscal year 2014 according to the sudé each particular state. We have other stateredit carryforwards of $2.6 milliothat will
expire in fiscal year 2026 and other foreign taedir carryforwards of $7.9 million , of which $3fillion may be refunded in fiscal year 2016
$4.9 millionin fiscal year 2017 if not utilized. Our tax dbutes, net operating loss and tax credit carryfadgaremain subject to audit and r
be adjusted for changes or modification in tax laether authoritative interpretations thereof, @neo facts and circumstances. Utilizatiot
federal, state, and foreign net operating lossesta credit carryforwards may also be subjecintutations due to ownership changes and ¢
limitations provided by the Internal Revenue Codd aimilar state and foreign tax provisions. If auwgh limitations apply, the federal, state:
foreign net operating loss and tax credit carryfimis, as applicable, may expire or be denied beftiization.

As of January 27, 2013, United States federal aate sncome taxes have not been provided on appaizly $1.68 billionof undistribute:
earnings of norJnited States subsidiaries as such earnings arsidayed to be indefinitely reinvested. We have pratvided the amount
unrecognized deferred tax liabilities for tempordaifferences related to investments in our foreggibsidiaries as the determination of ¢
amount is not practicable.

We had a tax holiday in effect for its businessrapens in India which terminated in March 2011hisTtax holiday provided for a lower r.
of taxation on certain classes of income basedaviows thresholds of investment and employmenughgurisdiction. For fiscal year 2011,
tax savings of this holiday was approximately $hiBion with no material per-share impact.

As of January 27, 2013, we had $220.5 million afsgrunrecognized tax benefits, of which $200.9ionilvould affect our effective tax re
if recognized. However, included in the unrecogdizax benefits that would affect our effective tase if recognized of $200.9 million $35.t
million and $0.2 millionrelated to state and foreign income tax, respdgtitieat, if recognized, would be in the form otarryforward deferre
tax asset that would likely attract a full valuatiallowance. The $200.9 million of unrecognized texefits as of January 27, 2013 consis
$104.0 million recorded in non-current income tagagable and $96.9 million reflected as a redudiiothe related deferred tax assets.

A reconciliation of gross unrecognized tax benééitas follows:

January 27, January 29, January 30,
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
Balance at beginning of period $ 138,26: $ 121,03: $ 109,76!
Increases in tax positions for prior years 18,80( 38t —
Decreases in tax positions for prior years (304) (299) (3,585
Increases in tax positions for current year 67,76¢ 22,18: 18,62¢
Settlements — — (35¢)
Lapse in statute of limitations (3,979 (5,045 (3,41¢)
Balance at end of period $ 220,54: % 138,26: $ 121,03

We classify an unrecognized tax benefit as a ctti@pility, or as a reduction of the amount of & wperating loss carryforward or amc
refundable, to the extent that we anticipate payroemeceipt of cash for income taxes within onarye.ikewise, the amount is classified ¢
long-term liability if we anticipate payment or espt of cash for income taxes during a period beyayear.
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Our policy is to include interest and penaltiesitedl to unrecognized tax benefits as a componeincofme tax expense. As of January
2013, January 29, 2012, and January 30, 2011, deteaued $11.3 million , $9.5 million , and $1inilion , respectively, for the payment
interest and penalties related to unrecognizedéesmefits, which is not included as a componentuofumrecognized tax benefits. As of Januan
2013, non-current income taxes payable of $115IBomiconsists of unrecognized tax benefits of $00rillion , reduced by the associa
federal deduction for state taxes, and the relatiedest and penalties of $11.3 million .

While we believe that we have adequately providedall tax positions, amounts asserted by tax @ities could be greater or less than
accrued position. Accordingly, our provisions oddgal, state and foreign taglated matters to be recorded in the future mangh as revist
estimates are made or the underlying matters dtledser otherwise resolved. As of January 27, 2048 do not believe that our estimates
otherwise provided for, on such tax positions wsiifjnificantly increase or decrease within the nexelve months.

We are subject to taxation by a number of taxingparities both in the United States and throughbatworld. As of January 27, 2013,
material tax jurisdictions that may be subjectxtareination include the United States, Taiwan, Can&tina, Germany, Hong Kong, France,
and India for fiscal years 2003 through 2012. Adafuary 27, 2013, the material tax jurisdictiamsvfhich we are currently under examina
include India, Germany and Taiwan for fiscal ye2063 through 2011.

Note 15 - Stockholders’ Equity
Stock Repurchase Program

In fiscal year 2007, our Board of Directors authed us, subject to certain specifications, to refmase shares of our common stock up !
aggregate maximum amount of $2.7 billibmough May 2013. In October 2012, the Board edeeinthe program through December 2014.
repurchases will be made from time to time in theromarket, in privately negotiated transactions$n atructured stock repurchase programs
may be made in one or more larger repurchasegmplkance with Rule 1068 of the Exchange Act, subject to market condgjaapplicabl
legal requirements, and other factors. The progtaes not obligate NVIDIA to acquire any particuéemount of common stock and the prog
may be suspended at any time at our discretiomatisof our share repurchase program, we haveeghieto, and we may continue to enter i
structured share repurchase transactions with dinhimstitutions. These agreements generally regthat we make an upent payment i
exchange for the right to receive a fixed numbeslwres of our common stock upon execution of greeanent, and a potential increme
number of shares of our common stock, within agaermined range, at the end of the term of theeagent.

Through January 27, 2013, we have repurchased gnegage of 99.3 milliorshares under our stock repurchase program forahdost o
$1.56 billion . As of January 27, 2013, we arehatized, subject to certain specifications, to repase shares of our common stock uftd<
billion through December 2014.

In addition to our Board authorized stock repurelsasve withhold common stock shares associated neittshare settlements to cover
withholding obligations upon the vesting of RSU as& under our equity incentive program. During fiezal year 2013, we withhe
approximately $1.8 million shares at a total cdst$25.8 million through net share settlements. Please refer to Rlaiethese Notes to t
Consolidated Financial Statements for further imfation regarding stockased compensation related to equity awards gramtddr our equi
incentive programs.

Convertible Preferred Stock

As of January 27, 2013 and January 29, 2012 , tliere no shares of preferred stock outstanding.

Note 16 - Employee Retirement Plans

We have a 401(k) Retirement Plan covering substifntll of our United States employees. Under Bh&n, participating employees n
defer up to 100% of their ptax earnings, subject to the Internal Revenue Serannual contribution limits. Effective Januanfl2pwe begs
matching a portion of the employee contributionsir @ontribution expense in fiscal year 2013 was matterial. Some of our ndd:S.
subsidiaries have defined benefit and defined dmxttons plans as required by local statutory regqaents. Our costs under these plans hay
been material.
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Note 17 - Segment Information

Our Chief Executive Officer, who is considered ®dur chief operating decision maker, or CODM, e&d financial information presen
on an operating segment basis for purposes of matperating decisions and assessing financial pedoce. Our operating segments
equivalent to our reportable segments. During #s¢ $everal years, we have operated and reponteel teporting segments to our CODM:
GPU business, the Professional Solutions busiaesksthe Consumer Products business. However, dilmnfpurth quarter of fiscal year 2013,
began reporting two segments to reflect the waymenow managing our businesses internally whidtased on whether the underlying prod
leverage our GPU or our Tegra Processor techna@o@iemparative periods presented reflect this alang

Our GPU business leverages our GPU technology sierndtiple end markets. It now comprises of foumgary product lines, includir
GeForce for desktop and notebook PCs and Macs; rQudiadprofessional workstations; Tesla for higeHformance servers and workstations;
NVIDIA GRID for server graphics solutions. It alsacludes other related products, licenses and revenpporting the GPU business, suc
memory products. Our Tegra Processor business tsgsporoduct lines primarily based on our Tegra M@ modem processor technolog
This includes Tegra for smartphones and tablet®détin Android and Windows Ribased devices; automotive computers, includingtéanfionen
and navigation systems; and gaming devices suéhr@sct SHIELD. It also includes other related preid, licenses, and revenue supporting
Tegra Processor business such as Icera basebarebsoes and RF transceivers, embedded productdicandes and other revenue assoc
with game consoles.

In addition to the two reporting segments discusaledve, the “All Other’category represents unallocated revenue and expeviset
primarily includes licensing revenue from our pateross licensing agreement with Intel. Revenuateel to this agreement is recognized rai
over the term of our agreement and is not actiseyaged. This category also includes corporateatipgrexpenses that we do not allocate tc
other reporting segments as such expenses arérectiydrelated to the function or operations of ogporting segments. These expenses in
certain corporate infrastructure and support ctistd are deemed to be enterprise in nature. Addilip, we do not allocate stodlase:
compensation, amortization of acquisition-relatetngible assets, other acquisiti@tated costs, net warranty charge related to ak
die/packaging material set, and non-recurring aksend benefits. The table below presents defadlarareportable segments and the “All Other”
category.

Our CODM does not review any information regarditogal assets on a reporting segment basis. Regosayments do not rect
intersegment revenue, and, accordingly, there ie o be reported. The accounting policies for sagmeporting are the same as for NVIDI/
a whole.

GPU Tegra Processor All Other Consolidated
(In thousands)

Year Ended January 27, 2013:

Revenue $ 3,251,717, $ 764,44 $ 264,000 $ 4,280,15!
Depreciation and amortization expense $ 127,69t $ 56,10¢ $ 42,43. $ 226,23t
Operating income (loss) $ 884,76° $ (157,92) $ (78,605 $ 648,23
Year Ended January 29, 2012:

Revenue $ 3,186,76. $ 591,16¢ $ 220,000 $ 3,997,93
Depreciation and amortization expense $ 122,41 % 42,36 $ 39,42: % 204,20!
Operating income (loss) $ 821,64( $ (60,410 $ (112,929 $ 648,29¢
Year Ended January 30, 2011:

Revenue $ 3,345,69 $ 197,61 $ — 3 3,543,30!
Depreciation and amortization expense $ 152,09 $ 19,08: $ 15,81 $ 186,98
Operating income (loss) $ 680,76. $ (49,239 $ (375,770 $ 255,74
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(Continued)
Year Ended
January 27, January 29, January 30,
2013 2012 2011

(In thousands)
Reconciling items included in "All Other" category
Revenue not allocated to reporting segments $ 264,000 $ 220,000 $ =
Unallocated corporate operating expenses and eipemses (149,679 (151,79)) (129,34)
Stock-based compensation (136,66:) (136,35¢) (100,357
Amortization of acquisition-related intangibles (17,139 (17,190 (9,187)
Other acquisition-related costs (19,009 (20,287 —
Net warranty charge related to a weak die/packagiatgrial set — — (193,900
Other non-recurring expenses and benefits (20,12)) (7,300 57,00(
Total $ (78,60%) $ (112,929 $ (375,779

Revenue by geographic region is allocated to inldiai countries based on the location to which tleglgpcts are initially billed even if o
customerstevenue is attributable to end customers thatar&téd in a different location. The following tabkummarize information pertain
to our revenue from customers based on invoicimyesss in different geographic regions:

Year Ended
January 27, January 29, January 30,
2013 2012 2011

Revenue: (In thousands)

China $ 780,49: $ 941,81. $ 1,223,19

Taiwan 1,356,83 1,137,117 936,79

Other Asia Pacific 783,57. 730,97! 519,47.

Europe 263,48! 296,59: 261,42:

United States 799,43( 596,26: 297,26!

Other Americas 296,33 295,11. 305,15-
Total revenue $ 4,280,15 $ 3,997,93 $ 3,543,30!

The following table presents summarized informafmmong-lived assets by geographic region. Lamgd assets consist of property and
equipment and deposits and other assets and exghadisvill and intangible assets.

January 27, January 29,
2013 2012

Long-lived assets: (In thousands)

United States $ 542,66¢ $ 563,69!

Taiwan 45,86¢ 40,19¢

China 34,64« 27,36(

India 31,31: 30,59¢

Europe 28,19( 17,73:

Other Asia Pacific 941 811
Total long-lived assets $ 683,62« $ 680,40«
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Revenue from significant customers, those represgeta0% or more of total revenue for the respedtiates, is summarized as follows:

Year Ended
January 27, January 29, January 30,
2013 2012 2011
Revenue:
Customer A 13% 11% —
Customer B — — 12%

Accounts receivable from significant customers,sthoepresenting 10% or more of total accounts vabég for the respective periods
summarized as follows:

January 27, January 29,
2013 2012
Accounts Receivable:
Customer A 20% 20%
Customer B 1C% —
Customer C 10% —

Note 18- Quarterly Summary (Unaudited)

The following table sets forth our unaudited coitkiked financial results, for the last eight fisqahrters:

Fiscal Year 2013
Quarters Ended

January 27, October 28, July 29, April 29,
2013 2012 2012 (A) 2012

(In thousands, except per share data)

Statement of Income Data:

Revenue $ 1,106,90. $ 1,204,111  $ 1,044,270 $ 924,87
Cost of revenue $ 521,300 $ 567,45. $ 503,55. $ 461,51
Gross profit $ 585,60. $ 636,65¢( $ 540,71¢ $ 463,36:
Net income $ 173,97 $ 209,08( $ 119,04t $ 60,43’
Basic net income per share $ 0.2¢ % 03/ % 0.1¢ % 0.1cC
Diluted net income per share $ 0.2t $ 03: $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1
Fiscal Year 2012
Quarters Ended
January 29, October 30, July 31, May 1,
2012 (B) 2011 2011 2011
(In thousands, except per share data)
Statement of Income Data:
Revenue $ 953,19: $ 1,066,18 $ 1,016,51 $ 962,03¢
Cost of revenue $ 463,18: $ 509,46 $ 491,230 $ 477,53t
Gross profit $ 490,01: $ 556,71 $ 525,28: $ 484,50:
Net income $ 116,02! $ 178,27, $ 151,570 $ 135,21¢
Basic net income per share $ 0.1¢ % 0.2¢ % 028 % 0.2:
Diluted net income per share $ 0.1¢ $ 0.2¢ $ 0.2t $ 0.2Z
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(Continued)
(A) Includes net present value of a $25 millraritable contribution pledged on June 12, 2018tétmford Hospital and Clinic, payable c
a ten year period.
(B) Includes an additional charge of $7.3 milliassociated with the fair value prescribed to thtesaent between us and Rambus.

February 7, 2012, we entered into a licensing agee¢ with Rambus and both parties also agreedtle sdl outstanding legal disputes.
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SCHEDULE Il - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Balance at
Beginning Balance at
Description of Period Additions Deductions End of Period
(In thousands)

Year ended January 27, 2013
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 97: $ 1,21¢ (1) $ (385) (4) $ 1,804
Sales return allowance $ 13,88: $ 17,627 (2) $ (16,719 (5) $ 14,79(
Deferred tax valuation allowance $ 212,28! $ 12,48¢ (3) $ = $ 224,77
Year ended January 29, 2012
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 78¢ $ 44¢ (1) $ (265) (4) $ 97¢
Sales return allowance $ 15,04¢ $ 2533. (2) $ (26,499 (5) $ 13,88:
Deferred tax valuation allowance $ 148,01t $ 64,26¢ (3) $ = $ 212,28!
Year ended January 30, 2011
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 961 $ 87t (1) $ (1,04) 4) $ 78¢
Sales return allowance $ 15,36¢ $ 26,517 (2) $ (26,83) (5) $ 15,04¢
Deferred tax valuation allowance $ 113,44: $ 34,57: (3) $ = $ 148,01t

(1) Allowances for doubtful accounts are chargedxpenses.

(2) Represents allowance for sales returns estthattéhe time revenue is recognized primarily basetistorical return rates and is charged
reduction to revenue.

(3) Represents change in valuation allowance pifynelated to state deferred tax assets that gemant has determined not likely to be rea
due, in part, to projections of future taxable imeoof the respective jurisdictions.

(4) Represents uncollectible accounts writteragfiinst the allowance for doubtful accounts.

(5) Represents allowance for sales returns wrafén
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Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit
No. Exhibit Description Schedule/Form  File Number Exhibit Filing Date

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among NVI 8-K 0-23985 2.1 11/9/2006
Corporation, Partridge Acquisition, Inc. and Pdrtaler,
Inc. dated 11/6/06

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation S-8 333-74905 4.1 3/23/1999

3.2 Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Rest 10-Q 0-23985 3.1 8/21/2008
Certificate of Incorporation

3.3 Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated  8-K 0-23985 3.1 5/24/2011
Certificate of Incorporation

3.4 Bylaws of NVIDIA Corporation, Amended and Restated 8-K 0-23985 3.2 5/24/2011
as of May 23, 2011

4.1 Reference is made to Exhibits 3.1, 3.2, 3.3 and 3.4

4.2 Specimen Stock Certificate S-1/A 333-47495 4.2 4/24/1998

10.1 Form of Indemnity Agreement between NVID 8-K 0-23985 10.1 3/7/2006
Corporation and each of its directors and officers

10.2+ 1998 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended 8-K 0-23985 10.2 3/13/2006

10.3+ 1998 Equity Incentive Plan ISO, as amended 10-Q 0-23985 10.5 11/22/2004

10.4+ 1998 Equity Incentive Plan NSO, as amended 10-Q 0-23985 10.6 11/22/2004

10.5+ Certificate of Stock Option Grant 10-Q 0-23985 10.7 11/22/2004

10.6+ 1998 NonEmployee Directors’ Stock Option Plan, 8-K 0-23985 10.1 4/3/2006
amended

10.7+ 1998 NonEmployee Directors' Stock Option Plan (Ann 10-Q 0-23985 10.1 11/22/2004
Grant - Board Service), as amended

10.8+ 1998 NonEmployee Directors’ Stock Option P 10-Q 0-23985 10.2 11/22/2004
(Committee Grant - Committee Service), as amended

10.9+ 1998 NonEmployee Directors' Stock Option Plan (Ini 10-Q 0-23985 10.3 11/22/2004
Grant)

10.10+ 1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amende 10-Q 0-23985 10.2 5/22/2008
restated

10.11+ 2000 Nonstatutory Equity Incentive Plan, as amended SC TO-1 005-56649  99(d)(1)(A) 11/29/2006

10.12+ 2000 Nonstatutory Equity Incentive Plan NSO SCTO-1 005-56649  99.1(d)(1) 11/29/2006

()
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10.13+

10.14+

10.15+

10.16+

10.17+

10.18+

10.19+

10.20+

10.21+

10.22+

10.23+

10.24+

10.25+

10.26+

10.27+

10.28+

10.29+

10.30+

10.31+
10.32+

10.33+

10.34

10.35

PortalPlayer, Inc. 1999 Stock Option Plan and Faff
Agreements thereunder

PortalPlayer, Inc. Amended and Restated 2004 ¢
Incentive Plan

Amended and Restated 2007 Equity Incentive Plan

2007 Equity Incentive Plan - Non Statutory Stocki@p
(Annual Grant - Board Service (2007))

2007 Equity Incentive Plan - Non Statutory Stocki@p
(Annual Grant - Committee Service (2007))

2007 Equity Incentive Plan - Non Statutory Stocki@p
(Initial Grant - Board Service (2007))

2007 Equity Incentive Plan - Non-Statutory Stocki@mp
(Annual Grant - Board Service (2009))

2007 Equity Incentive Plan - Non-Statutory Stocki@p
(Annual Grant - Board Service (2011))

2007 Equity Incentive Plan - Non-Statutory Stocki@p
(Initial Grant - Board Service (2011))

Amended and Restated 2007 Equity Incentive Plaon-N
Employee Director Stock Option Grant (2012 Annual
Board Retainer)

2007 Equity Incentive Plan - Non Statutory Stocki@p
2007 Equity Incentive Plan - Incentive Stock Option

Amended and Restated 2007 Equity Incentive Plaon N
Statutory Stock Option

Amended and Restated 2007 Equity Incentive Plan -
Incentive Stock Option

2007 Equity Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Unit Gra
Notice and Restricted Stock Unit Purchase Agreement

Amended and Restated 2007 Equity Incentive Plan -
Restricted Stock Unit Grant Notice and Restricteutls
Unit Purchase Agreement

Amended and Restated 2007 Equity Incentive Plaon-N
Employee Director Restricted Stock Unit (withoufeteal
option)

Amended and Restated 2007 Equity Incentive Plaon-N
Employee Director Restricted Stock Unit (with dedér
option)

2012 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Fiscal Year 2013 Variable Compensation Plan

Fiscal Year 2012 Variable Compensation Plan

Lease dated April 4, 2000 between NVIDIA Corpoma
and Sobrato Interests Il for Building A

Lease dated April 4, 2000 between NVIDIA Corpoma
and Sobrato Interests Il for Building B

S-8

10-Q
10-Q
10-Q
10-Q
10-Q
10-Q
8-K

10-Q

8-K
10-Q
10-Q

10-Q

10-Q

10-Q

10-Q

S-3/A

S-3/A
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333-140021

333-140021

0-23985

0-23985

0-23985

0-23985

0-23985

0-23985

0-23985

0-23985

0-23985

0-23985

0-23985

0-23985

0-23985

0-23985

0-23985

0-23985

0-23985
0-23985

0-23985

333-33560

333-33560

99.1

99.2

10.5

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.1

10.41

10.1

10.4

10.2

10.21

10.1

10.2

10.22

10.3

10.2

10.3

10.6
10.1

10.1

10.1

10.2

1/16/2007

1/16/2007

5/23/2012

8/22/2007

8/22/2007

8/22/2007

8/20/2009

5/27/2011

12/14/2011

5/23/2012

9/13/2010

9/13/2010

8/22/2012

8/22/2012

12/7/2010

8/22/2012

5/23/2012

5/23/2012

5/23/2012
3/28/2012

3/25/2011

4/20/2000

4/20/2000
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10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41

10.42

10.43

21.1*

23.1*

24.1*

31.1*

31.2*

32.1#*

32.2#*

101.INS*

101.SCH*

101.CAL*

101.DEF*

101.LAB*

101.PRE*

Lease dated April 4, 2000 between NVIDIA Corpoma S-3/A 333-33560 10.3
and Sobrato Interests Il for Building C

Lease dated April 4, 2000 between NVIDIA Corpoma S-3/A 333-33560 10.4
and Sobrato Interests Ill for Building D

Memory Controller Patent License Agreement Between 10-Q 0-23985 10.32
Rambus Inc. and NVIDIA Corporation, dated August 12
2010

Second Amendment to Lease, dated August 18, 2010 10-Q 0-23985 10.33
between NVIDIA Corporation and Sobrato Interest$di

Building A

Third Amendment to Lease, dated August 18, 2010, 10-Q 0-23985 10.34
between NVIDIA Corporation and Sobrato Interest$dit

Building B

Third Amendment to Lease, dated August 18, 2010, 10-Q 0-23985 10.35
between NVIDIA Corporation and Sobrato Interest$di

Building C

Second Amendment to Lease, dated August 18, 2010, 10-Q 0-23985 10.36
between NVIDIA Corporation and Sobrato Interest$di

Building D

Patent Cross License Agreement dated as of JafQary 8-K 0-23985 10.1
2011, between NVIDIA Corporation and Intel Corparat

List of Registrant's Subsidiaries

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Power of Attorney (included in signature page)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer as requdrby Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities ExchangeoAd934
Certification of Chief Financial Officer as requirby Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities ExchangeoAd934
Certification of Chief Executive Officer as requdrby Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities ExchangecAdi934
Certification of Chief Financial Officer as requirby Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Exchangeohdi934
XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Do@urn

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Documhe

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenim

* Filed herewith.

+ Management contract or compensatory plan ongement.
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# In accordance with Item 601(b)(32)(ii) of Redida S-K and SEC Release Nos. 33-8238 and 286, Final Rule: Management's Report
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and Gixdition of Disclosure in Exchange Act Periodic Bep, the certifications furnished in Exhit
32.1 and 32.2 hereto are deemed to accompany tlzgeply Report on Form 10-Q and will not be deertideld” for purpose of Section 18 of 1
Exchange Act. Such certifications will not be dednte be incorporated by reference into any filimgler the Securities Act or the Exchange
except to the extent that the registrant specificatorporates it by reference.

Copies of above exhibits not contained herein eadlable to any stockholder upon written request to
Investor Relations: NVIDIA Corporation, 2701 Sanmias Expressway, Santa Clara, CA 95050
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Bistrant has duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theretmduly authorized, on March 12, 2013 .

NVIDIA Corporation
By: /s/ Jen-Hsun Huang
Jen-Hsun Huang
President and Chief Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each perso whose signature appears below constitutes and appts Jen-
Hsun Huang and Karen Burns, and each or any one dhem, his true and lawful attorney-infact and agent, with full power of substitutior
and resubstitution, for him and in his name, placeand stead, in any and all capacities, to sign anynd all amendments (including postin
effective amendments) to this report, and to filehe same, with all exhibits thereto, and other docuents in connection therewith, with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, granting untcagl attorneys-infacts and agents, and each of them, full power anauthority to do
and perform each and every act and thing requisitand necessary to be done in connection therewiths dully to all intents and purposes &
he might or could do in person, hereby ratifying ad confirming all that said attorneys-infact and agents, or any of them, or their or hi
substitutes or substitutes, may lawfully do or cawsto be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Examnge Act of 1934, this report has been signed beldwy the following persons ol
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities andn the dates indicated.
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Signature
/sl JEN-HSUN HUANG

Jen-Hsun Huang

/sl KAREN BURNS

Karen Burns
/sl MICHAEL J. BYRON

Michael J. Byron
/sl TENCH COXE

Tench Coxe

/sl MARK STEVENS

Mark Stevens
/sl JAMES C. GAITHER

James C. Gaither
/sl HARVEY C. JONES

Harvey C. Jones

/sl MARK L. PERRY

Mark L. Perry
/s WILLIAM J. MILLER

William J. Miller

/sl A. BROOKE SEAWELL

A. Brooke Seawell
/sl ROBERT BURGESS

Robert Burgess

Title

President, Chief Executivei€df and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

Vice President and Interim Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Vice President of Finance

(Principal Accounting Officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Date
March 12, 2013

March 12, 2013

March 12, 2013

March 12, 2013

March 12, 2013

March 12, 2013

March 12, 2013

March 12, 2013

March 12, 2013

March 12, 2013

March 12, 2013
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Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit
No. Exhibit Description Schedule/Form  File Number Exhibit Filing Date

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among NVI 8-K 0-23985 2.1 11/9/2006
Corporation, Partridge Acquisition, Inc. and Pdrtajer.
Inc. dated 11/6/06

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation S-8 333-74905 4.1 3/23/1999

3.2 Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Rest 10-Q 0-23985 3.1 8/21/2008
Certificate of Incorporation

3.3 Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated  8-K 0-23985 3.1 5/24/2011
Certificate of Incorporation

3.4 Bylaws of NVIDIA Corporation, Amended and Restass 8-K 0-23985 3.2 5/24/2011
of May 23, 2011

4.1 Reference is made to Exhibits 3.1, 3.2, 3.3 and 3.4

4.2 Specimen Stock Certificate S-1/A 333-47495 4.2 4/24/1998

10.1 Form of Indemnity Agreement between NVID 8-K 0-23985 10.1 3/7/2006
Corporation and each of its directors and officers

10.2+ 1998 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended 8-K 0-23985 10.2 3/13/2006

10.3+ 1998 Equity Incentive Plan ISO, as amended 10-Q 0-23985 10.5 11/22/2004

10.4+ 1998 Equity Incentive Plan NSO, as amended 10-Q 0-23985 10.6 11/22/2004

10.5+ Certificate of Stock Option Grant 10-Q 0-23985 10.7 11/22/2004

10.6+ 1998 NonEmployee Directors' Stock Option Plan, 8-K 0-23985 10.1 4/3/2006
amended

10.7+ 1998 NonEmployee Directors' Stock Option Plan (Ann 10-Q 0-23985 10.1 11/22/2004
Grant - Board Service), as amended

10.8+ 1998 NonEmployee Directors’ Stock Option P 10-Q 0-23985 10.2 11/22/2004
(Committee Grant - Committee Service), as amended

10.9+ 1998 NonEmployee Directors' Stock Option Plan (Ini 10-Q 0-23985 10.3 11/22/2004
Grant)

10.10+ 1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amende 10-Q 0-23985 10.2 5/22/2008
restated

10.11+ 2000 Nonstatutory Equity Incentive Plan, as amended SC TO-1 005-56649  99(d)(1)(A) 11/29/2006

10.12+ 2000 Nonstatutory Equity Incentive Plan NSO SCTO-1 005-56649  99.1(d)(1) 11/29/2006

(B)
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10.13+

10.14+

10.15+

10.16+

10.17+

10.18+

10.19+

10.20+

10.21+

10.22+

10.23+

10.24+

10.25+

10.26+

10.27+

10.28+

10.29+

10.30+

10.31+
10.32+

10.33+

10.34

10.35

PortalPlayer, Inc. 1999 Stock Option Plan and Faff
Agreements thereunder

PortalPlayer, Inc. Amended and Restated 2004 ¢
Incentive Plan

Amended and Restated 2007 Equity Incentive Plan

2007 Equity Incentive Plan - Non Statutory Stocki@p
(Annual Grant - Board Service (2007))

2007 Equity Incentive Plan - Non Statutory Stocki@p
(Annual Grant - Committee Service (2007))

2007 Equity Incentive Plan - Non Statutory Stocki@p
(Initial Grant - Board Service (2007))

2007 Equity Incentive Plan - Non-Statutory Stocki@mp
(Annual Grant - Board Service (2009))

2007 Equity Incentive Plan - Non-Statutory Stocki@p
(Annual Grant - Board Service (2011))

2007 Equity Incentive Plan - Non-Statutory Stocki@p
(Initial Grant - Board Service (2011))

Amended and Restated 2007 Equity Incentive Plaon-N
Employee Director Stock Option Grant (2012 Annual
Board Retainer)

2007 Equity Incentive Plan - Non Statutory Stocki@p
2007 Equity Incentive Plan - Incentive Stock Option

Amended and Restated 2007 Equity Incentive Plaon N
Statutory Stock Option

Amended and Restated 2007 Equity Incentive Plan -
Incentive Stock Option

2007 Equity Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Unit Gra
Notice and Restricted Stock Unit Purchase Agreement

Amended and Restated 2007 Equity Incentive Plan -
Restricted Stock Unit Grant Notice and Restricteutls
Unit Purchase Agreement

Amended and Restated 2007 Equity Incentive Plaon-N
Employee Director Restricted Stock Unit (withoufeteal
option)

Amended and Restated 2007 Equity Incentive Plaon-N
Employee Director Restricted Stock Unit (with dedér
option)

2012 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Fiscal Year 2013 Variable Compensation Plan

Fiscal Year 2012 Variable Compensation Plan

Lease dated April 4, 2000 between NVIDIA Corpoma
and Sobrato Interests Il for Building A

Lease dated April 4, 2000 between NVIDIA Corpoma
and Sobrato Interests Il for Building B

S-8

10-Q
10-Q
10-Q
10-Q
10-Q
10-Q
8-K

10-Q

8-K
10-Q
10-Q

10-Q

10-Q

10-Q

10-Q

S-3/A

S-3/A
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0-23985

0-23985
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0-23985
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333-33560

333-33560

99.1

99.2

10.5

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.1

10.41

10.1

10.4

10.2

10.21

10.1
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10.22

10.3

10.2

10.3

10.6
10.1

10.1

10.1

10.2

1/16/2007

1/16/2007

5/23/2012

8/22/2007

8/22/2007

8/22/2007

8/20/2009

5/27/2011

12/14/2011

5/23/2012

9/13/2010

9/13/2010

8/22/2012

8/22/2012

12/7/2010
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10.36 Lease dated April 4, 2000 between NVIDIA Corpoma S-3/A 333-33560 10.3 4/20/2000
and Sobrato Interests Il for Building C

10.37 Lease dated April 4, 2000 between NVIDIA Corpoma S-3/A 333-33560 10.4 4/20/2000
and Sobrato Interests Il for Building D

10.38 Memory Controller Patent License Agreement Between 10-Q 0-23985 10.32 12/7/2010
Rambus Inc. and NVIDIA Corporation, dated August 12
2010

10.39 Second Amendment to Lease, dated August 18, 2010 10-Q 0-23985 10.33 12/7/2010
between NVIDIA Corporation and Sobrato Interest$di
Building A

10.40 Third Amendment to Lease, dated August 18, 2010, 10-Q 0-23985 10.3¢ 12/7/2010
between NVIDIA Corporation and Sobrato Interest$dit
Building B

10.41 Third Amendment to Lease, dated August 18, 2010, 10-Q 0-23985 10.3¢ 12/7/2010
between NVIDIA Corporation and Sobrato Interest$di
Building C

10.42 Second Amendment to Lease, dated August 18, 2010, 10-Q 0-23985 10.36 12/7/2010
between NVIDIA Corporation and Sobrato Interest$di
Building D

10.43 Patent Cross License Agreement dated as of JafQary 8-K 0-23985 10.1 1/10/2011
2011, between NVIDIA Corporation and Intel Corparat

21.1* List of Registrant's Subsidiaries

23.1* Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

24.1* Power of Attorney (included in signature page)

31.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer as requdrby Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities ExchangeoAd934

31.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer as requirby Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities ExchangeoAd934

32.1#* Certification of Chief Executive Officer as requdrby Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities ExchangecAdi934
32.2#* Certification of Chief Financial Officer as requirby Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Exchangeohdi934
101.INS*  XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.SCH*
101.CAL* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Do@urn
101.DEF* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Documhe

101.LAB* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Document

101.PRE* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenim
* Filed herewith.

+ Management contract or compensatory plan ongement.
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# In accordance with Item 601(b)(32)(ii) of Redida S-K and SEC Release Nos. 33-8238 and 286, Final Rule: Management's Report
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and Gixdition of Disclosure in Exchange Act Periodic Bep, the certifications furnished in Exhit
32.1 and 32.2 hereto are deemed to accompany tlzgeply Report on Form 10-Q and will not be deertideld” for purpose of Section 18 of 1
Exchange Act. Such certifications will not be dednte be incorporated by reference into any filimgler the Securities Act or the Exchange
except to the extent that the registrant specificatorporates it by reference.

Copies of above exhibits not contained herein eadlable to any stockholder upon written request to
Investor Relations: NVIDIA Corporation, 2701 Sanmias Expressway, Santa Clara, CA 95050
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Jen-Hsun Huang, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10fHVIDIA Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does natadomny untrue statement of a material fact ot énstate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamid other financial information included in thégport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, theopls presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(sgdrare responsible for establishing and maintaimiisclosure controls and procedures (as defin
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) armdriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15
(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to thgisrant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidhg report is being prepared,;

(b) designed such internal control over finanodgarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggttte reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registraii&osure controls and procedures and presentitsi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegit's internal control over financial reportth@t occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal gaam the case of an annual report) that has madl{eaffected, or is reasonably likely to matelsal
affect, the registrant's internal control over fio@l reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(spdrhave disclosed, based on our most recent ei@iuaf internal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committethe registrant's board of directors (or pesgmerforming the equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal cboirer financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's abilidyrecord, process, summarize and report finantiatmation; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that ines\management or other employees who have a s@miifiole in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: March 12, 2013

/sl JENHSUN HUANG
Jen-Hsun Huang
President and Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Karen Burns, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10f#VIDIA Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorny untrue statement of a material fact or eongtate a material fact necessary to mak
statements made, in light of the circumstances uwtiéch such statements were made, not misleaditiy respect to the period covered by
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respe
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, theopls presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(spldrare responsible for establishing and maintaimiisclosure controls and procedures (as defir
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) amdriat control over financial reporting (as defiriedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15
(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedarbe designed under our supervisio
ensure that material information relating to thgistant, including its consolidated subsidiarissmade known to us by others within th
entities, particularly during the period in whidhg report is being prepared,;

(b) designed such internal control over financegbarting, or caused such internal control overrfaia reporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggtige reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for exte
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presemtetlis report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in thegtegnt's internal control over financial reportithgit occurred during the registrant's most re
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal qaain the case of an annual report) that has madieaffected, or is reasonably likely to matelsr:
affect, the registrant's internal control over fio@l reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(sddrhave disclosed, based on our most recent e@buef internal control over financial reportil
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committethe registrant's board of directors (or pesguerforming the equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal céntrer financial reporting which are reason:
likely to adversely affect the registrant's abilidyrecord, process, summarize and report finamtiatmation; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that inesvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant's internal cor

over financial reporting.

Date: March 12, 2013

/sl KAREN BURNS
Karen Burns
Interim Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to the requirement set forth in Rule 18@)lof the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asrated (the “Exchange Act”anc
Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the Udiigtates Code (18 U.S.C. § 1350), H=un Huang, the President and Chief Executive &ffid
NVIDIA Corporation (the“Company”), hereby certifies that, to the best isfknowledge:

1. The Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K far year ended January 27, 2Q1t® which this Certification is attached as Exh@R.1 (th
“Periodic Report”), fully complies with the requiments of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Bxgfe Act; and

2. The information contained in the Periodic Refairly presents, in all material respects, tmaficial condition of the Company at the end o
period covered by the Periodic Report and restiltgperations of the Company for the period covdrgthe Periodic Report.

Date: March 12, 2013

/sl JENHSUN HUANG
Jen-Hsun Huang
President and Chief Executive Officer

A signed original of this written statement reqditey Section 906 of 18 U.S.C. § 1350 has been geavio NVIDIA Corporation and will
retained by NVIDIA Corporation and furnished to ®ecurities and Exchange Commission or its stafhuequest.

This certification accompanies the FormHK@e which it relates, is not deemed filed with thecurities and Exchange Commission and i
to be incorporated by reference into any filingled Company under the Securities Act of 1933, asnaled, or the Exchange Act (whether n
before or after the date of the Form 10-K), irretppe of any general incorporation language comtaiim such filing.



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to the requirement set forth in Rule 18@)lof the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asrated (the “Exchange Act”anc
Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the Udiftates Code (18 U.S.C. § 1350), Karen Burnslnteeim Chief Financial Officer of NVIDI;
Corporation (the “Company”), hereby certifies thatthe best of her knowledge:

1. The Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K forythar ended January 27, 201® which this Certification is attached as ExhBR.2 (th
“Periodic Report”), fully complies with the requiments of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Bxgfe Act; and

2. The information contained in the Periodic Reffaily presents, in all material respects, thaficial condition of the Company at the end o
period covered by the Periodic Report and restiltgperations of the Company for the period covdrgthe Periodic Report.

Date: March 12, 2013
/sl KAREN BURNS

Karen Burns
Interim Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement reqditey Section 906 of 18 U.S.C. § 1350 has been gealvio NVIDIA Corporation and will
retained by NVIDIA Corporation and furnished to ®ecurities and Exchange Commission or its stashupquest.

This certification accompanies the FormHK@e which it relates, is not deemed filed with thecurities and Exchange Commission and i
to be incorporated by reference into any filingled Company under the Securities Act of 1933, asnaled, or the Exchange Act (whether n
before or after the date of the Form 10-K), irresipe of any general incorporation language comt@iim such filing.



LIST OF REGISTRANT'S SUBSIDIARIES

Subsidiaries of Registrant (All 200% owned)

AGEIA Technologies LLC

AGEIA Technologies Switzerland AG
Icera Canada ULC

Icera LLC

Icera Semiconductor LLC

JAH Venture Holdings, Inc.

LPN Facilitator LLC

Mental Images, Inc.

NVIDIA (BVI) Holdings Limited

NVIDIA ARC GmbH

NVIDIA Development France SAS
NVIDIA Development UK Limited

NVIDIA Development, Inc.

NVIDIA Dutch Codperatief U.A.

NVIDIA GK

NVIDIA GmbH

NVIDIA Graphics Holding Company
NVIDIA Graphics Private Limited

NVIDIA Helsinki Oy

NVIDIA Hong Kong Development Limited
NVIDIA Hong Kong Holdings Limited
NVIDIA International Holdings Inc.
NVIDIA International, Inc.

Nvidia Land Development, LLC

NVIDIA Ltd.

Nvidia Pty Limited

NVIDIA Semiconductor (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
NVIDIA Semiconductor Holding Company
NVIDIA Semiconductor Shenzhen Holding Company

NVIDIA Semiconductor Technical Service (Shanghai), Q. td.

NVIDIA Semiconductor Technology (Shanghai) Co.,.Ltd
NVIDIA Singapore Development Pte. Ltd.

NVIDIA Singapore Pte Ltd

NVIDIA Technology UK Limited

VC Worldwide Ltd.

NVIDIA Belgium SPRL

NVIDIA ltaly S.r.l.

NVIDIA Semiconductor R&D (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.

NVIDIA Brasil Computacao Visual Limitada

NVIDIA FZ-LLC

Country of Organization

United States
Switzerland
Canada
United States
United States
United States
United States
United States
Virgin Islands, British
Germany
France
England and Wales
Canada
Netherlands
Japan
Germany
Mauritius
India
Finland
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
United States
Cayman Islands
United States
England and Wales
Australia
China
Mauritius
Midws

China
China
Singapore
Singapore
England and Wales
Virgin Islands, British
Belgium
Italy

China

Brazil
United Arab Emirates

EHHIBIT 21.1



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referendbe Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N88-21905, 333-51520, 333-74868, 333-
100010, 333-106191, 333-114375, 333-123933, 333932333-140021, 333-143953, 333-181625 and 3383@5and on Form S-4 (No. 333-
54406) of NVIDIA Corporation of our report dated Mh 12, 2013 relating to the fiancial statements, financial statement scheduletlae
effectiveness of internal control over financighogting, which appears in this Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
March 12, 2013



